
1. Call to Order 
 

2. Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest  

 



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

Notice of Meeting 

Monday, June 12, 2023, at 8:30 AM 

32825 Co Rd 39, Lucerne, CO 80646 

THE BOARD MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC IN PERSON AND BY 
TELECONFERENCE 

Information to join by Phone is below: 

Call-In Number: 1(720)707-2699, Meeting ID: 873 5785 0771, Passcode: 475314 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest  
 

3. Action: Election of Officers 
 

4. Action: Approve June 12, 2023, NWCWD Board Meeting Agenda 
 

5. Public Comment (3 Minute Time Limit; Items Not Otherwise on the Agenda)  
 

6. Consent Agenda: (These items are considered to be routine and will be approved 
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
requested, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in the Regular Agenda) (enclosures) 
 

 
a. Minutes from April 10, 2023, and May 16, 2023, Meetings 
b. Unaudited Financials for April and May 2023 
c. Invoices through June 12, 2023 
d. Scope of Services  

i. Tri-Hydro Corp. Scope of Services 36-inch Pipeline Lowering 
Timnath  

ii. Tri-Hydro Corp County Road 84 2-inch Replacement Project  
iii. Tri-Hydro Corp. Scope of Services Regulatory Compliance  
iv. Stantec Scope of Service Easement Acquisition Knox Pit 
v. GIS Server Update – Connecting Point (ratify) 
vi. Providence Infrastructure 1st Amendment NEWT 3 Professional 

Services 
vii. Ditesco Bellvue Pipeline Interconnect  

e. BPCCC Cross Connection Variance Requests  
i. Containment to Isolation Variances (31 Premises) 

f. Letter Agreement Town of Windsor Transfer of Four Taps  
g. Eaton Pipeline Phase 2 Change Order 1 Connell, Extended Warranty and 

Additional Pressure Testing  
h. Easement and Access Agreements  



i. City of Thornton Farm 64 – Zone 1 Pipeline Project  
ii. Houston – NEWT III (ratify) 
iii. Citizen – NEWT III (ratify) 
iv. Western Heritage – NEWT III (ratify) 
v. Basiliere Easement – Woods Lake Waterline Relocation Project 

(Ratify) 
vi. Bayshore Access Agreement – Longs Peak Recharge Site 

i. Grazing Lease Coalson  

 
7. Discussion: North Weld County Water District 2023 Raw Water Operation Plan 

and Drought Determination  
 

8. Action: Water and Plant Investment Reallocation – Longs Peak Dairy  
 

9. Action: Consider Acceptance of Resolution of Necessity for NEWT III 
Alignment   

 

10. Executive Session: The Board reserves the right to enter into Executive Session 
for the following purposes: Receiving legal advice and discussing matters subject 
to negotiation and strategy pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & (e), C.R.S. related to  
 
 
 

11. District Manager’s Report: (enclosures) 
a. Tap Sales 
b. NWCWD Letter to Town of Ault, Town Not to Dedicate WSSC Share 
c. Letter to Wild wing Development and Town of Timnath Non-Potable 

Operations   
d. Larimer County 1041 Planning Commission and County Commissioners 

Hearings NEWT III Project 
i. Larimer County Planning Commission Recommended Approval 
ii. Larimer County Board of Commissioners Approved 1041 

Application  
e. City of Fort Collins 1041 Regulation Update   

i. City of Fort Collins Approved 1041 Regulations  
f. NWCWD and City of Greeley Harmony Interconnect Construction May 8, 

2023  
g. Stantec Analysis SCFP Expansion to 67 MGD  

 
12. Other Business  

 

 
ADJOURN   P.M. 



 April 10, 2023, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 1 

 MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 Held: Monday, the 10th day of April, 2023, at 8:30 A.M.   

 

 The meeting was conducted via teleconference. 

 

ATTENDANCE The meeting was held in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Colorado. The following directors were in attendance: 

 

 Tad Stout, President 

Matthew Pettinger, Assistant Secretary 

Anne Hennen, Assistant Secretary 

Brad Cook, Treasurer 

 

Scott Cockroft, was absent and excused. 

 

 Also present were Eric Reckentine, General Manager of the 

District; Zachary P. White, Esq., WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA 

& WALDRON, District general counsel; Garrett Mick, North Weld 

County Water District; Richard Raines and Jan Sitterson, Water 

Resources; Loren Eldridge-Looker and Jade Gernant, Tri-Hydro 

Corporation. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

MATTERS 

 

 

Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 8:30 A.M. 

 

Declaration of Quorum and 

Confirmation of Director 

Qualifications 

 

Mr. Stout noted that a quorum for the Board was present and that 

the directors had confirmed their qualification to serve. 

  

Reaffirmation of Disclosures 

of Potential or Existing 

Conflicts of Interest 

Mr. White advised the Board that, pursuant to Colorado law, 

certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official action 

at the meeting. Mr. White reported that disclosures for those 

directors that provided WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & 

WALDRON with notice of potential or existing conflicts of interest, 

if any, were filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the 

Board at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with 

Colorado law, and those disclosures were acknowledged by the 

Board. Mr. White inquired into whether members of the Board 

had any additional disclosures of potential or existing conflicts of 

interest about any matters scheduled for discussion at the meeting. 

All directors reviewed the agenda for the meeting and confirmed 

that they have no additional conflicts of interest in connection with 

any of the matters listed on the agenda.  

 



 April 10, 2023, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 2 

Approval of Agenda Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the agenda for the 

meeting.  Upon motion of Mr. Pettinger, seconded by Ms. 

Hennen, the Board unanimously approved the agenda. 

  

CONSENT AGENDA 

MATTERS 

Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the consent agenda 

items.   

 

Upon motion of Mr. Pettinger, seconded by Ms. Hennen, the 

Board approved the following:  

a.  - Removed 

b. Unaudited Financials for March 2023 

c. Invoices through April 10, 2023 

d. Water Supply and Storage 1 Share Lease to Mr. 

Donaldson, Revegetation of Myers Property  

e. Eaton Pipeline Project Phase 3 Scope of Services Tri-

Hydro 

f. Eaton Pipeline Project Phase 2 Scope of Services Tri-

Hydro 

g. Revised Waiver Valuations Woodlake Water Line 

Relocation 

h. City of Thornton Easement – Longs Peak WSSC 

Recharge Site   

i. NEWT III Pipeline Easement – Western Heritage 

Property Development LLC. 

j. Tanco Tank Repair Contract  

k. Western States Waiver Agreement with City of 

Thornton and NW 

l. Tap, PI and water Allocations Relocation Requests  

i. Hauer 

ii. Gray 

Upon motion of Mr. Pettinger, seconded by Ms. Hennen, the 

Board approved the following, with Mr. Cook abstaining:  

a. Minutes from March 13, 2023, Regular Meeting 

Smart Growth Policies  

 

a. Consider Approval 

Resolution No. 

20230410-01: Resolution 

Adopting a Residential 

Meter Overuse Surcharge 

Policy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Reckentine presented to the Board an updated Residential 

Meter Overuse Surcharge Policy for consideration.  The Board 

discussed whether customers can easily identify whether they are 

considered residential or commercial customers, and the Board 

requested an amendment of the language to better clarify the types 

of taps the policy applies to.  The Board also discussed whether 

the policy should take effect for the current water year, or the next 

water year and determined to have the policy effective starting the 

November 2023 water year.  Upon a motion of Ms. Hennan, 

seconded by Mr. Pettinger, the Board approved the resolution 

subject to revisions discussed in the meeting. 

 



 April 10, 2023, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 3 

b. Consider Approval of 

Notification Letter to 

Customers re Residential 

Meter Over use 

Surcharge Policy 

 

The Board directed Staff to prepare a letter to customers notifying 

them of the policy change. 

DISTRICT MANAGER 

REPORT 

 

a. Tap Sales  

 

b. BPCCC Device 

Installation Non- 

Compliant Notification 

Letter  

 

c. City of Fort Collins 

1041 Comments  
 

 

d. SCWTP Master Plan – 

HDR Selected Contractor  

 

e. CORA Request from 

Fox Rothschild, LLP on 

behalf of Client  

 

 

 

 

 

f. Tank 1, 5 complete and 

7 to be completed mid-

April.  

 

g. Larimer County 1041 

Planning Commission 

and County 

Commissioners Hearings 

NEWT III  

 

h. 2022 CCR Submitted to 

Wholesale Accounts and 

Providers – No Violations  
 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported that zero taps were sold in February. 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported to the Board regarding mailing of 

BPCCC Non-compliance letters. 

 

 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported on the status of 1041 regulations in the 

City of Fort Collins.  It is understood that as drafted, the 

regulations are not likely to impact NEWT III construction. 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported on the status of the SCWTP 

Masterplan.  

 

Mr. Reckentine reported that the District received a CORA 

request from Fox Rothschild, LLP, likely related to commercial 

property at The Ridge.  He reported that pursuant to prior 

direction from the Board, staff is not reviewing new 

developments until the hydraulic model is completed and the 

masterplan is underway.  The Board confirmed the direction to 

staff. 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported to the Board regarding the timing for 

completion of the tank repairs. 

 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported to the Board regarding the upcoming 

hearings at Larimer County re 1041 permit for NEWT III. 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported to the Board regarding 2022 CCR 

submitted to wholesale accounts and providers. 

  



 April 10, 2023, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 4 

OTHER BUSINESS Mr. White updated the Board on the status of the election.  Ballots 

will be returned by May 2, 2023 and counted.  Following the count 

of the ballots, the results will be certified. Until the results are 

certified, only Directors Pettinger and Cockroft will be serving on 

the Board.  The Board agreed to postpone the May meeting until 

after the certification of the election results. 

 

Mr. Stout addressed the Board regarding meeting conduct and 

decorum and encourage civil discourse with each other, 

consultants, and those attending meetings. 

 

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to be conducted, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

 The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes 

of the above-referenced meeting 

 

 

               

     Secretary for the District 

 

 

 



 May 16, 2023, Special Meeting P a g e  | 1 

 MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 Held: Tuesday, the 16th day of May, 2023, at 9:30 A.M.   

 

 The meeting was conducted via teleconference. 

 

ATTENDANCE The meeting was held in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Colorado. The following directors were in attendance: 

 

 Scott Cockroft, Secretary 

Matthew Pettinger, Assistant Secretary 

Anne Hennen, Assistant Secretary 

Nels Nelson, Director 

 

Tad Stout was absent and excused. 

 

 Also present were Eric Reckentine, General Manager of the 

District; Zachary P. White, Esq., WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA 

& WALDRON, District general counsel; Garrett Mick, North Weld 

County Water District; Jamie Cotter, Spencer Fane, District 

special counsel. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

MATTERS 

 

 

Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 9:30 A.M. 

 

Declaration of Quorum and 

Confirmation of Director 

Qualifications 

 

Mr. Stout noted that a quorum for the Board was present and that 

the directors had confirmed their qualification to serve. 

  

Reaffirmation of Disclosures 

of Potential or Existing 

Conflicts of Interest 

Mr. White advised the Board that, pursuant to Colorado law, 

certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official action 

at the meeting. Mr. White reported that disclosures for those 

directors that provided WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & 

WALDRON with notice of potential or existing conflicts of interest, 

if any, were filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the 

Board at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with 

Colorado law, and those disclosures were acknowledged by the 

Board. Mr. White inquired into whether members of the Board 

had any additional disclosures of potential or existing conflicts of 

interest about any matters scheduled for discussion at the meeting. 

All directors reviewed the agenda for the meeting and confirmed 

that they have no additional conflicts of interest in connection with 

any of the matters listed on the agenda.  

 



 May 16, 2023, Special Meeting P a g e  | 2 

Approval of Agenda Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the agenda for the 

meeting.  Upon motion of Mr. Pettinger, seconded by Ms. 

Hennen, the Board unanimously approved the agenda. 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

None. 

Discussion of Order re Case 

No. 2022CV30072 Eagle 

View Farms, LLC v. North 

Weld County Water District 

and Consider Approval for 

Notice of Appeal 

 

Ms. Cotter updated the Board regarding the Order Granting 

Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment Regarding Liability 

and Denying Defendant’s Motion received on May 12, 2023.  

She explained the current status of the litigation and discussed 

the upcoming trial date regarding damages.  She discussed the 

option to appeal the Order. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Upon a motion by Mr. Cockroft, seconded by Mr. Pettinger, the 

Board unanimously determined to enter into executive session for 

the purpose of receiving legal advice and discussing matters 

subject to negotiation and strategy pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & 

(e), C.R.S. related to Case No. 2022CV30072 Eagle View Farms, 

LLC v. North Weld County Water District. 

 

Following the executive session, upon a motion by Mr. Pettinger, 

seconded by Mr. Cockroft, the Board directed Ms. Cotter to file a 

notice of appeal immediately and to pursue an appeal of the Order. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS  

 

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to be conducted, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

 The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes 

of the above-referenced meeting 

 

 

               

     Secretary for the District 

 

 



 May 16, 2023, Special Meeting P a g e  | 3 

Attorney Statement 

Regarding Privileged Attorney-Client Communication 

 

Pursuant to § 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), C.R.S., I attest that in my 

capacity as the attorney representing the North Weld County Water 

District (the “District”), I attended the Executive Session on May 16, 

2023, for the sole purposes of conferencing with the District’s Board 

of Directors for the purpose of giving legal advice on specific legal 

questions and discussing negotiations with third parties as authorized 

by §§ 24-6-402(4)(b) and (e), C.R.S. I further attest that it is my 

opinion that all or a portion of the executive session discussion 

constituted attorney-client privileged communication as provided by 

§ 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S., and based on that opinion, no further record, 

written or electronic, was kept or required to be kept pursuant to § 24-

6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), C.R.S. 

 

 

         

Zachary P. White, Esq. 

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

General Counsel to the District 

 



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
April 30, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets
1014 - BANK OF COLORADO $ 2,041,511.35
1015 - COLO TRUST - GENERAL 10,670,056.48
1017 - COLO TRUST- RRR 265,563.25
1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND 2,208,804.98
1020 - COLO TRUST - 2022 BOND 38,946,819.94
1030 - CASH DRAWER 200.00
1035 - CONTRA CASH RESERVE (1,705,883.00)
1050 - CASH RESERVE (CWRPDA) 1,705,883.00
1100 - AR WATER (DRIP) 1,602,376.74
1105 - AR CONSTRUCTION METERS 45,745.28
1116 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 15,102.29
1230 - PREPAID INSURANCE 51,671.30
1300 - INVENTORY 1,930,623.30

Total Current Assets 57,778,474.91

Property and Equipment
1220 - LAND BUILDING SITE 541,875.18
1222 - CSU DRYING BEDS 28,612.00
1225 - LAND & EASEMENTS 2,577,384.19
1405 - WATER RIGHTS OWNED 95,122,451.44
1407 - WATER STORAGE 6,155,513.62
1415 - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 2,389,048.51
1416 - DEPREC -  MACH & EQUIP (1,822,316.91)
1420 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT 52,720.33
1421 - DEPREC - OFFICE EQUIP (52,720.11)
1425 - PIPELINES 74,192,485.87
1426 - DEPREC - PIPELINES (25,088,803.91)
1430 - STORAGE TANKS 2,689,338.13
1431 - DEPREC - STORAGE TANKS (1,545,497.07)
1432 - MASTER METERS 689,854.53
1433 - DEPREC MASTER METERS (54,718.43)
1435 - PUMP STATIONS 5,687,716.34
1436 - DEPREC -  PUMP STATIONS (2,619,270.54)
1437 - FILL STATION 15,555.00
1438 - DEPREC - FILL STATION (3,888.75)
1440 - PAVING 25,500.20
1441 - DEPREC - PAVING (25,499.80)
1445 - OFFICE BUILDING 1,667,567.41
1446 - DEPREC - BUILDING (526,487.01)
1454 - CONSTRUCT IN PROGRESS 22,713.40

Total Property and Equipment 160,119,133.62

Other Assets
1457 - FILTER PLANT EQUITY 22,849,610.70
1464 - BOND INSURANCE 1,841.00
1466 - Bond Cst of Issue '19 188,070.00

Total Other Assets 23,039,521.70

Total Assets $ 240,937,130.23

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
2215 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLES $ 382,195.82
2216 - CONST MTR DEPOSITS 124,124.94

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
April 30, 2023

2230 - ACCRUED WAGES 118,253.00
2231 - ACCRUED COMP ABSENCES 150,013.12
2232 - ACCRUED INTEREST 117,662.50

Total Current Liabilities 892,249.38

Long-Term Liabilities
2220 - CURT PRT/ LONGTERM DEBT 5,000.00
2221 - 2012 BONDS PAYABLE 3,090,000.00
2222 - 2019 Bond Payable 16,160,000.00
2223 - Bond  Premium '19 777,042.00
2224 - 2020 BOND PAYABLE 3,450,000.00
2228 - NET PREM/DISCT '12 BOND 26,465.00
2229 - PREMIUM ON 2009A LOAN 52,732.00

Total Long-Term Liabilities 23,561,239.00

Total Liabilities 24,453,488.38

Capital
2800 - RETAINED EARNINGS 228,137,022.20
Net Income (11,653,380.35)

Total Capital 216,483,641.85

Total Liabilities & Capital $ 240,937,130.23

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FOUR MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

REVENUES
3110 - METERED SALES $ 849,010.14 $ 3,459,090.21 $ 12,215,468.00 8,756,377.79 28.32
3111 - WATER ALLOC SURCHARGE 416,244.00 1,475,994.00 3,490,134.00 2,014,140.00 42.29
3112 - PLANT INVEST SURCHARGE 277,760.05 715,337.10 2,268,587.00 1,553,249.90 31.53
3113 - ADJUSTMENTS 750.65 (5,151.88) 0.00 5,151.88 0.00
3140 - CONST METER USAGE 19,874.93 43,273.52 209,100.00 165,826.48 20.70
3141 - CONSTR METER RENTAL 1,395.00 4,550.00 5,610.00 1,060.00 81.11
3142 - CONSTRUCT METER REPAIR 3,392.59 9,483.04 560.00 (8,923.04) 1,693.40

OPERATING 1,568,427.36 5,702,575.99 18,189,459.00 12,486,883.01 31.35

3210 INTEREST-COTRUST-GENERAL 202,959.64 812,349.88 130,384.00 (681,965.88) 623.04
3220 - PORT PARTONAGE AGFINITY 0.00 654.93 828.00 173.07 79.10

NON OPERATING 202,959.64 813,004.81 131,212.00 (681,792.81) 619.61

3310 - TAP (PI) FEES 40,500.00 40,500.00 3,000,000.00 2,959,500.00 1.35
3311 - DISTANCE FEES 4,200.00 4,200.00 176,653.00 172,453.00 2.38
3312 - WATER (ALLOCATION) FEE 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 0.00
3314 - INSTALLATION FEES 4,200.00 4,200.00 331,224.00 327,024.00 1.27
3315 - METER  RELOCATION FEE 0.00 0.00 1,656.00 1,656.00 0.00
3316 - LINE EXTENSION FEE 0.00 0.00 153,000.00 153,000.00 0.00
3320 - NON-POTABLE TAP FEE 0.00 0.00 49,684.00 49,684.00 0.00
3321 - NON-POTABLE INSTALL 0.00 0.00 22,082.00 22,082.00 0.00
3330 - COMMITMENT LETTER FEE 0.00 0.00 828.00 828.00 0.00
3331 - REVIEW FEE 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
3340 - INSPECTION FEE 0.00 0.00 137,077.00 137,077.00 0.00

NEW SERVICE 48,900.00 48,900.00 4,174,964.00 4,126,064.00 1.17

3410 - WATER RENTAL 0.00 0.00 18,207.00 18,207.00 0.00

AG WATER 0.00 0.00 18,207.00 18,207.00 0.00

3500 - MISCELLANEOUS 1,462.90 39,243.04 0.00 (39,243.04) 0.00
3510 - CAR TIME 0.00 0.00 9,937.00 9,937.00 0.00
3520 - TRANSFER FEES 300.00 1,725.00 5,520.00 3,795.00 31.25
3530 - RISE TOWER RENT 300.00 1,200.00 8,060.00 6,860.00 14.89
3540 - SAFETY GRANT (CSD) 0.00 0.00 12,145.00 12,145.00 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 2,062.90 42,168.04 35,662.00 (6,506.04) 118.24

3600 - FARM INCOME 0.00 0.00 (9,385.00) (9,385.00) 0.00
3610 - MINERAL/OIL/GAS RIGHTS (131,544.87) (131,544.87) (64,946.00) 66,598.87 202.54
3640 - EQUIPMENT/VEHICLE SALE 0.00 0.00 (552.00) (552.00) 0.00

FARM INCOME 131,544.87 131,544.87 74,883.00 (56,661.87) 175.67

DEBT PROCEEDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 2

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FOUR MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

TOTAL REVENUES 1,953,894.77 6,738,193.71 22,624,387.00 15,886,193.29 29.78

OPERATING EXPENSE
4110 - POTABLE WATER 305.17 974,537.93 3,224,486.36 2,249,948.43 30.22
4130 - CARRYOVER 0.00 0.00 91,239.03 91,239.03 0.00
4140 - WINTER WATER 0.00 0.00 5,630.81 5,630.81 0.00
4150 - ASSESSMENTS 58,055.63 490,479.81 463,615.14 (26,864.67) 105.79
4160 - RULE 11 FEES 0.00 0.00 65,040.00 65,040.00 0.00
4170 - WATER QUALITY - TESTING 520.00 3,695.00 14,000.00 10,305.00 26.39

WATER (58,880.80) (1,468,712.74) (3,864,011.34) (2,395,298.60) 38.01

4210 - SALARIES, FIELD 98,798.81 430,019.42 1,527,998.00 1,097,978.58 28.14
4220 - SALARIES, ENGINEERING 10,691.26 41,700.02 189,998.66 148,298.64 21.95
4240 - INSURANCE HEALTH 7,147.34 60,873.55 193,471.00 132,597.45 31.46
4250 - RETIREMENT 7,163.36 27,126.94 84,313.00 57,186.06 32.17
4260 - AWARDS 0.00 0.00 1,358.00 1,358.00 0.00
4270 - UNIFORMS 0.00 5,353.91 6,500.00 1,146.09 82.37
4280 - MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 1,131.00 1,131.00 0.00
4290 - CAR TIME 0.00 0.00 10,183.00 10,183.00 0.00

PERSONNEL OPERATIONS (123,800.77) (565,073.84) (2,014,952.66) (1,449,878.82) 28.04

4410 - FIELD 3,277.22 14,510.45 0.00 (14,510.45) 0.00
4411 - LOCATES 0.00 2,912.82 15,501.00 12,588.18 18.79
4412 - FARM PROPERTIES 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
4413 - SITE MAINTENANCE ANNUAL 0.00 0.00 5,698.00 5,698.00 0.00
4414 - CONSTRUCTION METER 0.00 7,219.71 0.00 (7,219.71) 0.00
4415 - WATER LINES (REPAIRS) 18,291.46 146,037.38 50,000.00 (96,037.38) 292.07
4416 - APPURTENANCE(REPAIR) 258.12 4,851.03 0.00 (4,851.03) 0.00
4417 - METER SETTING 0.00 19,600.44 600,000.00 580,399.56 3.27
4418 - MASTER METERS 0.00 18,245.90 5,000.00 (13,245.90) 364.92
4419 - SERVICE WORK 953.86 29,689.27 0.00 (29,689.27) 0.00
4420 - STORAGE TANKS (O & M) 131.44 11,348.44 0.00 (11,348.44) 0.00
4430 - PUMP STATIONS (O & M) 1,103.88 16,995.36 0.00 (16,995.36) 0.00
4435 - CHLORINE STATION 0.00 365.37 0.00 (365.37) 0.00
4440 - EQUIPMENT 679.23 12,053.20 205,000.00 192,946.80 5.88
4445 - SCADA EQUIPMENT 210.00 289.50 0.00 (289.50) 0.00
4450 - SHOP/YARD 5,198.74 45,572.71 0.00 (45,572.71) 0.00
4460 - VEHICLES 7,953.38 53,561.69 102,000.00 48,438.31 52.51
4470 - SAFETY 190.00 6,300.00 0.00 (6,300.00) 0.00
4480 - CONTROL VAULTS 0.00 1,173.80 29,226.00 28,052.20 4.02
4490 - MAPPING EXPENSE 4,514.25 16,614.25 39,968.00 23,353.75 41.57

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE (42,761.58) (407,341.32) (1,055,153.00) (647,811.68) 38.60

4500 - ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00

ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 (50,000.00) (50,000.00) 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 3

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FOUR MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

4600 - ELECTRICITY 14,507.15 67,287.95 181,100.00 113,812.05 37.16

ELECTRICITY (14,507.15) (67,287.95) (181,100.00) (113,812.05) 37.16

4700 - COMMUNICATIONS 100.29 401.11 0.00 (401.11) 0.00

COMMUNICATIONS (100.29) (401.11) 0.00 401.11 0.00

4810 - GENERAL 2,943.51 11,774.04 0.00 (11,774.04) 0.00
4820 - AUTO 968.45 5,584.80 0.00 (5,584.80) 0.00
4830 - WORKER'S COMP 2,546.96 14,752.84 0.00 (14,752.84) 0.00

INSURANCE (6,458.92) (32,111.68) 0.00 32,111.68 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 246,509.51 2,540,928.64 7,165,217.00 4,624,288.36 35.46

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
5110 - OFFICE 41,395.17 163,690.93 932,658.00 768,967.07 17.55

SALARIES 41,395.17 163,690.93 932,658.00 768,967.07 17.55

5210 - FICA 11,627.06 50,359.63 130,000.00 79,640.37 38.74
5220 - UNEMPLOYMENT 0.00 1,134.35 4,968.00 3,833.65 22.83

PAYROLL TAXES 11,627.06 51,493.98 134,968.00 83,474.02 38.15

5300 - HEALTH INSURANCE 0.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00
5310 - ADMIN HEALTH INSURANCE 968.39 14,060.67 0.00 (14,060.67) 0.00

HEALTH INSURANCE 968.39 14,060.67 60,000.00 45,939.33 23.43

5400 - OFFICE UTILITIES 0.00 812.53 0.00 (812.53) 0.00
5401 - ELECTRICITY 753.76 2,452.25 10,000.00 7,547.75 24.52
5402 - PROPANE 0.00 6,094.62 7,000.00 905.38 87.07
5403 - TELEPHONE 2,032.02 8,062.91 23,000.00 14,937.09 35.06
5404 - CELL PHONE SERVICE 3,260.98 6,653.51 20,000.00 13,346.49 33.27
5405 - CELL PHONE ACCESSORIES 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00
5406 - OFFICE CLEANING SERVICE 1,360.00 5,780.00 20,000.00 14,220.00 28.90
5407 - INTERNET 0.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 0.00
5409 - SECURITY CAMERAS 1,625.00 6,500.00 0.00 (6,500.00) 0.00
5410 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT 0.00 135.45 0.00 (135.45) 0.00
5412 - PRINTERS 670.35 1,149.40 0.00 (1,149.40) 0.00
5413 - FURNITURE 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
5440 - COMPUTER 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
5441 - COMPUTER SUPPORT 5,598.50 22,626.06 66,245.00 43,618.94 34.16
5443 - SOFTWARE 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00
5444 - LICENSES (ANNUAL) 0.00 14,465.45 30,000.00 15,534.55 48.22
5445 - SENSUS METER SUPPORT 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 4

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FOUR MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

OFFICE UTILITIES 15,300.61 74,732.18 191,105.00 116,372.82 39.11

5510 - OFFICE EXPENSES 9,932.60 57,629.35 175,107.00 117,477.65 32.91
5520 - POSTAGE 524.22 649.74 3,312.00 2,662.26 19.62
5530 - BANK / CREDIT CARD FEES 3,449.10 14,193.73 5,520.00 (8,673.73) 257.13
5540 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE 4,125.68 40,481.27 1,104.00 (39,377.27) 3,666.78
5560 - PRINTING 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
5580 - DUES & REGISTRATION 0.00 50.00 3,312.00 3,262.00 1.51
5590 - TRAINING 0.00 100.00 8,833.00 8,733.00 1.13

OFFICE EXPENSE 18,031.60 113,104.09 199,948.00 86,843.91 56.57

5610 - LEGAL 103,124.75 280,702.24 357,000.00 76,297.76 78.63
5620 - ACCOUNTING 1,900.00 27,975.00 50,000.00 22,025.00 55.95
5630 - WATER TRANSFER FEES 0.00 3,016.58 100.00 (2,916.58) 3,016.58
5640 - MAPPING - NORTHLINE 0.00 0.00 700.00 700.00 0.00
5650 - CONSULTANT FEES 0.00 12,510.00 204,000.00 191,490.00 6.13
5660 - MEMBERSHIP FEES 0.00 35,638.55 9,022.00 (26,616.55) 395.02
5680 - LAND ACQUISITION 5,647.51 47,295.82 0.00 (47,295.82) 0.00

PROFESSIONAL FEES 110,672.26 407,138.19 620,822.00 213,683.81 65.58

5900 - MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 7,729.00 7,729.00 0.00
5920 - FIRE MITIGATION GRANT 0.00 17,382.97 0.00 (17,382.97) 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 17,382.97 7,729.00 (9,653.97) 224.91

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 197,995.09 841,603.01 2,147,230.00 1,305,626.99 39.19

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
6100 - SOLDIER CANYON 0.00 0.00 312,000.00 312,000.00 0.00

SOLDIER CANYON 0.00 0.00 312,000.00 312,000.00 0.00

6200 - STORAGE TANKS 274,480.00 573,150.48 1,600,000.00 1,026,849.52 35.82

STORAGE TANKS 274,480.00 573,150.48 1,600,000.00 1,026,849.52 35.82

6300 - PUMP STATIONS 36,544.00 96,868.01 0.00 (96,868.01) 0.00

PUMP STATIONS 36,544.00 96,868.01 0.00 (96,868.01) 0.00

6400 - EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 25,700.00 25,700.00 0.00
6410 - VEHICLES 0.00 144,345.42 142,000.00 (2,345.42) 101.65
6420 - TRENCH BOX 0.00 204.02 0.00 (204.02) 0.00

EQUIPMENT 0.00 144,549.44 167,700.00 23,150.56 86.20

6505 - ENGINEERING 178,075.73 551,940.00 300,000.00 (251,940.00) 183.98
6510 - WATER LINES 49,700.00 4,771,053.49 15,200,000.00 10,428,946.51 31.39

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 5

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FOUR MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

6515 - METER UPGRADES 0.00 0.00 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.00
6540 - AWIA & GENERATORS 0.00 0.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 0.00
6545 - SCADA EQUIPMENT 13,501.00 13,501.00 0.00 (13,501.00) 0.00

SYSTEM 241,276.73 5,336,494.49 16,090,000.00 10,753,505.51 33.17

6610 - WATER RESOURCE MANAGER 0.00 118,239.57 0.00 (118,239.57) 0.00
6615 - GRAVEL PITS 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00
6620 - WATER RIGHTS 0.00 6,990,000.00 9,000,000.00 2,010,000.00 77.67
6630 - LEGAL (WRM) 4,312.50 16,299.12 310,000.00 293,700.88 5.26
6640 - STORAGE 31,639.05 78,715.66 0.00 (78,715.66) 0.00

WATER RIGHTS 35,951.55 7,203,254.35 9,710,000.00 2,506,745.65 74.18

6710 - EASEMENTS 0.00 244,194.05 165,000.00 (79,194.05) 148.00
6720 - LAND 0.00 0.00 190,000.00 190,000.00 0.00
6730 - SURVEYING 1,324.00 8,361.50 5,000.00 (3,361.50) 167.23

LAND/EASEMENTS 1,324.00 252,555.55 360,000.00 107,444.45 70.15

BUILDING/PAVING 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

OFFICE EQUIPMENT/MISC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 589,576.28 13,606,872.32 28,239,700.00 14,632,827.68 48.18

BONDS

BOND ISSUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7250 - PLANT EXPANSION 0.00 0.00 1,231,000.00 1,231,000.00 0.00
7290 - 2012R NW 1054 39,375.00 39,375.00 1,590,000.00 1,550,625.00 2.48
7292 - TRANSFER TO ENTERPRISE 34,312.50 34,312.50 0.00 (34,312.50) 0.00
7295 - 2019 BOND - NORT519WERB 279,300.00 279,300.00 0.00 (279,300.00) 0.00
7296 - 2020 BOND - WATER ENT 0.00 0.00 473,288.00 473,288.00 0.00
7297 - 2022 BOND 1,049,454.59 1,049,454.59 1,833,000.00 783,545.41 57.25

PRINCIPLE 1,402,442.09 1,402,442.09 5,127,288.00 3,724,845.91 27.35

INTEREST EXPENSE OTHER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BONDS (1,402,442.09) (1,402,442.09) (5,127,288.00) (3,724,845.91) 27.35

DEPRECIATION & AMORT EXPENSES

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 6

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FOUR MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

DEPRECIATION & AMORT EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL REVENUES 1,953,894.77 6,738,465.71 22,624,387.00 15,885,921.29 29.78
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,436,522.97 18,391,846.06 42,679,435.00 24,287,588.94 43.09

PROFIT/LOSS (482,628.20) (11,653,380.35) (20,055,048.00) (8,401,667.65) 58.11

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



5/11/23 at 13:51:49.43 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Apr 30, 2023
1014 - 1014 - BANK OF COLORADO
Bank Statement Date: April 30, 2023

Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 2,022,503.80

Add: Cash Receipts 207,582.60

Less: Cash Disbursements (1,361,860.07)

Add (Less) Other 1,173,285.02

Ending GL Balance 2,041,511.35

Ending Bank Balance 2,453,005.03

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks
Jul 11, 2022 16682 (24,198.75)
Nov 18, 2022 17106 (227.65)
Feb 8, 2023 17343 (37,789.84)
Mar 23, 2023 17495 (487.72)
Mar 27, 2023 17515 (211.20)
Mar 31, 2023 17536 (7,350.00)
Apr 5, 2023 17541 (50.34)
Apr 5, 2023 17545 (25.00)
Apr 6, 2023 17556 (274,480.00)
Apr 10, 2023 17565 (4,435.35)
Apr 10, 2023 17567 (6,480.00)
Apr 11, 2023 17576 (323.00)
Apr 12, 2023 17582 (452.84)
Apr 13, 2023 17586 (12,517.64)
Apr 13, 2023 17588 (2,284.69)
Apr 13, 2023 17592 (9,407.65)
Apr 13, 2023 17595 (5,961.00)
Apr 13, 2023 17597 (4,514.25)
Apr 13, 2023 17602 (4,470.95)
Apr 28, 2023 17606 (1,945.44)
Apr 28, 2023 17607 (1,062.94)
Apr 28, 2023 17608 (25,678.05)

Total outstanding checks (424,354.30)

Add (Less) Other
Apr 27, 2023 CC0427 652.32
Apr 28, 2023 CC0428 6,492.77
Apr 29, 2023 CC0429 1,604.41
Apr 30, 2023 CC0430 3,011.90
Apr 27, 2023 CCIH0419 642.03
Apr 28, 2023 CCIH0420 414.75
Apr 28, 2023 MARS0419 42.44

Total other 12,860.62

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 2,041,511.35



5/10/23 at 13:29:00.31 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Apr 30, 2023
1015 - 1015 - COLO TRUST - GENERAL

Bank Statement Date: April 30, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 12,027,484.11

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other (1,357,427.63)

Ending GL Balance 10,670,056.48

Ending Bank Balance 10,670,056.48

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 10,670,056.48



5/10/23 at 13:34:14.53 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Apr 30, 2023
1019 - 1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND

Bank Statement Date: April 30, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 2,200,328.14

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 8,476.84

Ending GL Balance 2,208,804.98

Ending Bank Balance 2,208,804.98

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 2,208,804.98



5/10/23 at 13:39:40.89 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Apr 30, 2023
1020 - 1020 - COLO TRUST - 2022 BOND

Bank Statement Date: April 30, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 38,797,351.60

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 149,468.34

Ending GL Balance 38,946,819.94

Ending Bank Balance 38,946,819.94

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 38,946,819.94



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
May 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets
1014 - BANK OF COLORADO $ 2,891,099.97
1015 - COLO TRUST - GENERAL 10,715,344.23
1017 - COLO TRUST- RRR 265,563.25
1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND 2,217,952.31
1020 - COLO TRUST - 2022 BOND 39,108,110.66
1030 - CASH DRAWER 200.00
1035 - CONTRA CASH RESERVE (1,705,883.00)
1050 - CASH RESERVE (CWRPDA) 1,705,883.00
1100 - AR WATER (DRIP) 1,807,838.43
1105 - AR CONSTRUCTION METERS 42,257.90
1116 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22,616.28
1230 - PREPAID INSURANCE 45,212.38
1300 - INVENTORY 1,928,742.11

Total Current Assets 59,044,937.52

Property and Equipment
1220 - LAND BUILDING SITE 541,875.18
1222 - CSU DRYING BEDS 28,612.00
1225 - LAND & EASEMENTS 2,577,384.19
1405 - WATER RIGHTS OWNED 95,122,451.44
1407 - WATER STORAGE 6,155,513.62
1415 - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 2,389,048.51
1416 - DEPREC -  MACH & EQUIP (1,822,316.91)
1420 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT 52,720.33
1421 - DEPREC - OFFICE EQUIP (52,720.11)
1425 - PIPELINES 74,192,485.87
1426 - DEPREC - PIPELINES (25,088,803.91)
1430 - STORAGE TANKS 2,689,338.13
1431 - DEPREC - STORAGE TANKS (1,545,497.07)
1432 - MASTER METERS 689,854.53
1433 - DEPREC MASTER METERS (54,718.43)
1435 - PUMP STATIONS 5,687,716.34
1436 - DEPREC -  PUMP STATIONS (2,619,270.54)
1437 - FILL STATION 15,555.00
1438 - DEPREC - FILL STATION (3,888.75)
1440 - PAVING 25,500.20
1441 - DEPREC - PAVING (25,499.80)
1445 - OFFICE BUILDING 1,667,567.41
1446 - DEPREC - BUILDING (526,487.01)
1454 - CONSTRUCT IN PROGRESS 22,713.40

Total Property and Equipment 160,119,133.62

Other Assets
1457 - FILTER PLANT EQUITY 22,849,610.70
1464 - BOND INSURANCE 1,841.00
1466 - Bond Cst of Issue '19 188,070.00

Total Other Assets 23,039,521.70

Total Assets $ 242,203,592.84

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
2215 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLES $ 45,329.46
2216 - CONST MTR DEPOSITS 125,224.94

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
May 31, 2023

2230 - ACCRUED WAGES 118,253.00
2231 - ACCRUED COMP ABSENCES 150,013.12
2232 - ACCRUED INTEREST 117,662.50

Total Current Liabilities 556,483.02

Long-Term Liabilities
2220 - CURT PRT/ LONGTERM DEBT 5,000.00
2221 - 2012 BONDS PAYABLE 3,090,000.00
2222 - 2019 Bond Payable 16,160,000.00
2223 - Bond  Premium '19 777,042.00
2224 - 2020 BOND PAYABLE 3,450,000.00
2228 - NET PREM/DISCT '12 BOND 26,465.00
2229 - PREMIUM ON 2009A LOAN 52,732.00

Total Long-Term Liabilities 23,561,239.00

Total Liabilities 24,117,722.02

Capital
2800 - RETAINED EARNINGS 228,137,022.20
Net Income (10,051,151.38)

Total Capital 218,085,870.82

Total Liabilities & Capital $ 242,203,592.84

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

REVENUES
3110 - METERED SALES $ 984,665.24 $ 4,443,755.45 $ 12,215,468.00 7,771,712.55 36.38
3111 - WATER ALLOC SURCHARGE 447,090.00 1,923,084.00 3,490,134.00 1,567,050.00 55.10
3112 - PLANT INVEST SURCHARGE 295,546.90 1,010,884.00 2,268,587.00 1,257,703.00 44.56
3113 - ADJUSTMENTS (433.03) (5,678.89) 0.00 5,678.89 0.00
3140 - CONST METER USAGE 28,774.62 72,048.14 209,100.00 137,051.86 34.46
3141 - CONSTR METER RENTAL 1,500.00 6,050.00 5,610.00 (440.00) 107.84
3142 - CONSTRUCT METER REPAIR 1,008.01 10,491.05 560.00 (9,931.05) 1,873.40

OPERATING 1,758,151.74 7,460,633.75 18,189,459.00 10,728,825.25 41.02

3210 INTEREST-COTRUST-GENERAL 215,725.80 1,028,075.68 130,384.00 (897,691.68) 788.50
3220 - PORT PARTONAGE AGFINITY 0.00 654.93 828.00 173.07 79.10

NON OPERATING 215,725.80 1,028,730.61 131,212.00 (897,518.61) 784.02

3310 - TAP (PI) FEES 846,750.00 887,250.00 3,000,000.00 2,112,750.00 29.58
3311 - DISTANCE FEES 103,650.00 107,850.00 176,653.00 68,803.00 61.05
3312 - WATER (ALLOCATION) FEE 78,000.00 78,000.00 300,000.00 222,000.00 26.00
3314 - INSTALLATION FEES 99,500.00 103,700.00 331,224.00 227,524.00 31.31
3315 - METER  RELOCATION FEE 4,400.00 4,400.00 1,656.00 (2,744.00) 265.70
3316 - LINE EXTENSION FEE 0.00 0.00 153,000.00 153,000.00 0.00
3320 - NON-POTABLE TAP FEE 5,000.00 5,000.00 49,684.00 44,684.00 10.06
3321 - NON-POTABLE INSTALL 5,200.00 5,200.00 22,082.00 16,882.00 23.55
3330 - COMMITMENT LETTER FEE 0.00 0.00 828.00 828.00 0.00
3331 - REVIEW FEE 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
3340 - INSPECTION FEE 0.00 0.00 137,077.00 137,077.00 0.00

NEW SERVICE 1,142,500.00 1,191,400.00 4,174,964.00 2,983,564.00 28.54

3410 - WATER RENTAL 15,898.50 15,898.50 18,207.00 2,308.50 87.32

AG WATER 15,898.50 15,898.50 18,207.00 2,308.50 87.32

3500 - MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 39,243.04 0.00 (39,243.04) 0.00
3510 - CAR TIME 0.00 0.00 9,937.00 9,937.00 0.00
3520 - TRANSFER FEES 675.00 2,400.00 5,520.00 3,120.00 43.48
3530 - RISE TOWER RENT 300.00 1,500.00 8,060.00 6,560.00 18.61
3540 - SAFETY GRANT (CSD) 0.00 0.00 12,145.00 12,145.00 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 975.00 43,143.04 35,662.00 (7,481.04) 120.98

3600 - FARM INCOME 0.00 0.00 (9,385.00) (9,385.00) 0.00
3610 - MINERAL/OIL/GAS RIGHTS (177.84) (131,722.71) (64,946.00) 66,776.71 202.82
3640 - EQUIPMENT/VEHICLE SALE 0.00 0.00 (552.00) (552.00) 0.00

FARM INCOME 177.84 131,722.71 74,883.00 (56,839.71) 175.90

DEBT PROCEEDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 2

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

TOTAL REVENUES 3,133,428.88 9,871,528.61 22,624,387.00 12,752,858.39 43.63

OPERATING EXPENSE
4110 - POTABLE WATER 259.55 1,361,734.96 3,224,486.36 1,862,751.40 42.23
4120 - RENTAL WATER (11,375.00) (11,375.00) 0.00 11,375.00 0.00
4130 - CARRYOVER 0.00 0.00 91,239.03 91,239.03 0.00
4140 - WINTER WATER 0.00 0.00 5,630.81 5,630.81 0.00
4150 - ASSESSMENTS 50.00 491,429.96 463,615.14 (27,814.82) 106.00
4160 - RULE 11 FEES 0.00 0.00 65,040.00 65,040.00 0.00
4170 - WATER QUALITY - TESTING 1,361.00 5,755.00 14,000.00 8,245.00 41.11

WATER 9,704.45 (1,847,544.92) (3,864,011.34) (2,016,466.42) 47.81

4210 - SALARIES, FIELD 110,525.34 540,544.76 1,527,998.00 987,453.24 35.38
4220 - SALARIES, ENGINEERING 10,038.36 51,738.38 189,998.66 138,260.28 27.23
4240 - INSURANCE HEALTH 17,236.03 78,109.58 193,471.00 115,361.42 40.37
4250 - RETIREMENT 7,163.36 34,290.30 84,313.00 50,022.70 40.67
4260 - AWARDS 0.00 0.00 1,358.00 1,358.00 0.00
4270 - UNIFORMS (654.96) 4,698.95 6,500.00 1,801.05 72.29
4280 - MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 1,131.00 1,131.00 0.00
4290 - CAR TIME 0.00 0.00 10,183.00 10,183.00 0.00

PERSONNEL OPERATIONS (144,308.13) (709,381.97) (2,014,952.66) (1,305,570.69) 35.21

4410 - FIELD 1,931.36 19,583.97 0.00 (19,583.97) 0.00
4411 - LOCATES 1,720.86 5,932.71 15,501.00 9,568.29 38.27
4412 - FARM PROPERTIES 14,761.36 14,761.36 2,760.00 (12,001.36) 534.83
4413 - SITE MAINTENANCE ANNUAL 3,090.64 3,090.64 5,698.00 2,607.36 54.24
4414 - CONSTRUCTION METER 0.00 10,421.32 0.00 (10,421.32) 0.00
4415 - WATER LINES (REPAIRS) 4,054.50 153,169.80 50,000.00 (103,169.80) 306.34
4416 - APPURTENANCE(REPAIR) 15,233.55 20,844.29 0.00 (20,844.29) 0.00
4417 - METER SETTING 0.00 27,780.42 600,000.00 572,219.58 4.63
4418 - MASTER METERS 0.00 18,245.90 5,000.00 (13,245.90) 364.92
4419 - SERVICE WORK 0.00 42,890.54 0.00 (42,890.54) 0.00
4420 - STORAGE TANKS (O & M) 0.00 11,372.44 0.00 (11,372.44) 0.00
4430 - PUMP STATIONS (O & M) 7,429.46 24,424.82 0.00 (24,424.82) 0.00
4435 - CHLORINE STATION 0.00 365.37 0.00 (365.37) 0.00
4440 - EQUIPMENT 3,526.66 18,167.22 205,000.00 186,832.78 8.86
4445 - SCADA EQUIPMENT 0.00 289.50 0.00 (289.50) 0.00
4450 - SHOP/YARD 2,730.77 49,940.95 0.00 (49,940.95) 0.00
4460 - VEHICLES 7,101.16 70,718.01 102,000.00 31,281.99 69.33
4470 - SAFETY 685.57 6,985.57 0.00 (6,985.57) 0.00
4480 - CONTROL VAULTS 0.00 1,295.15 29,226.00 27,930.85 4.43
4490 - MAPPING EXPENSE 5,466.00 22,080.25 39,968.00 17,887.75 55.24

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE (67,731.89) (522,360.23) (1,055,153.00) (532,792.77) 49.51

4500 - ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00

ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 (50,000.00) (50,000.00) 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 3

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

4600 - ELECTRICITY 14,452.66 81,740.61 181,100.00 99,359.39 45.14
4640 - METER VAULTS 9,009.75 9,009.75 0.00 (9,009.75) 0.00

ELECTRICITY (23,462.41) (90,750.36) (181,100.00) (90,349.64) 50.11

4700 - COMMUNICATIONS 100.26 501.37 0.00 (501.37) 0.00

COMMUNICATIONS (100.26) (501.37) 0.00 501.37 0.00

4810 - GENERAL 2,943.51 14,717.55 0.00 (14,717.55) 0.00
4820 - AUTO 968.45 6,553.25 0.00 (6,553.25) 0.00
4830 - WORKER'S COMP 2,546.96 17,299.80 0.00 (17,299.80) 0.00

INSURANCE (6,458.92) (38,570.60) 0.00 38,570.60 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 232,357.16 3,209,109.45 7,165,217.00 3,956,107.55 44.79

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
5110 - OFFICE 41,007.18 204,698.11 932,658.00 727,959.89 21.95

SALARIES 41,007.18 204,698.11 932,658.00 727,959.89 21.95

5210 - FICA 12,368.20 62,727.83 130,000.00 67,272.17 48.25
5220 - UNEMPLOYMENT 0.00 1,134.35 4,968.00 3,833.65 22.83

PAYROLL TAXES 12,368.20 63,862.18 134,968.00 71,105.82 47.32

5300 - HEALTH INSURANCE 0.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00
5310 - ADMIN HEALTH INSURANCE 4,358.39 18,419.06 0.00 (18,419.06) 0.00

HEALTH INSURANCE 4,358.39 18,419.06 60,000.00 41,580.94 30.70

5400 - OFFICE UTILITIES 264.23 1,343.34 0.00 (1,343.34) 0.00
5401 - ELECTRICITY 808.27 3,260.52 10,000.00 6,739.48 32.61
5402 - PROPANE 2,047.51 8,142.13 7,000.00 (1,142.13) 116.32
5403 - TELEPHONE 2,023.06 10,085.97 23,000.00 12,914.03 43.85
5404 - CELL PHONE SERVICE 1,665.86 8,319.37 20,000.00 11,680.63 41.60
5405 - CELL PHONE ACCESSORIES 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00
5406 - OFFICE CLEANING SERVICE 1,360.00 7,140.00 20,000.00 12,860.00 35.70
5407 - INTERNET 0.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 0.00
5409 - SECURITY CAMERAS 1,625.00 8,125.00 0.00 (8,125.00) 0.00
5410 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT 0.00 135.45 0.00 (135.45) 0.00
5412 - PRINTERS 0.00 1,319.71 0.00 (1,319.71) 0.00
5413 - FURNITURE 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
5440 - COMPUTER 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
5441 - COMPUTER SUPPORT 5,694.50 28,320.56 66,245.00 37,924.44 42.75
5443 - SOFTWARE 71.00 71.00 7,000.00 6,929.00 1.01

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 4

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

5444 - LICENSES (ANNUAL) 0.00 14,465.45 30,000.00 15,534.55 48.22
5445 - SENSUS METER SUPPORT 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00

OFFICE UTILITIES 15,559.43 90,728.50 191,105.00 100,376.50 47.48

5510 - OFFICE EXPENSES 13,003.47 70,687.82 175,107.00 104,419.18 40.37
5520 - POSTAGE 0.00 649.74 3,312.00 2,662.26 19.62
5530 - BANK / CREDIT CARD FEES 3,155.87 17,349.60 5,520.00 (11,829.60) 314.30
5540 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE 1,175.25 41,656.52 1,104.00 (40,552.52) 3,773.24
5560 - PRINTING 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
5580 - DUES & REGISTRATION 0.00 50.00 3,312.00 3,262.00 1.51
5590 - TRAINING 0.00 100.00 8,833.00 8,733.00 1.13

OFFICE EXPENSE 17,334.59 130,493.68 199,948.00 69,454.32 65.26

5610 - LEGAL 19,053.74 299,755.98 357,000.00 57,244.02 83.97
5620 - ACCOUNTING 0.00 27,975.00 50,000.00 22,025.00 55.95
5630 - WATER TRANSFER FEES 0.00 3,016.58 100.00 (2,916.58) 3,016.58
5640 - MAPPING - NORTHLINE 0.00 0.00 700.00 700.00 0.00
5650 - CONSULTANT FEES 0.00 12,510.00 204,000.00 191,490.00 6.13
5660 - MEMBERSHIP FEES 0.00 35,638.55 9,022.00 (26,616.55) 395.02
5680 - LAND ACQUISITION 1,786.50 49,082.32 0.00 (49,082.32) 0.00

PROFESSIONAL FEES 20,840.24 427,978.43 620,822.00 192,843.57 68.94

5900 - MISCELLANEOUS (406.94) (406.94) 7,729.00 8,135.94 (5.27)
5920 - FIRE MITIGATION GRANT 0.00 17,382.97 0.00 (17,382.97) 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS (406.94) 16,976.03 7,729.00 (9,247.03) 219.64

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 111,061.09 953,155.99 2,147,230.00 1,194,074.01 44.39

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
6100 - SOLDIER CANYON 0.00 0.00 312,000.00 312,000.00 0.00

SOLDIER CANYON 0.00 0.00 312,000.00 312,000.00 0.00

6200 - STORAGE TANKS 0.00 573,150.48 1,600,000.00 1,026,849.52 35.82

STORAGE TANKS 0.00 573,150.48 1,600,000.00 1,026,849.52 35.82

6300 - PUMP STATIONS 20,249.56 117,117.57 0.00 (117,117.57) 0.00

PUMP STATIONS 20,249.56 117,117.57 0.00 (117,117.57) 0.00

6400 - EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 25,700.00 25,700.00 0.00
6410 - VEHICLES 0.00 144,345.42 142,000.00 (2,345.42) 101.65
6420 - TRENCH BOX 0.00 204.02 0.00 (204.02) 0.00

EQUIPMENT 0.00 144,549.44 167,700.00 23,150.56 86.20

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 5

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

6505 - ENGINEERING 99,350.00 651,290.00 300,000.00 (351,290.00) 217.10
6510 - WATER LINES 27,235.00 5,335,128.80 15,200,000.00 9,864,871.20 35.10
6515 - METER UPGRADES 0.00 0.00 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.00
6540 - AWIA & GENERATORS 0.00 0.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 0.00
6545 - SCADA EQUIPMENT 0.00 13,501.00 0.00 (13,501.00) 0.00

SYSTEM 126,585.00 5,999,919.80 16,090,000.00 10,090,080.20 37.29

6610 - WATER RESOURCE MANAGER 0.00 120,491.24 0.00 (120,491.24) 0.00
6615 - GRAVEL PITS 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00
6620 - WATER RIGHTS 0.00 6,990,000.00 9,000,000.00 2,010,000.00 77.67
6630 - LEGAL (WRM) 6,703.75 23,002.87 310,000.00 286,997.13 7.42
6640 - STORAGE 805.50 79,521.16 0.00 (79,521.16) 0.00

WATER RIGHTS 7,509.25 7,213,015.27 9,710,000.00 2,496,984.73 74.28

6710 - EASEMENTS 27,204.85 299,223.90 165,000.00 (134,223.90) 181.35
6720 - LAND 0.00 0.00 190,000.00 190,000.00 0.00
6730 - SURVEYING 2,906.50 11,268.00 5,000.00 (6,268.00) 225.36

LAND/EASEMENTS 30,111.35 310,491.90 360,000.00 49,508.10 86.25

BUILDING/PAVING 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

OFFICE EQUIPMENT/MISC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 184,455.16 14,358,244.46 28,239,700.00 13,881,455.54 50.84

BONDS

BOND ISSUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7250 - PLANT EXPANSION 0.00 0.00 1,231,000.00 1,231,000.00 0.00
7290 - 2012R NW 1054 0.00 39,375.00 1,590,000.00 1,550,625.00 2.48
7292 - TRANSFER TO ENTERPRISE 0.00 34,312.50 0.00 (34,312.50) 0.00
7295 - 2019 BOND - NORT519WERB 0.00 279,300.00 0.00 (279,300.00) 0.00
7296 - 2020 BOND - WATER ENT 0.00 0.00 473,288.00 473,288.00 0.00
7297 - 2022 BOND 0.00 1,049,454.59 1,833,000.00 783,545.41 57.25

PRINCIPLE 0.00 1,402,442.09 5,127,288.00 3,724,845.91 27.35

INTEREST EXPENSE OTHER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BONDS 0.00 (1,402,442.09) (5,127,288.00) (3,724,845.91) 27.35

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 6

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

DEPRECIATION & AMORT EXPENSES

DEPRECIATION & AMORT EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL REVENUES 3,133,428.88 9,871,800.61 22,624,387.00 12,752,586.39 43.63
TOTAL EXPENSES 527,873.41 19,922,951.99 42,679,435.00 22,756,483.01 46.68

PROFIT/LOSS 2,605,555.47 (10,051,151.38) (20,055,048.00) (10,003,896.62) 50.12

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



6/7/23 at 11:18:23.32 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of May 31, 2023
1014 - 1014 - BANK OF COLORADO
Bank Statement Date: May 31, 2023

Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 2,041,511.35

Add: Cash Receipts 1,202,003.23

Less: Cash Disbursements (1,709,988.47)

Add (Less) Other 1,357,573.86

Ending GL Balance 2,891,099.97

Ending Bank Balance 3,294,665.88

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks
Jul 11, 2022 16682 (24,198.75)
Nov 18, 2022 17106 (227.65)
Feb 8, 2023 17343 (37,789.84)
Mar 23, 2023 17495 (487.72)
Apr 5, 2023 17541 (50.34)
Apr 5, 2023 17545 (25.00)
Apr 12, 2023 17582 (452.84)
May 4, 2023 17619 (100.00)
May 9, 2023 17623 (50.00)
May 10, 2023 17629 (37,955.63)
May 11, 2023 17631 (20,100.00)
May 11, 2023 17636 (6,915.44)
May 12, 2023 17639 (27,075.00)
May 12, 2023 17640 (750.00)
May 12, 2023 17644 (121.35)
May 12, 2023 17646 (312.00)
May 12, 2023 17652 (875.73)
May 12, 2023 17655 (321.47)
May 15, 2023 17663 (4,699.26)
May 16, 2023 17674 (11,797.18)
May 16, 2023 17677 (1,625.00)
May 16, 2023 17678 (5,665.00)
May 17, 2023 17682 (5,694.50)
May 17, 2023 17683 (20,249.56)
May 17, 2023 17684 (8,653.05)
May 17, 2023 17685 (3,090.64)
May 17, 2023 17687 (1,100.00)
May 17, 2023 17689 (56,402.61)
May 17, 2023 17690 (19,053.74)
May 17, 2023 17693 (495.57)
May 17, 2023 17694 (100.26)
May 18, 2023 17695 (800.00)
May 18, 2023 17696 (53.28)
May 18, 2023 17699 (51,001.47)
May 18, 2023 17702 (26.64)
May 18, 2023 17703 (26.64)
May 18, 2023 17704 (35.52)
May 18, 2023 17705 (630.11)
May 18, 2023 17707 (15,997.85)
May 18, 2023 17708 (4,047.08)
May 25, 2023 17709 (11,207.00)
May 25, 2023 17710 (535.08)
May 31, 2023 17711 (182.45)
May 31, 2023 17712 (7.65)
May 31, 2023 17713 (248.69)
May 31, 2023 17714 (6,819.41)
May 31, 2023 17715 (7,400.00)
May 31, 2023 17716 (1,048.59)



6/7/23 at 11:18:23.35 Page: 2

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of May 31, 2023
1014 - 1014 - BANK OF COLORADO
Bank Statement Date: May 31, 2023

Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

May 31, 2023 17717 (2,047.51)
May 31, 2023 17718 (29.46)
May 31, 2023 17719 (26.00)
May 31, 2023 17720 (1,785.59)
May 31, 2023 17721 (1,361.00)
May 31, 2023 17722 (10,714.28)
May 30, 2023 OL-0530202 (2,023.06)

Total outstanding checks (414,489.49)

Add (Less) Other
May 30, 2023 CC0530 3,695.89
May 31, 2023 CC0531 5,474.11
May 30, 2023 CCIH0521 612.99
May 31, 2023 CCIH0522 748.36
May 19, 2023 GE0511 (26.64)
May 31, 2023 MARS0520 418.87

Total other 10,923.58

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 2,891,099.97



6/7/23 at 10:04:15.92 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of May 31, 2023
1015 - 1015 - COLO TRUST - GENERAL

Bank Statement Date: May 31, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 10,670,056.48

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 45,287.75

Ending GL Balance 10,715,344.23

Ending Bank Balance 10,715,344.23

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 10,715,344.23



6/7/23 at 10:05:15.21 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of May 31, 2023
1019 - 1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND

Bank Statement Date: May 31, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 2,208,804.98

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 9,147.33

Ending GL Balance 2,217,952.31

Ending Bank Balance 2,217,952.31

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 2,217,952.31



6/7/23 at 10:05:15.21 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of May 31, 2023
1019 - 1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND

Bank Statement Date: May 31, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 2,208,804.98

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 9,147.33

Ending GL Balance 2,217,952.31

Ending Bank Balance 2,217,952.31

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 2,217,952.31



6/7/23 at 10:07:04.33 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of May 31, 2023
1020 - 1020 - COLO TRUST - 2022 BOND

Bank Statement Date: May 31, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 38,946,819.94

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 161,290.72

Ending GL Balance 39,108,110.66

Ending Bank Balance 39,108,110.66

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 39,108,110.66



May 22, 2023 

Mr. Eric Reckentine 
District Manager 
North Weld County Water District 
32825 CR 39 
Lucerne, CO  80646 

RE:  Proposed Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
36-inch Water Line Adjustment Project – WCR 13

Dear Mr. Reckentine: 

Trihydro Corporation (Trihydro) values the opportunity to provide professional engineering services to 
the North Weld County Water District (District) for design and construction of the 36-inch Water Line 
Adjustment Project – WCR 13 (Project).  Trihydro understands the District, in collaboration with the 
Town of Timnath, CO, is interested in lowering the District’s existing 36-inch ductile iron (DI) water line 
and replacing the District’s 4-inch Asbestos Cement (AC) water line.  The two water lines are located 
below and following the alignment of WCR 13/South County Line Road 1.  The existing 36-inch DI 
water line will be lowered, and the 4-inch AC water line will be replaced to facilitate the replacement of 
an 18-inch diameter culvert, which crosses below the roadway approximately 0.43 miles south of the 
Hwy. 14 (E. Mulberry St.) intersection.  The Town, who owns and maintains this portion of WCR 13, 
needs to replace the existing culvert. Based on information provided by the Town, the existing 18-inch 
culvert and the 36-inch water line are in conflict. The 36-inch water line will need to be lowered to 
accommodate the installation of a new 18-inch reinforced concrete pipe (RCP) culvert.  The 4-inch AC 
water line will be removed and replaced within the project limits due to concerns about the ability to 
support the water line during construction activities.  We anticipate approximately 100 to 200 linear feet 
(LF) of the 36-inch and 4-inch water lines will need to be lowered/replaced to accomplish the culvert 
replacement.  Trihydro understands construction administration and observation services will also be 
required and that the Project will need to be completed in the fall of 2023. 
   
We prepared the attached scope of services with the goal of providing a concise and detailed presentation 
of the individual tasks we believe are necessary to complete this project as efficiently and cost-effectively 
as possible.  We have also included an itemized cost estimate with hours anticipated for each task.  The 
following exhibits are attached: 

 Exhibit A – Proposed Scope of Work

 Exhibit B – Fee Estimate



 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Eric Reckentine 
May 22, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
 

202305_TimnathWL_Adjustm_LTRPROP.docx 

Trihydro would welcome a meeting with the District and the Town of Timnath to discuss the proposed 
scope of work and fee estimate and revise as needed to meet the Project objectives. 
 
If selected, Trihydro proposes performing the work in accordance with the November 2022 Master 
Service Agreement.  If approved, please sign the acknowledgement below and email the signed copy to 
Michelle Sell (msell@trihydro.com) and copy Autumn Bainer (abainer@trihydro.com). 
 
Authorized By:  ________________________________________ 
 
Authorized Date:  ______________________________________ 
 
We look forward to this opportunity to collaborate with the District and the Town of Timnath.  Please call 
us at (307) 745-7474 if you have questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
Trihydro Corporation 
 
 
 
C. Jade Gernant, P.E.     Michelle L.D. Sell, P.E. 
Project Manager     Project Director 
 
999-75Q-006 
 
Attachments 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 1 of 11 

Trihydro Corporation (Trihydro) is pleased to submit our proposal for providing professional engineering and 
construction administration and observation services to the North Weld County Water District (District) for the 
36-inch Water Line Adjustment Project – WCR 13 (Project).  This proposal represents our understanding of the 
Scope of Work and is subject to change following future discussions.  Trihydro welcomes a meeting with the 
District to discuss the proposed scope of work and revise it, as necessary, to clarify or refine the project 
objectives. 
 
Trihydro understands the District, in partnership with the Town of Timnath, CO (Town), is interested in lowering 
the District’s existing 36-inch ductile iron (DI) water line, which is currently in conflict with an existing, non-
functional, 18-inch diameter vitrified clay pipe (VCP) culvert crossing Weld County Road (WCR) 13/South County 
Line Road 1 approximately 0.43 miles south of the Highway 14 (E. Mulberry St.) intersection.  The Town, who 
owns and maintains this portion of WCR 13, would like to replace the existing culvert. Based on information 
provided by the Town, the existing 18-inch VCP culvert and the 36-inch water line are in conflict. The water line 
will need to be lowered to accommodate the installation of a new 18-inch reinforced concrete pipe (RCP) culvert.  
Additionally, there is an existing District-owned 4-inch asbestos-cement (AC) water line running parallel to the 
west of the 36-inch water line within the roadway.  The 4-inch AC water line will need to be replaced within the 
project limits due to concerns about the ability to support the water line during construction activities. We 
anticipate approximately 100 to 200 linear feet (LF) of the 36-inch and 4-inch water lines will need to be 
lowered/replaced to accomplish the culvert replacement.  Trihydro understands construction administration and 
observation will also be required and that the project will need to be completed in the fall of 2023. 
 
General project work will involve design of approximately 200 LF of 36-inch DI water line and 4-inch polyvinyl 
chloride (PVC) water line to include valving, temporary shutdown and construction sequencing, water line bypass, 
and culvert installation.  The final water line lengths will be determined as the design proceeds.  The Town will 
provide final RCP culvert design information, including inlet and outlet invert elevations, length, and skew. 
 

TASK 1:  PROJECT MANAGEMENT   

A.  Task Goals   

1. Achieve the budget and schedule constraints.   

a. Begin design activities upon receipt of Notice to Proceed. 

b. Complete design activities to facilitate completion of construction in the fall of 2023. 

c. Coordinate with District and Town to identify bidding and construction timeline.    

2. Manage scope variations to meet the budget and schedule constraints.   

3. Communicate early and openly about issues impacting the budget, schedule, and scope.   

4. Review monthly progress reports and invoices, ask questions, and process invoices.   

5. District and Town to furnish required information and provide review comments and approvals in 
a timely manner, generally within two (2) weeks.   



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 2 of 11 

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Project Management   

a. Manage team member daily tasks and assignments. 

b. Prepare client updates. 

c. Monitor and track project schedule and budget. 

d. Perform administrative duties. 

e. Attend one (1) kickoff meeting to identify key project priorities, lines of communication, 
delivery schedules and overall project delivery. 

f. Hold progress review meetings, as necessary, with District Project Manager (PM)/Team 
and Town (Assumes two (2) meetings during design and one (1) meeting during 
construction activities).   

g. Submit monthly progress reports and invoices to District PM. Monthly progress reports 
will include:  

i. Invoice from the prior month.  Include labor costs in terms of hours charged by 
individual and hourly rates.  Include itemized expenses.  Include a cost 
breakdown for each project task.   

ii. Cumulative percent complete by task with a brief narrative of significant scope 
items completed within each task.   

iii. Schedule update.   

iv. Identify and recommend resolution of budget, schedule, or scope issues.   

v. Provide quality reviews on deliverables prior to submission to District PM.   

C. Trihydro Deliverables    

1. Meeting agendas and meeting minutes.   

2. Monthly invoices and progress reports.    

3. Electronic resource for sharing documents.   

D. Assumptions   

1. Kickoff meeting will be in-person at District’s office.  Kickoff meeting will be two (2) hours in 
duration, attended by two (2) Trihydro personnel.  Meeting agenda and minutes will be prepared. 

2. Progress review meetings will be one (1) hour in duration and attended by two (2) Trihydro 
personnel.  Meeting agendas and minutes will be prepared (assume two (2) hours). 

3. Assume two (2) progress review meetings will be held during design and one (1) progress review 
meeting will be held during construction activities.  



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 3 of 11 

4. Construction will take place over a one (1) month period, during the fall of 2023 when water 
demand is low, at the District’s discretion. 

5. Project deliverables will be provided electronically in Portable Document Format (PDF).  
Distribution of electronic Bidding Documents may be achieved with a Trihydro-provided cloud-
based sharing site. 

6. Any investigation and remediation of possible hazardous waste, asbestos, lead paint or other 
types of contamination are not included herein and will be conducted as a separate contract. 

7. A geotechnical investigation/report will not be required to complete the work.   
 

TASK 2:  DATA COLLECTION 

A.  Task Goals   

1. Transfer pertinent information from District and Town to Trihydro.   

2. Elevate Trihydro’s awareness and understanding of pertinent information.   

3. Coordinate with District and Stantec to verify existing working pressure and flow. 

4. Assist the District to confirm the existing utility locations and depths via potholing.   

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Research and Investigation.   

a. Request, obtain, and review pertinent information from District and Stantec. 

b. Request, obtain, and review documents from utility owners. 

c. Conduct a site visit during additional potholing activities to be coordinated and scheduled 
by the District to confirm existing utility locations and depths. 

2. Review Water System Hydraulic Model Results and Data. 

a. Trihydro understands the current District water system model is maintained by Stantec.  
Trihydro will request and review District/Stantec-provided model data related to pipeline 
hydraulics for anticipated bypass design, as necessary, including working/design 
pressures and flows.  Trihydro will coordinate with the District and Stantec regarding 
questions and system modifications, if any, during design. 

b. Review existing maps, drawings, plans, and reports related to proposed work.  Conduct 
field investigations as necessary to verify existing conditions. 

C. District Scope   

1. Provide the following information and other documents as requested by Trihydro:   

a. Relevant record drawings of Project corridor.  

b. Previous studies, geotechnical investigation reports, design reports, and other applicable 
reports if available.   



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 4 of 11 

c. Flow and pressure data relevant to project design. 

d. Existing water system hydraulic model results. 

e. Existing survey information for Project corridor. 

2. Coordinate and schedule potholing activities to confirm existing utilities and depths. 

D.  Trihydro Deliverables    

1. Data requests.   

2. Data request tracking log.   

3. Meeting agendas and meeting minutes.   

E. Assumptions   

1. All construction activities will be performed within existing WCR 13 Right-of-Way.  Additional 
easements, permanent or temporary, will not be required.  

2. Town will provide all previously obtained topographic survey and potholing data.  Additional 
potholing (subsurface utility engineering) services will not be required.   

3. District and Town will coordinate with all affected property owners. 

4. Permitting through the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) for the 
project work will not be required. 

5. The project area is located within the portion of WCR 13 owned by the Town.   

6. The Contractor will be required to coordinate with the Town for construction and traffic control 
plan development/permitting and implementation necessary to complete the work. 

7. Relocated franchise utility design is not included in this work scope. 

8. A geotechnical investigation is not included in this work scope. 

9. Environmental services are not included in this work scope. 

10. Surveying services are not included in this work scope. 
 

TASK 3:  PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING – THROUGH 60% DESIGN    

A.  Task Goals   

1. Evaluate and finalize water line vertical alignment. 

2. Prepare 60% Design water line plans to include proposed tie-in locations, valves, fittings, profiles, 
and bypass line. 

3. Develop a preliminary sequence of construction. 

4. Prepare 60% Design Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs. 

5. Perform quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) reviews for documents prior to submittal. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 5 of 11 

6. Deliver 60% Design documents.   

7. Gather and document District staff and Town staff comments. 

8. Hold preliminary meetings and coordinate design activities with District, Town, identified franchise 
utilities, and other stakeholders, if requested. 

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Prepare 60% Design plans with proposed profiles for the lowering of the 36-inch DI water line and 
the 4-inch PVC water line, isolation valving, fittings, bypass piping, and preliminary connection 
details. 

2. Prepare technical specifications to be included in the plan set using a combination of District and 
Trihydro documents. 

3. Prepare Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs. 

4. Trihydro will perform QA/QC reviews on design documents. 

5. Trihydro will hold weekly internal project coordination meetings, as needed. 

6. Progress review meetings with District and Town staff to coordinate and verify preliminary design 
concepts and components. Progress review meetings are also discussed in Task 1, above, and 
are included in the Project Management Task in the fee estimate.  

7. Submit 60% Design documents electronically to District for review.  Meet with District and Town 
staff to review and document comments.  Agreed upon review comments from the District and 
Town will be incorporated into the 90% Design.   

C. District Scope   

1. Timely review of 60% Design and meeting materials. 

2. Key decision makers to participate in review meetings.  

3. Arrange for relevant site tours by Trihydro and subconsultants, if necessary. 

4. Provide as-built information for existing water line within Project limits. 

D.  Trihydro Deliverables   

1. Draft and final 60% Design plans and specifications for review. 

2. 60% Design Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs.  

3. Documented responses to District and Town comments.   

4. Meeting agendas and meeting minutes. 

E. Assumptions   

1. District will review meeting minutes and submittals within two (2) weeks of receiving. 

2. District standard specifications will be used, as applicable, and included in the plan set. 

3. Preparation of a project manual is not included in this work scope. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 6 of 11 

4. The drawings will follow Trihydro CADD standards.  The latest version of AutoCAD Civil 3D will 
be used to develop the drawings.  Copies of AutoCAD drawings will be provided as .dwg and 
PDF files.   

5. Documents will be delivered in PDF and Excel format.   

6. Drawing size will be scaled for 11- x 17-inch scale plan sheets. 

7. Weekly internal project coordination meetings will be one (1) hour in duration. 

8. Design review meeting will be in person at the District’s office or Trihydro’s Fort Collins 
conference room.  Design review meetings will be two (2) hours in duration, and two (2) Trihydro 
personnel will attend. 

 

TASK 4:  90% DESIGN   

A.  Task Goals   

1. Incorporate 60% Design comments from District and Town into water line design. 

2. Prepare and submit 90% Design construction documents. 

3. Prepare 90% Design Opinion of Probable Construction Costs. 

4. Gather and document District and Town comments. 

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Prepare 90% Design construction documents including:   

a. Plan and profile sheet(s), District Standard Plans, Details, and notes, and 
project-specific details. 

b. Complete technical specifications to be included in the plan set. 

c. Update the Opinion of Probable Construction Costs.  

d. Trihydro will conduct weekly internal project coordination meetings, as needed. 

2. Submit 90% Design construction documents. 

a. Trihydro will perform QA/QC reviews on the construction documents.  

b. Submit 90% Design construction documents electronically to District and Town for 
review.  Meet with District and Town staff to review and document comments.    

C. District Scope   

1. Provide District approved front-end documents in Word format. 

2. Timely review of submittals and meeting materials. 

3. Key decision makers to participate in review meetings. 

4. Facilitate internal legal review and approval for procurement documents.   



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 7 of 11 

D.  Trihydro Deliverables   

1. Meeting agendas and minutes. 

2. 90% Design construction documents (plan set) and cost estimate. 

3. Documented comment responses on the 90% Design construction documents.  

E.  Assumptions  

1. Reviews of 90% Design construction documents by District and Town will be considered as final 
review.  All approved comments will be incorporated into a final bid set and ready for 
construction.  Any reviews of 100% construction documents will be for completeness only.  
Trihydro may request additional services for technical comments and plan changes following 
completion of the 90% Design review process (i.e., during the 100% review). 

2. District will review meeting minutes and submittals within two (2) weeks of receiving. 

3. Weekly internal coordination meetings will be one (1) hour in duration. 

4. Design review meeting will be in person at the District’s office or Trihydro’s Fort Collins 
conference room.  Design review meeting will be two (2) hours in duration, and two (2) Trihydro 
personnel will attend. 

 

TASK 5:  CONSTRUCTION BIDDING AND CONTRACT AWARD    

A.  Task Goals   

1. Prepare final bid-ready, 100% construction documents (Issue for Bid). 

2. Assist in the selection and award of the construction contract.    

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Trihydro will modify the construction documents to reflect the District’s and Town’s 90% review 
comments and Trihydro’s quality control review team.  The final 100% construction documents 
(Issue for Bid) will be submitted to the District. 

2. Coordinate with the District to identify an online bidding platform. 

3. Attend one (1) pre-bid meeting with qualified Contractors to present project details and 
expectations and address Contractor questions.  Two (2) Trihydro personnel will attend the pre-
bid meeting.  Assume the pre-bid meeting will be three (3) hours to include the meeting and a site 
visit. 

4. Respond to Contractor questions and requests for information (RFI). 

5. Prepare and issue up to one (1) addendum. 

6. Evaluate bids for compliance and completeness, prepare a bid tabulation, review apparent low 
bidder’s qualifications and references and make a recommendation of award to the District. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 8 of 11 

C. District Scope   

1. Advertise the Project.   

2. Issue notifications to contracting firms of pending bid.   

3. Conduct the bid opening.   

4. Review Trihydro’s bid tabulation and recommendation of award.   

5. Schedule and approve bid at District Board meeting.  

6. Provide staff to prepare and administer construction contract.  

D.  Trihydro Deliverables   

1. Written responses to questions from potential bidders.   

2. Construction documents in PDF format along with three (3) 11- x 17-inch hard copy sets of plans 
and three set of construction documents for District and three (3) 11- x 17-inch hard copy sets of 
plans and three (3) sets of construction documents for the Contractor. 

E. District Deliverables   

1. Advertisement of the bid. 

2. District approval of the bid award. 

3. Preparation and execution of construction contract 

F.  Assumptions   

1. Construction Bidding and Contract Award phase will be for one (1) bid. 
 

TASK 6:  CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION    

A.  Task Goals   

1. Complete construction to meet District and Town needs.   

B.  Trihydro Scope   

Trihydro will provide construction administration and coordinate activities during construction.  We 
assume construction will take place over a one (1) month period.   

1. Attend the following meetings:   

a. Attend and conduct a preconstruction meeting with the awarded Contractor, the District, 
and the Town to review construction project organization, roles and responsibilities 
associated with construction administration, construction related correspondence, 
observations and inspections, contract change orders, monthly progress estimates and 
payments, traffic control, material testing, schedule of values, schedule, disinfection and 
pressure testing, start up, project closeout, and record documents. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 9 of 11 

b. Attend weekly construction progress meetings.  Assume one (1) month of construction – 
four (4) weekly progress meetings for the Project.  Trihydro will prepare and distribute 
meeting agendas and minutes of each meeting.   

2. Contractor Pay Request Review: Trihydro will provide monthly reviews of Contractor partial 
payment request.  A total of three (3) Contractor pay requests are assumed.    

3. Review Shop Drawing Submittals:  Trihydro’s review of shop drawings, samples, and submittals 
will be for general conformance with the design concept and general compliance with the 
requirements of the contract documents.  Trihydro will review and respond to the Contractor’s 
requests for substitution of materials and equipment.  Upon review, Trihydro will advise District as 
to the acceptability of such substitutions.  For the purposes of estimating the level of effort for this 
task, Trihydro has assumed five (5) submittals with two (2) resubmittals. 

4. Review Contractor Requests for Information (RFI).  The required processing of RFIs will be in 
accordance with the District’s construction administration protocols.  RFIs received from the 
Contractor will be responded to in writing.  RFIs will be directed to specific design team members 
who can most effectively develop timely responses to the Contractor.  Trihydro will assist the 
District in providing interpretations, responses to RFIs, and clarifications of the Contract 
Documents.  For budgeting purposes, this proposal assumes three (3) RFIs will require review. 

5. Change Order Requests: Trihydro will evaluate up to one (1) change order request whether by 
Contractor or District.  If approved, Trihydro will prepare plan modifications or details, confirm 
Contractor costs and impacts to project schedule.   

6. Construction Observation (Part Time) 

a. Design Team Construction Observation: Two (2) site visits have been budgeted for 
Trihydro’s design staff, in addition to progress meetings.  A field report will be prepared 
following the visits documenting the purpose of the visit, observations made, and any 
recommendations to District.   

b. Resident Project Representative (RPR): One RPR will manage the construction project.  
The estimated construction duration is one (1) month. 

i. Trihydro will provide staff to serve as the project’s RPR.  The RPR will be on site 
on a part-time basis during construction.  Construction observation will be for a 
period of up to ten (10) hours per day, three (3) days per week. 

ii. Provide for a detailed review of the Contractor’s schedule to establish a logical, 
defined critical path method (CPM) schedule with an overall baseline for progress 
measurement. 

iii. Provide detailed review of the Contractor’s traffic control plan to maintain safe 
traffic flow near the project. 

iv. Attend and manage the preconstruction meeting.   

v. Attend progress meetings on site with District staff, Town staff, Contractor, and 
their subcontractors.   



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 10 of 11 

vi. Coordinate responses to RFIs and assist District staff in overall administration of 
the construction contract.   

vii. Perform site observations to monitor the quality of construction progress and 
conformity to the plans and specifications.  Provide specific documentation for 
critical inspection points during the contract in construction logs.  These 
construction logs will document the Contractor’s work, labor force, equipment, 
weather conditions, and other pertinent information.  

viii. Maintain a photographic log of the project.  This work is expected to include brief 
descriptions of each photograph with a filename, time and date reference.   

ix. Maintain project records including contracts, schedules, progress meeting 
minutes, inspection logs, correspondence, routine photographs, submittals, 
commissioning records and post construction close-out paperwork (punch lists, 
lien waivers, and final acceptance).   

x. Conduct a final punch list walk through and final inspection of the completed 
items.   

xi. RPR will be the primary point of contact for official communication with the 
Contractor.   

c. Final Inspection: Trihydro’s PM and RPR will participate in the final inspection with the 
District, Town, and Contractor to review the work and document items for correction to be 
noted on the punch list.  The RPR will meet with the Contractor to confirm all punch list 
items are complete, and that final payment may be released. 

d. 2-Year Warranty Inspection: Trihydro’s PM and RPR will participate in a 2-year warranty 
inspection with the District, Town, and Contractor and provide a written report with a list 
of items to be repaired.  District and/or Town staff will confirm when Contractor has 
completed all repairs. 

7. Prepare Record Documents: At the completion of construction work, Trihydro will review and 
comment on record drawing information supplied by the Contractor and will incorporate 
information on the drawings.  Project construction documents will require the Contractor to 
provide a consolidated set of as-builts including changes, and clarifications issued during 
construction.  Trihydro is not responsible for any errors or omissions in the information from 
others that are incorporated into the record drawings.  Trihydro will prepare electronic record 
drawings (PDF and AutoCAD format) for District.  

8. Trihydro will provide closeout documentation. 

C.  District Scope   

1. Issue change orders. 

2. Attend meetings.    

3. Review and approve progress payments.   



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT – WCR 13 
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 

 

May 22, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 11 of 11 

D.  Trihydro Deliverables    

1. Project meeting agendas and minutes.   

2. Communications with Contractor and District. 

3. Field Observation Reports.   

4. Field inspection reports and photos.   

5. Final Record Drawings in PDF format and 11- x 17-inch hardcopies. 

6. Project close out documentation.  

7. Warranty Inspection Report.  

E. Assumptions   

1. The construction contract is anticipated to have a total duration of one (1) month. 

2. Project manager or construction administrator will attend half (two [2]) of the weekly construction 
meetings in person and half (two [2]) virtually. 

3. Assume hotel/motel accommodations ($120.00/night – 2 nights/week) and per diem (3 
days/week) for duration of construction (one [1] month). 

4. Contractor will perform construction staking. 

5. District will give prompt notice to Trihydro whenever District observes or becomes aware of any 
development that affects the scope or timing of Trihydro’s services, or of any defect in the work of 
Trihydro or the Contractor. 

6. District will examine information submitted by Trihydro and render in writing or otherwise provide 
decisions in a timely manner. 

7. Trihydro’s review of shop drawing submittals:  Such review will not relieve the Contractor from its 
responsibility for performance in accordance with the construction documents, nor is such review 
a guarantee that the work covered by the shop drawings, samples and submittals is free of errors, 
inconsistencies, or omissions. 

8. The RPR will keep a copy of Contractor deliverables for District records.  Contractor deliverables 
include shop drawings, samples, certificates, construction photos, record documents, releases 
from liens, claims, and agreements, Contractor design data, manufacturer’s instructions, 
operation and maintenance data, schedules, special guarantees, permits, test and inspection 
reports, testing and startup data, and training data. 

9. Soils testing and inspection to be performed by a third-party laboratory hired by the Contractor 
and approved by the District. 

10. Concrete and material testing and inspection to be performed by a third-party laboratory hired by 
the Contractor and approved by the District. 

11. Traffic control planning, permitting, and implementation to be performed by a subcontractor hired 
by the Contractor and approved by the District. 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

FEE ESTIMATE 



EXHIBIT B.  PROPOSED FEE ESTIMATE
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT - WCR 13
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 1

0

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 7

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 6

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 4

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
3

La
bo

r S
ub

to
ta

l

M
ea

l P
er

 D
ie

m
 (p

er
 d

ay
, p

er
 p

er
so

n)

H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

R
en

ta
l V

eh
ic

le

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(D

ai
ly

)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(P

er
 M

ile
)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(M

on
th

ly
, C

os
t +

 
Fu

el
)

Ex
pe

ns
es

 S
ub

to
ta

l

Ta
sk

 T
ot

al

MS JG/LEL TD/RJ/(RPR) RB/CADD Clerical $59.00 Cost Cost $95.00 $0.655 Cost + fuel   
TASK DESCRIPTION $186 $142 $127 $105 $74 /day/person $120 / day /day /mile
Task 1 Project Management

a Project Management 1 18 4 $3,162 $0 $3,162

b Kickoff Meeting 8 6 1 $1,840 $120 1 65 $258 $2,098

c Progress review meetings and invoicing 2 24 30 4 $7,226 $360 3 195 $773 $7,999

Task 1 Subtotal (hours) 3 50 0 40 5 98 Subtotal 0 $0 $480 4 260 $0 $1,030 - -

Task 1 Subtotal ($) $558 $7,100 $0 $4,200 $370 $12,228 Subtotal ($) $0 $0 $480 $380 $170 $0 $1,030 $13,258

Task 2 Data Collection

2.01 Research and Investigation

a Request, obtain, and review pertinent information from District 
and Town 4 8 $1,408 $0 $1,408

b Site visit to observe potholing 8 4 $1,556 $120 1 65 $258 $1,814

2.02 Review Water System Hydraulic Model Results and Data

a Coordinate with District and Stantec regarding water model data 
related to pipeline hydraulics 2 6 $914 $0 $914

b Review existing maps, drawings, plans, and reports 2 5 $809 $0 $809

Task 2 Subtotal (hours) 0 16 0 23 0 39 Subtotal 0 $0 $120 1 65 $0 $258 - -

Task 2 Subtotal ($) $0 $2,272 $0 $2,415 $0 $4,687 Subtotal ($) $0 $0 $120 $95 $43 $0 $258 $4,945

Expenses
Direct ReimbursablesTrihydro Corporation

202305_TimnathWL_Adj_FeeEstimateRev2_TBL.xlsm 1 of 4



EXHIBIT B.  PROPOSED FEE ESTIMATE
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT - WCR 13
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 1

0

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 7

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 6

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 4

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
3

La
bo

r S
ub

to
ta

l

M
ea

l P
er

 D
ie

m
 (p

er
 d

ay
, p

er
 p

er
so

n)

H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

R
en

ta
l V

eh
ic

le

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(D

ai
ly

)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(P

er
 M

ile
)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(M

on
th

ly
, C

os
t +

 
Fu

el
)

Ex
pe

ns
es

 S
ub

to
ta

l

Ta
sk

 T
ot

al

MS JG/LEL TD/RJ/(RPR) RB/CADD Clerical $59.00 Cost Cost $95.00 $0.655 Cost + fuel   
TASK DESCRIPTION $186 $142 $127 $105 $74 /day/person $120 / day /day /mile

Expenses
Direct ReimbursablesTrihydro Corporation

Task 3 Preliminary Engineering – Through 60% Design   

a Prepare 60% design plans with proposed profile, isolation 
valves, fittings, bypass piping, and prelim. connection details 8 60 $7,436 $0 $7,436

b Prepare Technical Specifications 12 24 $4,224 $0 $4,224

c Prepare Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 3 6 1 $1,130 $0 $1,130

d Submit 60% plans and construction documents for review and 
comment and attend 60% design review meeting 12 16 $3,384 $120 1 65 $258 $3,642

Task 3 Subtotal (hours) 0 35 0 106 1 142 Cost 0 $0 $120 1 65 $0 $258 - -

Task 3 Subtotal ($) $0 $4,970 $0 $11,130 $74 $16,174 Subtotal $0 $0 $120 $95 $43 $0 $258 $16,432

Task 4 90% Design   

4.01 Prepare 90% Design Construction Documents Including:

a Incorporate comments from 60% plan review 2 8 $1,124 $0 $1,124

b Plan and profile, District Standard Plans, Details, and Notes, and 
project-specific details. 6 16 $2,532 $0 $2,532

c Technical Specifications 4 8 $1,408 $0 $1,408

d Update the Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 2 4 $704 $0 $704

e Submit 90% Design construction documents and attend 90% 
design review meeting, QA/QC 12 16 $3,384 $120 1 65 $258 $3,642

Task 4 Subtotal (hours) 0 26 0 52 0 78 Cost 0 $0 $120 1 65 $0 $258 - -

Task 4 Subtotal ($) $0 $3,692 $0 $5,460 $0 $9,152 Subtotal $0 $0 $120 $95 $43 $0 $258 $9,410

202305_TimnathWL_Adj_FeeEstimateRev2_TBL.xlsm 2 of 4



EXHIBIT B.  PROPOSED FEE ESTIMATE
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT - WCR 13
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 1

0

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 7

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 6

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 4

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
3

La
bo

r S
ub

to
ta

l

M
ea

l P
er

 D
ie

m
 (p

er
 d

ay
, p

er
 p

er
so

n)

H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

R
en

ta
l V

eh
ic

le

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(D

ai
ly

)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(P

er
 M

ile
)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(M

on
th

ly
, C

os
t +

 
Fu

el
)

Ex
pe

ns
es

 S
ub

to
ta

l

Ta
sk

 T
ot

al

MS JG/LEL TD/RJ/(RPR) RB/CADD Clerical $59.00 Cost Cost $95.00 $0.655 Cost + fuel   
TASK DESCRIPTION $186 $142 $127 $105 $74 /day/person $120 / day /day /mile

Expenses
Direct ReimbursablesTrihydro Corporation

Task 5 Construction Bidding and Contract Award

a Prepare and submit final 100% contract documents 4 8 2 $1,556 $0 $1,556

b Attend pre-bid meeting with qualified contractors, prepare 
meeting agenda and meeting minutes 10 14 $2,890 $120 1 65 $258 $3,148

c Respond to bidder requests for information and prepare and 
issue 1 addendum 6 10 $1,902 $0 $1,902

d Evaluate bids, prepare  bid tabulation, and prepare award 
recommendation 3 6 $1,056 $0 $1,056

Task 5 Subtotal (hours) 0 23 0 38 2 63 Cost 0 $0 $120 1 65 $0 $258 - -

Task 5 Subtotal ($) $0 $3,266 $0 $3,990 $148 $7,404 Subtotal $0 $0 $120 $95 $43 $0 $258 $7,662

202305_TimnathWL_Adj_FeeEstimateRev2_TBL.xlsm 3 of 4



EXHIBIT B.  PROPOSED FEE ESTIMATE
36-INCH WATER LINE ADJUSTMENT PROJECT - WCR 13
SOUTH COUNTY LINE ROAD 1/WELD COUNTY ROAD 13
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 1

0

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 7

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 6

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 4

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
3

La
bo

r S
ub

to
ta

l

M
ea

l P
er

 D
ie

m
 (p

er
 d

ay
, p

er
 p

er
so

n)

H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

R
en

ta
l V

eh
ic

le

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(D

ai
ly

)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(P

er
 M

ile
)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(M

on
th

ly
, C

os
t +

 
Fu

el
)

Ex
pe

ns
es

 S
ub

to
ta

l

Ta
sk

 T
ot

al

MS JG/LEL TD/RJ/(RPR) RB/CADD Clerical $59.00 Cost Cost $95.00 $0.655 Cost + fuel   
TASK DESCRIPTION $186 $142 $127 $105 $74 /day/person $120 / day /day /mile

Expenses
Direct ReimbursablesTrihydro Corporation

Task 6 Construction Administration

6.01 Attend the following meetings:

a Attend Preconstruction Meeting 6 8 $1,692 $120 1 65 $258 $1,950

b Attend 4 weekly construction progress meetings 16 16 1 $4,026 $240 2 130 $515 $4,541

6.02 Process 3 Contractor pay requests 6 12 2 $2,260 $0 $2,260

6.03 Review 5 shop drawing submittals and 2 resubmittals 5 10 $1,760 $0 $1,760

6.04 Review 3 Contractor submitted requests for information 3 6 $1,056 $0 $1,056

6.05 Prepare 1 change order request 1 4 6 1 $1,458 $0 $1,458

6.06 Construction Observation (1-month Duration, Part Time)

a Design team construction observation (2 people, 2 site visits) 12 12 $2,964 $240 2 130 $515 $3,479

b Resident Project Representative (RPR) (3 days/week,               1-
month duration) 120 4 $15,536 12 $960 $1,000 $2,668 $18,204

c Final inspection 8 8 2 $2,124 $120 1 65 $258 $2,382

d 2-Year warranty inspection 1 8 8 1 $2,236 $120 1 65 $258 $2,494

6.07 Prepare Record Documents 1 4 8 $1,594 $0 $1,594

6.08 Provide closeout documentation 1 2 4 $890 $0 $890

Task 6 Subtotal (hours) 4 74 120 98 11 307 Cost 12 $960 $840 7 455 $1,000 $4,471 - -

Task 6 Subtotal ($) $744 $10,508 $15,240 $10,290 $814 $37,596 Subtotal $708 $960 $840 $665 $298 $1,000 $4,471 $42,067

Total (hours) 7 224 120 357 19 727 Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 --

69 Total ($) $1,302 $31,808 $15,240 $37,485 $1,406 $87,241 Total $708 $960 $1,800 $1,425 $639 $1,000 $6,532 $93,773

Note: 1.   Fees are based on hourly rates, not to exceed, except upon approval by the District.

202305_TimnathWL_Adj_FeeEstimateRev2_TBL.xlsm 4 of 4



May 24, 2023 

Mr. Eric Reckentine 
District Manager 
North Weld County Water District 
32825 CR 39 
Lucerne, CO  80646 

RE:  Proposed Scope of Work, Fee Estimate, and Project Schedule 
CR 84 Small Diameter Water Line Project 

Dear Mr. Reckentine: 

Trihydro Corporation (Trihydro) is submitting this scope of work and fee estimate to provide professional 
services to the North Weld County Water District (NWCWD) for design and construction of the proposed 
CR 84 Small Diameter Water Line Project.  We understand the project includes the design of 
approximately 0.9 miles of water line from the intersection of CR 84 and CR 15 to the intersection of 
CR 84 and North County Line Road. 

We prepared the attached scope of services with the goal of providing a concise and detailed presentation 
of the individual tasks we believe are necessary to complete this project as efficiently and cost-effectively 
as possible.  We have also included an itemized cost estimate with hours anticipated for each task.  The 
following exhibits are attached: 

 Exhibit A – Proposed Scope of Work

 Exhibit B – Fee Estimate

Trihydro would like to meet with NWCWD during a scoping meeting to discuss the proposed scope of 
work and fee estimate and revise as needed to verify project objectives are met. 

If selected, Trihydro proposes performing the work in accordance with the November 2022 Master 
Service Agreement.  If acceptable, please sign the acknowledgement below and email the signed copy to 
Michelle Sell (msell@trihydro.com) and copy Autumn Bainer (abainer@trihydro.com). 

Authorized By:  ________________________________________ 

Authorized Date:  ______________________________________ 



 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Eric Reckentine 
May 24, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
 

202305_SmallDiaPipe_LTRPROP.docx 

We look forward to this opportunity to collaborate with NWCWD.  Please call us at (307) 745-7474 if 
you have questions. 
 
Sincerely,  
Trihydro Corporation 
 
 
 
Jay Ligocki, P.E.     Michelle L.D. Sell, P.E. 
Project Manager     Project Director 
 
999-75Q-008 
 
Attachments 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 1 of 11 

Trihydro Corporation (Trihydro) is submitting our proposal for providing professional engineering and surveying 
services to the North Weld County Water District (District) for the CR 84 Small Diameter Water Line Project.  This 
proposal represents our understanding of the Scope of Work and is subject to change following future 
discussions.  Trihydro is happy to meet with the District during a scoping meeting to discuss the proposed scope 
of work and revise as needed to verify objectives are met. 
 
Trihydro understands the proposed water line is intended to replace an existing 2.5-inch water line.  The new 
water line will connect to the existing 8-inch water line at the County Road (CR) 84/CR 15 intersection.  The new 
water line will then extend west along CR 84 to the CR 84/North County Line Road intersection where it will 
connect to the existing 2.5-inch water line (Project). 
 
General Project work will include design of approximately 4,900 linear feet (LF) of new water line.  The final water 
line diameter will be verified during design but is assumed to be 6 inches for work scope purposes.  Trihydro will 
review District-provided model data related to pipeline hydraulics and design pressures and flows. The existing 
water line is beneath the CR 84 roadway, and it is anticipated this water line will be abandoned in place.  There is 
one known irrigation ditch crossing the new water line alignment, and coordination with the ditch owners will take 
place during design.  The proposed project extents are included as Figure 1. 
 
An overall project schedule will be discussed at the project kick-off meeting to review each phase of design and 
completion. 
 

TASK 1:  PROJECT MANAGEMENT   

A.  Task Goals   

1. Achieve the budget and schedule constraints.   

a. Begin design activities in June 2023. 

b. Complete design and permitting activities within eight (8) months. 

c. Coordinate with the District to identify construction timeline.    

2. Manage scope variations to meet the budget and schedule constraints.   

3. Communicate early and openly about issues impacting the budget, schedule, and scope.   

4. Review monthly progress reports and invoices, ask questions, and process invoices.   

5. District to furnish required information and provide review comments and approvals in a timely 
manner, generally within three (3) to four (4) weeks.   

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Project Management   

a. Conduct kickoff meeting.  

b. Manage team member daily tasks and assignments. 

c. Prepare client updates. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 2 of 11 

d. Monitor and track project schedule and budget. 

e. Perform administrative duties. 

f. Manage subconsultants.  

i. Monitor and manage subconsultants’ scheduled activities. 

ii. Review accuracy and quality of subconsultant deliverables. 

iii. Review subconsultants’ progress pay requests for accuracy and completeness 
and make payments as provided in the subconsultant’s agreement. 

g. Attend one (1) kickoff meeting to identify key project priorities, lines of communication, 
delivery schedules and overall project delivery. 

h. Hold monthly progress review meetings with District Project Manager (PM)/Team 
(Assumes eight [8] monthly meetings during design activities).  Submit monthly progress 
reports and invoices to District PM. Monthly progress reports will include:  

i. Invoice from the prior month.  Include labor costs in terms of hours charged by 
individual and hourly rates.  Include itemized expenses.  Include a cost 
breakdown for each project task.   

ii. Cumulative percent complete by task with a brief narrative of significant scope 
items completed within each task.   

iii. Schedule update.   

iv. Identify and recommend resolution of budget, schedule, or scope issues.   

v. Provide quality reviews on deliverables prior to submission to District PM.   

C. Trihydro Deliverables    

1. Meeting agendas and meeting minutes.   

2. Monthly invoices and progress reports.    

3. Electronic resource for sharing documents.   

D. Assumptions   

1. Kickoff meeting will be in person at District’s office.  Kickoff meeting will be two (2) hours in 
duration, attended by three (3) Trihydro personnel.  Meeting agenda and minutes will be 
prepared. 

2. Monthly meetings will be one (1) hour in duration and attended by two (2) Trihydro personnel.  
Meeting agendas and minutes will be prepared each month (assume two [2] hours). Project 
deliverables will be provided electronically in Portable Document Format (PDF).   

3. Construction documents will be prepared for one phase/construction contract.  

4. Any investigation and remediation of possible hazardous waste, asbestos, lead paint or other 
types of contamination are not included herein and will be conducted as a separate contract. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 3 of 11 

5. Contract bidding and construction services are not included in this contract. Construction 
services, including administration and observation, will be performed in-house by NWCWD.  
Construction assistance is discussed in Task 5. 

 

TASK 2:  DATA COLLECTION 

A.  Task Goals   

1. Transfer pertinent information from District to Trihydro.   

2. Elevate Trihydro’s awareness and understanding of pertinent information.   

3. Review existing water system hydraulic model data relevant to proposed water line. 

4. Identify permanent and temporary construction easements.  Perform boundary survey and 
provide easement descriptions. 

5. Conduct topographic survey of proposed water line route. 

6. Provide subsurface utility engineering. 

7. Provide geotechnical investigation and engineering report. 

8. Identify irrigation ditch crossings. 

9. Identify potential project permit requirements from various agencies. 

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Research and Investigation.   

a. Prepare and maintain a data request tracking log.   

b. Request, obtain, and review pertinent information from District. 

c. Request, obtain, and review documents from utility owners. 

d. Identify necessary temporary construction and permanent easements, access 
agreements, land ownership, and permits along the approximate 0.93-mile project length.  
Provide survey and prepare legal easement/access documents as needed for 
approximately three (3) property owners.  

e. Identify potential irrigation ditch crossings and contacts for each ditch crossing. 

f. Identify environmental surveys that may need to be completed (if needed). 

g. Identify Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) and Weld 
County permits and associated requirements. 

2. Review Water System Hydraulic Model Results and Data. 

a. Trihydro understands the current District water system model is maintained by Stantec.  
Trihydro will coordinate with the District and Stantec regarding questions and system 
modifications, if any, during design.  Trihydro will also coordinate with the District and 
Stantec regarding data needed for CDPHE and Weld County permitting. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 4 of 11 

b. Review existing maps, drawings, plans, and reports related to proposed work.  Conduct 
field investigations as necessary to verify existing conditions. 

3. Conduct Topographic Survey.  

a. Trihydro’s Surveyor will perform a topographic and feature survey of the proposed 
preferred water line corridor to support the design effort, including location of existing 
physical features, establishment of control and construction reference points, and 
collection of topographic information to create a project design mapping file.  Once the 
utilities are marked, survey field activities under the supervision of a Colorado-licensed 
surveyor will begin, including locating property corners and right-of-way (ROW) 
monuments; and surveying fences, topographic features, marked underground utilities, 
and geotechnical bore holes.   The topographic survey will be supplemented with 
Trihydro’s Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) program to produce a digital terrain model 
that will support a 1-foot contour interval map.  High resolution orthometric images will be 
captured as part of this effort and will be used as background imagery for construction 
documents.  GPS/total station equipment will be used to collect supplemental detailed 
data as needed.  The topography data will be provided in NAVD 88 vertical datum and 
NAD 83 horizontal datum, adjusted to ground (modified state plane coordinates). 

4. Easement Preparation. 

a. Easement preparation will include researching affected properties at the Weld County 
Clerk and Recorder’s office.  Trihydro will collect relevant deeds, existing recorded 
easements, ROW documents, monument records, and recorded surveys.  Trihydro will 
verify boundary and easement lines and plot additional gathered information to 
understand the boundaries and potential conflicts prior to beginning field work.  Survey 
fieldwork will include verifying aliquot corners, property corners, and ROW monuments.  
We will also locate relevant fences.  Once the proposed pipeline corridor is defined, we 
will prepare legal descriptions and exhibits necessary for defining permanent and 
temporary (construction) easements.  Easement documents will consist of a legal 
description and accompanying exhibit.  

b. Key elements of the survey scope of work are as follows:   

i. The photogrammetrically derived base map will meet American Society of 
Remote Sensing (ASPRS) 10-cm vertical accuracy class (supports a 1-foot 
contour interval). 

ii. Horizontal control work will provide accuracies of 0.03-foot or better.  Accuracies 
for general topographic work will be 0.10-foot or better.   

iii. Vertical control work will provide accuracies of 0.03-foot or better.  Accuracies 
will also be 0.03-foot on other hard surfaces and +/-0.10-foot on soft or natural 
ground surfaces.     

iv. Trihydro’s Surveyor will report coordinates of points X, Y & Z to the nearest 
0.01 foot.  When +/-0.01-foot vertical/elevation accuracy tolerance is required 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 5 of 11 

real time kinematic (RTK) GPS will not be used.  A differential level will be used 
to achieve accuracies of +/-0.01-foot.    

v. Digital Terrain Model (DTM) mapping data will be furnished by Trihydro’s 
Surveyor.  Data will be presented in layers conforming to Trihydro’s Standards. 

vi. Topography will be processed in an AutoCAD platform at a 1-foot contour 
interval. 

5. Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) and Utility Coordination. 

a. Trihydro will provide SUE and utility coordination along the proposed water line route.  
Trihydro’s SUE Subconsultant will review utility record data and provide surface markings 
for identified utilities.  The marking locations will be collected by Trihydro’s Surveyor and 
incorporated into the design plans.  Trihydro will correlate surveyed utilities to the 
proposed water line route to identify potential conflicts.  Trihydro will then prepare a 
proposed potholing plan to identify precise vertical and horizontal utility locations.  The 
potholing plan will be presented for the District’s review and will include up to ten (10) 
potential conflict locations.  Trihydro’s SUE Subconsultant will complete potholing 
activities at the finalized locations, and Trihydro’s Surveyor will collect horizontal and 
vertical utility data to include in the project design.  

SUE investigations for this project will include QL A and B. QL A will consist of vacuum 
excavation of pipes by the SUE Subconsultant at up to ten (10) potential conflict locations 
identified by Trihydro during design. 

b. The goal of this project is to minimize the need to relocate District-owned or private 
utilities.  Trihydro will provide utility coordination services to work with other utilities and 
identify non-relocation options wherever possible.  Should relocation of utilities be 
required, Trihydro will assist in the negotiations of reimbursement costs for relocation.  
The design of relocated utilities is not part of this scope of work.  

6. Geotechnical Investigation  

a. Trihydro’s Geotechnical Subconsultant will gather geotechnical information necessary for 
the Project design.  If available, existing geotechnical information for the Project corridor 
will be used as reference, but a geotechnical investigation and engineering report is 
assumed herein to verify subsurface conditions and earthwork requirements for water line 
installation and constructability.  Laboratory testing for engineering properties will be 
conducted to support the final water line design effort.  

b. The Geotechnical Subconsultant will prepare a report summarizing field and laboratory 
results and present the analyses, opinions, conclusions, and recommendations including:   

i. General Project description.   

ii. Boring location map.   

iii. Boring summary logs with descriptions of the soils/bedrock and groundwater 
levels.   



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 6 of 11 

iv. Discussions regarding:   

a) recommendations for compaction of engineered fill and utility trench 
backfill, as needed.  

b) excavation considerations including excavation difficulties, side slopes, 
slope bracing and temporary dewatering recommendations, if needed.   

c) the acceptability of on-site natural soils and existing fill for reuse as 
engineered fill.   

d) seismicity recommendation based on the subsurface conditions and local 
knowledge.  

e) groundwater effects on the proposed construction.   

f) horizontal boring considerations. 

g) surface and subsurface drainage recommendations; and   

v. The Geotechnical investigation will include: 

a) One (1) boring approximately every 500 feet (ft) along the water line 
route (10 @ 10 ft deep).   

b) Two (2) borings near irrigation ditch crossings (2 @ 25 ft deep). 

c) One (1) boring near wetland crossing (1 @ 25 ft deep). 

d) Laboratory testing and analyses will be conducted to evaluate the 
strength, compressibility, and swell characteristics and classification of 
the soils.   

C. District Scope   

1. Provide the following information and other documents as requested by Trihydro:   

a. Relevant record drawings of Project corridor.  

b. Previous studies, geotechnical investigation reports, design reports, and other applicable 
reports if available.   

c. Flow and pressure data relevant to project, including current pressure zone map of the 
District’s water system area. 

d. Existing water system hydraulic model results and data in report format. 

 

D.  Trihydro Deliverables    

1. Data requests.   

2. Data request tracking log.   

3. Easement surveys and property descriptions.  



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 7 of 11 

4. Site topographic and feature survey.  

5. Environmental review information. 

6. Geotechnical Engineering Report. 

7. Meeting agendas and meeting minutes.   

E. Assumptions   

1. District and Stantec will provide requested water model output data for review and permitting.   

2. Trihydro will coordinate with property owners (assume three [3] property owners). 

3. A Land Agent subconsultant not required for this project. 

4. Cathodic protection subconsultant not required for this project. 

5. All survey data will be provided in modified state plane. 

6. Relocated utilities design is not included in this work scope. 

7. Approvals from landowners for survey, geotechnical investigation, SUE, etc., will be provided by 
Trihydro.   

8. Trihydro’s Surveyor will work with the SUE Subconsultant to collect surface utility markings and 
potholing data. 

9. One (1) survey mobilization is assumed to set project control. 

10. One (1) survey mobilization is assumed during the UAS survey. 

11. One (1) survey mobilization to collect additional data, including subsurface utility information, 
aboveground utility markings, geotechnical boring locations, and pothole locations. 

12. Two (2) rounds of comments from District and property owners to address temporary and 
permanent easement comments/questions. 

13. Geotechnical investigation will be performed along the proposed water line alignment. 
 

TASK 3:  PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING – 50% DESIGN    

A.  Task Goals   

1. Evaluate and finalize water line alignment. 

2. Prepare 50% design water line plans. 

3. Prepare preliminary easement documents for landowner discussions. 

4. Prepare 50% Design Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs. 

5. Perform QA/QC for documents prior to submittal. 

6. Deliver 50% Design documents.   



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 8 of 11 

7. Gather and document District staff comments. 

8. Hold preliminary meetings and coordinate design activities with CDPHE, identified franchise 
utilities, and stakeholders, if requested. 

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Prepare 50% design plans, index of anticipated specifications, and design criteria for 
approximately 4,900 LF of water line including pipeline sizes and materials and preliminary 
alignment and profile.  Identify preliminary water line horizontal boring locations. 

2. Prepare 50% design plans and index of anticipated specifications. 

3. Prepare draft and final easement documents.  Identify extents of permanent easements, as well 
as proposed construction easements, if necessary.   

4. Prepare Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs. 

5. Prepare technical specifications using a combination of District and Trihydro documents. 

6. Prepare draft engineering design report. 

7. Begin coordinating with Weld County for the distribution main design. 

8. Trihydro will perform quality assurance/quality control reviews on design documents. 

9. Trihydro will hold weekly internal project coordination meetings, as needed. 

10. Submit 50% design documents electronically to District for review.  Meet with District staff to 
review and document comments.  Agreed upon review comments from the District will be 
incorporated into the 90% design.   

C. District Scope   

1. Timely review of 50% Design and meeting materials. 

2. Key decision makers to participate in review meetings.  

3. Arrange for relevant site tours by Trihydro and subconsultants. 

4. Provide as-built information for existing water line at proposed connection point. 

D.  Trihydro Deliverables   

1. Draft and final 50% design plans and index of anticipated specifications for review. 

2. Draft and final easement documents.  

3. Draft engineering design report. 

4. Final 50% Design Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs.  

5. Documented responses to District comments.   

6. Meeting agendas and meeting minutes. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 9 of 11 

E. Assumptions   

1. District will review meeting minutes within two (2) weeks of receiving and submittals within four 
(4) weeks of receiving. 

2. District standard specifications will be used. 

3. Easement documents will be revised up to two (2) times. 

4. The drawings will follow Trihydro CADD standards.  The latest version of AutoCAD Civil 3D will 
be used to develop the drawings.  Copies of AutoCAD drawings will be provided as .dwg and .pdf 
files.   

5. Water line material will be selected under Task 2 – Data Collection. 

6. Documents will be delivered in PDF and Excel format.   

7. Drawing size will be scaled for 22 x 34-inch full scale and 11 x 17-inch half scale plan sheets. 

8. Weekly internal project coordination meetings will be one (1) hour in duration. 

9. Design review meeting will be in person at the District’s office or Trihydro’s Fort Collins 
conference room.  Design review meetings will be two (2) hours in duration, and two (2) Trihydro 
personnel will attend. 

 

TASK 4:  90% DESIGN   

A.  Task Goals   

1. Incorporate 50% design comments from District into distribution main design. 

2. Prepare and submit 90% Design construction documents. 

3. Prepare 90% Design Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs. 

4. Gather and document District comments. 

5. Prepare and submit permit applications to agencies. 

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Prepare 90% Design construction documents including:   

a. District standard plans, notes, and details and project-specific details. 

b. Technical specifications. 

c. Complete Division 0 front end documents and technical specifications.  

d. Update the Opinion of Probable Construction Costs.  

e. Prepare final engineering design report. 

f. Trihydro will conduct weekly internal project coordination meetings, as needed. 

2. Submit 90% Design transmission main construction documents. 

a. Trihydro will perform QA/QC reviews on the construction documents.  



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 10 of 11 

b. Submit 90% Design construction documents electronically to District for review.  Meet 
with District staff to review and document comments.  Upon District approval, prepare 
and submit permit applications to agencies.  All permitting fees will be paid by the District 
or reimbursed to Trihydro.  

C. District Scope   

1. Provide District approved front-end documents in Word format. 

2. Timely review of submittals and meeting materials. 

3. Key decision makers to participate in review meetings. 

4. Facilitate internal legal review.   

D.  Trihydro Deliverables   

1. Meeting agendas and minutes. 

2. 90% Design distribution line construction documents and cost estimate. 

3. Documented comment responses on the 90% Design distribution line construction documents.  

4. Submit 90% Design drawings and specifications to CDPHE and Weld County for review.   

5. Final engineering design report. 

6. Submit draft and final permit applications to permitting agencies.   

E.  Assumptions  

1. Reviews of 90% Design contract documents by District and agencies will be considered as final 
review.  All approved comments will be incorporated into a construction set and ready for 
construction.  Any reviews of 100% contract documents will be for completeness only.  Trihydro 
may request additional services for technical comments and plan changes following completion of 
the 90% Design review process (i.e., during the 100% review). 

2. District will review meeting minutes within two (2) weeks of receiving and submittals within four 
(4) weeks of receiving. 

3. Internal weekly coordination meetings will be one (1) hour in duration. 

4. Design review meeting will be in person at the District’s office or Trihydro’s Fort Collins 
conference room.  Design review meeting will be two (2) hours in duration, and two (2) Trihydro 
personnel will attend. 

 

TASK 5:  CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE   

A.  Task Goals   

 1. Assist the District during construction activities. 



EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO 
 

 
 
May 24, 2023 
Proposed Scope of Work   Page 11 of 11 

B.  Trihydro Scope   

1. Trihydro will be available for questions and clarification on project plans and specifications during 
construction. 

C. District Scope   

 1. Perform construction activities. 

2. Perform construction administration activities. 

3. Perform submittal reviews

D.  Trihydro Deliverables   

 1. Plan and specification clarifications as requested up to task budget. 

E.  Assumptions  

 1. District personnel will provide construction administration and observation services. 

2. District will perform construction staking. 

 3. Soils testing and inspection to be performed by a third-party laboratory hired by the District. 

 4. Review of shop drawings/submittals will be performed by the District. 

 5. Weekly construction meetings will not be conducted. 

 6. Up to four (4) trips to the construction site are included in this task. 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

FEE ESTIMATE 
 
 

 



EXHIBIT B.  PROPOSED FEE ESTIMATE
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 1

0

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 8

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 7

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 6

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 4

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ev

el
 4

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
3

La
bo

r S
ub

to
ta

l

Su
bc

on
tra

ct
s 

(L
ab

or
, E

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 
Se

rv
ic

es
)

C
om

pa
ny

 F
ie

ld
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t (
Se

e 
Eq

ui
p 

ta
b)

C
on

su
m

ab
le

 F
ie

ld
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

& 
PP

E 
(S

ee
 E

qu
ip

 T
ab

)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(D

ai
ly

)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(P

er
 M

ile
)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(M

on
th

ly
, C

os
t +

 
Fu

el
)

Ex
pe

ns
es

 S
ub

to
ta

l

Ta
sk

 T
ot

al

Cost + 10% Cost Cost $95.00 $0.655 Cost + fuel   
TASK DESCRIPTION $186 $156 $142 $127 $105 $90 $74 /day /mile
Task 1 Project Management

1.01 Project Management

a Kickoff Meeting with Client 10 8 1 $2,950 205 $134 $3,084

b Client and Project Team Coordination 78 10 $15,778 $0 $15,778

c Develop Project Schedule 2 $372 $0 $372

d Manage Subconsultants 6 $1,116 $0 $1,116

e Monthly Progress Review Meetings with Client (8) 26 30 3 $8,868 1,640 $1,074 $9,942

Task 1 Subtotal (hours) 122 0 0 48 0 0 4 174 Subtotal $0 $0 $0 0 1,845 $0 $1,208 - -

Task 1 Subtotal ($) $22,692 $0 $0 $6,096 $0 $0 $296 $29,084 Subtotal ($) $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,208 $0 $1,208 $30,292

Task 2 Data Collection and Hydraulic Model Review

2.01 Research and Investigation

a Internal Review Meetings (weekly / 1 hr each) 10 12 $3,384 $0 $3,384

b Prepare and Maintain a Data Request Tracking Log 1 1 6 $958 $0 $958

c Identify Ditch Crossing and Contacts 1 2 $396 $0 $396

d Review Model Data for Pipeline Sizing 1 2 6 $1,100 $0 $1,100

e Review NWCWD Supplied Drawings and Data Points 1 6 $816 $0 $816

f Identify Permit Requirements (Ditch, CDPHE, Weld Co.) 1 3 $501 $0 $501

g Coordination in Receiving Information from NWCWD 1 2 6 $1,100 $0 $1,100

h Coordination in Receiving Information from Utility Companies 6 $630 $0 $630

2.02 Conduct Topographic Survey

a Project Management and Administration 8 $1,248 $0 $1,248

b Research, Plot deeds, Preparation of Base Map, stakeout 21 $3,276 $0 $3,276

c Boundary Survey 16 $2,496 $420 2 $610 $3,106

d Geotechnical Bore and Subsurface Utility surveys 14 16 $4,216 $840 2 $1,030 $5,246

e Easement preparation (Construction and permanent) - CAD support 21 18 12 $6,822 $0 $6,822

2.03 Conduct UAS Topographic Survey

a Project Management UAS Survey, Flight Planning 2 10 $1,362 $0 $1,362

b Set Ground Control and Fly 20 $3,120 $2,100 2 $2,290 $5,410

c Download, Data Prep 2 $312 $0 $312

d Data Process, UAS compilation 2 24 $2,832 $0 $2,832

e QAQC 1 4 4 $1,230 $0 $1,230

2.04 Subconsultant Coordination

a Subsurface Utility Engineering and Utility Coordination 1 6 $816 $16,900 205 $17,034 $17,850

b Geotechnical Investigation Coordination 1 6 $816 $15,800 205 $15,934 $16,750

Task 2 Subtotal (hours) 19 110 5 46 97 0 0 277 Subtotal $32,700 $3,360 $0 6 410 $0 $36,899 - -

Task 2 Subtotal ($) $3,534 $17,160 $710 $5,842 $10,185 $0 $0 $37,431 Subtotal ($) $35,970 $3,360 $0 $570 $269 $0 $40,169 $77,600

Trihydro Corporation Expenses
Direct Reimbursables

202305_SmallDiaPipe_CostMaster_TBL.xlsm 1 of 2



EXHIBIT B.  PROPOSED FEE ESTIMATE
CR 84 SMALL DIAMETER WATER LINE PROJECT

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 1

0

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 8

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 7

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 6

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 L
ev

el
 4

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ev

el
 4

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
3

La
bo

r S
ub

to
ta

l

Su
bc

on
tra

ct
s 

(L
ab

or
, E

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 
Se

rv
ic

es
)

C
om

pa
ny

 F
ie

ld
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t (
Se

e 
Eq

ui
p 

ta
b)

C
on

su
m

ab
le

 F
ie

ld
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

& 
PP

E 
(S

ee
 E

qu
ip

 T
ab

)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(D

ai
ly

)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(P

er
 M

ile
)

C
om

pa
ny

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(M

on
th

ly
, C

os
t +

 
Fu

el
)

Ex
pe

ns
es

 S
ub

to
ta

l

Ta
sk

 T
ot

al

Cost + 10% Cost Cost $95.00 $0.655 Cost + fuel   
TASK DESCRIPTION $186 $156 $142 $127 $105 $90 $74 /day /mile

Trihydro Corporation Expenses
Direct Reimbursables

Task 3 50% Design   

3.01 Prepare 50% Construction Documents

a Internal Review Meetings (weekly / 1 hr each) 16 18 $4,866 $0 $4,866

b Prepare 50% Design Plans and Profiles 12 2 60 120 20 $24,536 630 $413 $24,949

c Coordinate with Utility Companies 2 6 $1,002 $0 $1,002

d Prepare Notes and Details 1 6 2 $996 $0 $996

e Prepare and Submit Permits to Agencies 2 38 2 $4,510 $0 $4,510

f 50% Specifications Draft 12 4 50 2 $9,298 $0 $9,298

g Update Cost Estimate 2 8 $1,212 $0 $1,212

h Prepare Draft Engineering Report 5 2 40 80 6 2 $15,382 $0 $15,382

i Quality Assurance / Quality Control Analysis 12 2 2 2 $2,918 $0 $2,918

Task 3 Subtotal (hours) 64 0 10 152 276 28 8 538 Cost $0 $0 $0 0 630 $0 $413 - -

Task 3 Subtotal ($) $11,904 $0 $1,420 $19,304 $28,980 $2,520 $592 $64,720 Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0 $413 $0 $413 $65,133

Task 4 90% Design   

4.01 Prepare 90% construction documents including:

a Internal Review Meetings (weekly / 1 hr each) 20 20 25 $8,885 $0 $8,885

b Prepare 90% Design Plans and Profiles and Address 50% Comments 6 2 80 150 40 2 $31,058 420 $275 $31,333

c Prepare Final Technical Specifications 2 2 36 2 $5,376 $0 $5,376

d Update Cost Estimate 1 6 $816 $0 $816

e Final Engineering Report 2 4 10 50 2 $7,608 $0 $7,608

f Quality Assurance / Quality Control Analysis 14 2 8 2 $4,052 $0 $4,052

Task 4 Subtotal (hours) 45 0 10 154 231 40 8 488 Cost $0 $0 $0 0 420 $0 $275 - -

Task 4 Subtotal ($) $8,370 $0 $1,420 $19,558 $24,255 $3,600 $592 $57,795 Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0 $275 $0 $275 $58,070

Task 5 Construction Assistance

5.01 Construction Assistance

a Construction Assistance 10 42 $7,194 820 $537 $7,731

Task 5 Subtotal (hours) 10 0 0 42 0 0 0 52 Cost $0 $0 $0 0 820 $0 $537 - -

Task 5 Subtotal ($) $1,860 $0 $0 $5,334 $0 $0 $0 $7,194 Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0 $537 $0 $537 $7,731

Total (hours) 260 110 25 442 604 68 20 1529 Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 --

105 Total ($) $48,360 $17,160 $3,550 $56,134 $63,420 $6,120 $1,480 $196,224 Total $35,970 $3,360 $0 $570 $2,702 $0 $42,602 $238,826

202305_SmallDiaPipe_CostMaster_TBL.xlsm 2 of 2



 

 

 
 
 
May 17, 2023 
 
 
 
Mr. Eric Reckentine 
District Manager 
North Weld County Water District 
32825 CR 39 
Lucerne, CO  80646 
 
Re:  Proposed Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 Regulatory Compliance Services Phase II – On-Call Regulatory Compliance Services 
 
Dear Mr. Reckentine: 
 
Trihydro Corporation (Trihydro) is submitting this fee proposal to continue providing professional 
services to the North Weld County Water District (NWCWD) for work on the Regulatory Compliance 
Services Project (Project).  Trihydro proposes continuing this project on a time and materials basis with a 
not-to-exceed budget unless otherwise approved. 
 
Trihydro will continue transitioning regulatory compliance services from Providence.  On-call services 
will also include creating and maintaining a water system monitoring, reporting and tracking plan, 
including public water system requirements, the Backflow Prevention Program, and Lead and Copper 
Rule Program.  Additional on-call services may include the following: 
 

 Updating the Public Water System Monitoring Plan Rule document 

 Assisting with the Lead and Copper Revised Rule system inventory 

 Assisting with Consumer Confidence Reports 

 Developing a program workflow 

 Evaluating database and GIS implementation into the Regulatory Compliance Services program 
 
Project subtasks will be created for project tracking. 
 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Eric Reckentine 
May 17, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
 

202305_RegCompliance_CO1_LTRPROP.docx 

Trihydro proposes increasing the current budget $30,000.  Work will continue to be billed on a time and 
materials, not-to-exceed basis in accordance with the November 2022 Master Service agreement.  A 
budget summary is provided below: 
 

Current Budget – Phase I  $39,591.00 

Proposed Increase – Phase II  $30,000.00 

Total     $69,591.00 
 
If acceptable, please sign the acknowledgement below and email the signed copy to Michelle Sell 
(msell@trihydro.com) and copy Autumn Bainer (abainer@trihydro.com). 
 
Authorized By:  ________________________________________ 
 
Authorized Date:  ______________________________________ 
 
We look forward to this opportunity to collaborate with NWCWD.  Please call us at (307) 745-7474 if 
you have questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
Trihydro Corporation 
 
 
 
Jay R. Ligocki, P.E.     Michelle L.D. Sell, P.E. 
Project Manager     Project Director 
 
75Q-003-001 
 
 























































































 
 

 
 
 

PointCare  Professional Services 
Technology Design, Implementation, Project Management & Support 

 
 
 

Connecting Point Project Summary 
Server and Switching Replacement 

 
 

 
Presented To: 

 
 

 
 
 

May 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                 
                     

      

2401 17
th

 Street – Greeley, CO 80634    |    Denver – Northern CO – Southern WY    |    970.356.7224 

www.cpcolorado.com 

2 

Project Summary:  Server Replacement & Switch update 

Project Concept: The current GIS system is going to be replaced. This will require an upgrade to the existing GIS 
servers to a fully supported operating system. These servers will be created virtually on the existing VMware host 
and the current ones will be removed.  

 

Proposed Deliverables 
➢ Decomission existing GIS VMs 
➢ Install new Windows OS VM and apply all necessary Windows Updates 
➢ Clone new VM to 2 additional VMs 
➢ Setup AV, management and backup for new VMs 
➢ Setup VMs in DMZ network with open ports based on ArcGIS software requirements 
➢ Install existing wildcard SSL certificate onto new servers for secure web access (ArcGIS WebAdaptor)  
➢ Install SQL Express and SQL Management Studio on DB server  
➢ Create DNS hostname records as provided by Client (2) 
➢ Provide remote access to Vendor and assist in migration (1 HR) 
➢ Remove old GIS database components from NWCWD-APP1 once data is migrated to new VMs (?) 

Project Assumptions 
➢ Resource sizing of the new VMs are based on ArcGIS requirements and existing servers. Some 

unknowns, including degree of increase in resource usage on new system, GIS Datastore types (some 

of which ArcGIS requirements suggest may require large amounts additional memory/disk space), 

may require additional resources. Some additional CPU/Memory/Disk space is available on the ESX 

host for assignment in required. 

➢ It is assumed that the existing database is utilizing SQL Express, and the new instance will not have 

issue with the performance limitations of Express and will continue to use that version. Licensing for 

the Standard would be required to provide additional performance of the SQL database. 

➢ The existing GIS databases is onNWCWD-APP1. If the database exists elsewhere, additional 

adjustments may be needed. 

➢ The existing wildcard certificate can be acquired and installed on the new GIS servers. This also 

assumes that the client will provide the required DNS names (2) that will be used for the new system 

so they can be added in DNS. 

➢ The new GIS system will be installed with all VMs in single, isolated subnet. This will protect all other 

NWCWD systems from potential compromise via the GIS systems. The systems will not be specifically 

isolated from each other, and it is assumed that this additional risk (Test being used to compromise 

Production) is not high enough to justify the additional technical work needed for full isolation. 

➢ It is assumed that external (non-NWCWD) users will be accessing the GIS systems. To properly license 

for this scenario, Microsoft requires an External Connector 

➢ We have assumed that only a limited number of NWCWD users will need to access the GIS systems. 

We guesstimated 4 users and have included the CALs for those users. This number can be adjusted to 

the actual number of NWCWD users who will access the GIS system. Alternatively, these licenses can 

be shared with other systems, and purchasing the newer licenses for all users now may mean they 

would not need to be purchased at the next server upgrade. 

➢ We assume that the migration from the old GIS systems to the new systems will be complete in a 

fixed timeframe (a couple of weeks). This will allow time for scheduling of resources to decommission 

the old GIS systems. 

 



                                 
                     

      

2401 17
th

 Street – Greeley, CO 80634    |    Denver – Northern CO – Southern WY    |    970.356.7224 

www.cpcolorado.com 

3 

Solution Pricing  
 

 
 

 
 

Solution Pricing  

➢ Microsoft Licensing  ...................................................................................................................... $7,795.00 
➢ Connecting Point Professional Services ...................................................................................... $5,835.00 
➢ Total ......................................................................................................... $13,630.00 

***Upon acceptance of this proposal a deposit of 33% is required to initiate equipment ordering and project 

scheduling.  The remaining balance plus applicable taxes is due (net 30) upon receipt of the equipment by either 
Connecting Point (for project staging) or the client, or upon the start of project work.  

 

Billing & Payment Terms 

Client will be billed for all associated project costs (labor & materials) two weeks in advance of the start of the 
project which will be due Net 30.  Client has the right to hold up to 10 percent of the total cost of the project until 
formal project close.   

 

Acknowledgement 

I have read this Project Summary in its entirety and agree to its scope, as well as the Connecting Point approach.  I 

understand that the pricing listed is a FINAL PROPOSAL.  I authorize Connecting Point to deliver product and services 

and to provide an invoice for these services as established in this Project Summary.  I have the authority to authorize 

these services and payment and will provide payment to Connecting Point based upon the agreed payment terms.  I 

understand that a signature below indicates proposal acceptance. 

 

Signed: ______________________________________   Date: ________________ 

 

 

Printed Name: __________________________________________  

Software
Qty Description Unit Sell Extended Sell

4 Windows Server 2022 Standard - 16 Core License Pack (Perpetual ) [Commercia l ] 1,247.00$        4,988.00$         

4 Windows Server 2022 - 1 User CAL (Perpetual ) [Commercia l ] 54.00$             216.00$            

1 Windows Server 2022 External  Connector (Perpetual ) [Commercia l ] 2,591.00$        2,591.00$         

Total 7,795.00$         

Project Summary Info
5,835.00$         

7,795.00$         

Total 13,630.00$       

Connecting Point Profess ional  Services

Misc BoM Items

Eric Reckentine
Eric Reckentine General Manager



Page 1 of 4

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This FIRST AMENDMENT, effective the 7th day of June, 2023 by and between the East 

Larimer County Water District, and the North Weld County Water District, acting jointly 

and severally and collectively as further defined in an Intergovernmental Agreement 

(IGA) dated June 14, 2021, hereinafter called "OWNER” (each being a quasi-municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado) and Providence 

Infrastructure Consultants, Inc. a Colorado corporation, hereinafter called 

"CONSULTANT”, witnesseth that,

WHEREAS, the OWNER and the CONSULTANT previously entered into an Agreement for 
Professional Services as of the 15th day of November, 2022, (“EXISTING AGREEMENT”) 
whereby CONSULTANT agreed to perform professional services for a project known and 
described as the NEWT 3 WATER PIPELINE PROJECT, hereinafter called the "PROJECT"; 
and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the EXISTING AGREEMENT as herein below 

provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein and other good and 

valuable consideration, the mutual receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the 

parties agree as follows:

1. Engineering Services During Construction: The EXISTING AGREEMENT is hereby 

amended to include services from the CONSULTANT in the manner set forth in the attached 

Amendment Summary Memorandum and the scope of work for Engineering Services During 

Construction from the CONSULTANT, dated June 07, 2022, attached hereto as Exhibit A 

and Exhibit B, respectively, and incorporated herein by this reference.

This FIRST AMENDMENT will be deemed a part of, and be subject to, all terms and conditions 

of the EXISTING AGREEMENT.  Except as modified above, the EXISTING AGREEMENT will 

remain in full force and effect.

Exhibit A: Amendment Summary Memo

Exhibit B: June 07, 2023, PIC Engineering Services During Construction Scope of Work

[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGE]



First Amendment to Agreement for Professional Service
NEWT 3 WATER PIPELINE PROJECT

In witness thereof, CONSULTANT and OWNER hereby execute this FIRST AMENDMENT. 

OWNER: EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER

DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a 

political subdivision of the State of Colorado:

Signature______________________________

Name: ________________________________

Title:_________________________________

Date: ________________________________

OWNER: NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER

DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation 

and a political subdivision of the State of 

Colorado:

Signature___________________________

Name: _____________________________

Title:______________________________

Date:_____________________________

CONSULTANT: 

Providence Infrastructure Consultants, Inc.

Signature______________________________

Name: ________________________________

Title:__________________________________

Date:_________________________________



First Amendment to Agreement for Professional Service
NEWT 3 WATER PIPELINE PROJECT

Exhibit A

Amendment Summary Memorandum



Page 1 of 1

2133 S. Timberline Road, Suite 110

Fort Collins, CO 80525

ditescoservices.com

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
SUPPORTING SUMMARY MEMO

DATE: June 07, 2023

TO: Randy Siddens, P.E. Eric Reckentine
District Engineer General Manager
East Larimer County Water District North Weld County Water District

FROM: Andrew West – Ditesco

RE: NEWT Pipeline Project, Phase 3
First Amendment to Providence Infrastructure Consultant’s Agreement for Professional Services

The information shown below summarizes items contained within the First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement for the NEWT 
Pipeline Project, Phase 3, between East Larimer County Water District and North Weld County Water District (The Districts) and Providence 
Infrastructure Consultants, Inc. (PIC) dated November 15th, 2022.

Reason for Change

This amendment formally adds Services During Construction to the scope of work for the Professional Services Agreement between the Districts 
and PIC.

Description of Change

The services included in this amendment include seven Phase 5 tasks from PIC’s Engineering Services During Construction (SDC) scope of 
work. The tasks included are described as follows:

Task No. 5000: Project Management, Coordination, and Invoicing
Task No. 5100: Weekly Construction Meetings
Task No. 5200: Contractor Shop Drawing and Submittal Reviews
Task No. 5300: Request for Information Responses
Task No. 5400: Engineering Supplemental Information
Task No. 5500: Field Visits
Task No. 5600: Record Drawings

Each task is further described in Exhibit B.

Change in Contract Amount

This Amendment shall include an increase to the original Contract value of $150,203.00 (One-hundred fifty thousand, two-hundred three dollars 
and zero cents). The adjusted Contract value is summarized below:

Original Contract Cost: $658,947.00
Total Approved Amendments: $0.00
Total Pending Amendments: $0.00
Total This Amendment: $150,203.00
Total % Of Original Contract, This Amendment: 23%
Total % Of Original Contract, All Amendments: 23%
Adjusted Contract Cost: $809,150.00

Change in Contract Time:

No change in contract time.



First Amendment to Agreement for Professional Service
NEWT 3 WATER PIPELINE PROJECT

Exhibit B

Consultant’s Scope of Work



 

NEWT 3 Pipeline Project, Amendment No. 1 Scope of Work Exhibit B.1 

Page 1 of 3 

EXHIBIT B.1 

SCOPE OF WORK 

NEWT 3 PIPELINE PROJECT  

ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

JUNE 2023 

INTRODUCTION / OVERVIEW 

 
This document covers the Scope of Work (Scope) for Providence Infrastructure Consultants (PIC) to 
provide engineering services during the construction of the 3rd Phase of the North Weld County Water 
District and East Larimer Water District Water Transmission Pipeline Project (Project).  Once 
complete, the Project will allow the North Weld County and East Larimer County Water Districts 
(Districts) to convey additional water from the Solider Canyon Filter Plant to their respective 
distribution systems.  This Scope describes the efforts and assumptions associated with PIC 
supporting the construction of the Project’s Work Package No. 2 which involves: 
 
1) The installation of approximately 5.5 miles of 42-inch diameter welded steel water transmission 

pipe and associated appurtenances (air release valves, isolation valves, and blow offs) between 
Timberline Road in Fort Collins and County Line Road. 

2) Two trenchless (tunneled) crossings of a Burlington Northern & Santa Fe Railroad and Interstate 
25. 

3) The installation of three (3) flow metering and control vaults including electrical, 
instrumentation, and controls improvements.  

 
Services under this amendment specifically exclude support of Work Package No. 1 construction 
which has been completed and involved the trenchless (tunneled) installation of a casing pipe under 
Timberline Road in Fort Collins. 
 
PIC services covered by this Amendment involve:   
1) Weekly Construction Meeting Attendance and Participation 
2) Contractor Submittal and Shop Drawing Reviews 
3) Request for Information (RFI) Responses 
4) Engineering Supplemental Information (ESI) Development 
5) Construction Site Visits 
6) Record Drawing Preparation 

A detailed description of these services is included below.  Work under this amendment will be organized 

and tracked as Phase 5 Services. 

PHASE 5 –  SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

TASK 5000 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT, COORDINATION, AND INVOICING 

PIC will support coordination and communications during the Project’s construction phase. While 
these coordination activities are difficult to precisely define, they will generally involve phone, email, 
and written communications with Ditesco, PIC’s staff, and select outside entities.  



 

NEWT 3 Pipeline Project, Amendment No. 1 Scope of Work Exhibit B.1 

Page 2 of 3 

In addition to project management and coordination, PIC will prepare and submit to Ditesco 
construction phase monthly invoices and a supporting monthly progress summaries similar to the 
design phase. For Task 5000, PIC’s efforts are based on the following: 
1) Management and coordination will not require more than two (2) hours of staff time per week 

over the Project’s scheduled construction phase duration (12 months, 52 weeks, 7/3/2023 – 
7/1/2024). 

2) All of PIC’s construction phase coordination will be with the Districts’ Construction Manager.  PIC 
will have no direct coordination with the Construction Contractor or any other outside entities. 

3) Invoicing will not require more than two (2) hours of staff time per month throughout the project’s 
construction phase duration (12 months). 

TASK 5100 – WEEKLY CONSTRUCTION MEETINGS 

PIC will attend and participate in weekly construction meetings. PIC’s efforts are based on the 
following: 
1) No more than 52 weekly construction meetings will take place based on construction starting 

7/3/2023 and ending 7/1/2024.   
2) The Districts’ Construction Manager or CMAR Contractor will prepare the necessary meeting 

materials (agenda and notes).  
3) One to two (1-2) PIC staff member will attend each meeting. 
4) Each construction meeting will take no more than an average of 1/2 hour over the course of 

construction and PIC will attend by remote means. 

TASK 5200 – CONTRACTOR SUBMITTALS AND SHOP DRAWING REVIEWS 

PIC will review submittals provided by the District’s CMAR Contractor through the Construction 
Manager’s cloud-based construction management software (Procore).  Over the course of 
construction, PIC assumes that no more than 100 submittals reviews (80 original, 20 re-submittals) 
will be required.  

TASK 5300 – REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI) RESPONSES 

During the course of the construction, PIC anticipates that the CMAR Contractor or Construction 
Manager will need clarification or direction related to project requirements and/or help with 
interpretations. Over the course of construction, PIC assumes no more than fifteen (15) RFI reviews 
will be required.  

TASK 5400 – ENGINEERING SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (ESI) DEVELOPMENT 

During the course of the Project’s construction, PIC anticipates the need to occasionally issue an 
Engineering Supplemental Information (ESI). ESIs are typically used to make adjustments to the design 
or may be issued if additional project information is uncovered that needs to be conveyed to the 
CMAR Contractor or Construction Manager.  PIC assumes that no more than ten (10) ESIs will be 
developed.  

TASK 5500 – CONSTRUCTION SITE VISITS 

PIC’s Scope includes providing site visits approximately every three (3) weeks during active 
construction (10 months, 40 weeks, 8/14/2023 – 5/13/2024). As a part of this task, PIC will be 
available to visit the site and help answer any questions the CMAR Contractor or Construction 



 

NEWT 3 Pipeline Project, Amendment No. 1 Scope of Work Exhibit B.1 

Page 3 of 3 

Manager have in the field.  PIC’s assumes no more than 16 site visits will take place, each site visit will 
only involve one (1) PIC staff member and each site visit will take no more than 8 hours.   

TASK 5600 – RECORD DRAWING PREPRATION 

PIC will prepare Record Drawings based on red-line drawings from the CMAR Contractor, site visits, 
and any input from the Construction Manager. PIC’s Scope is based producing a record drawing set 
of no more than 130 pages, the drawings will be delivered in electronic format, and no formal review 
meetings will be necessary. 

PROJECT BUDGET AND FEE 

Attached to this Contract Amendment is PIC’s Fee Estimate (Exhibit B.2) and a 2023/2024 ‘Blended’ 
Labor Rate Sheet (Exhibit C).  PIC will provide monthly invoices for the services described above.  
Invoices will be separate from PIC’s design-phase invoices to allow for better management and 
tracking of these services.    



5000 Project Management, Coordination, and Invoicing (12 months, 52 weeks) 22,703$      22,703$         

5100 Weekly Construction Meetings (52 Meetings) 11,417$      11,417$         

5200 Contractor Shop Drawing and Submittal Reviews (100 Reviews) 54,328$      54,328$         

5300 Request for Information Responses (15 RFI Responses) 12,224$      12,224$         

5400 Engineering Supplemental Information (10 ESIs) 11,693$      11,693$         

5500 Field Visits (16) 20,103$      1,213$        21,316$         

5600 Record Drawings (130 Drawings) 16,522$      16,522$         

Phase 5 Subtotals 148,990$  1,213$      150,203$     

Activities and Deliverable Description L
a

b
o

r 
F
e

e
s

E
x

p
e

n
s
e

s

PHASE 5 - Engineering Services During Construction

EXHIBIT B.2
WORK BREAKDOWN STRUCTURE AND FEE ESTIMATE

NEWT Pipeline Project, Phase 3

Engineering Services During Construction
Prepared by Providence Infrastructure Consultants, Inc.

 06/07/2023

Construction Work Package No. 2 

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

E
E

S
 

P
IC

 T
a

s
k

 N
o

. 

PIC FEE



2023/2024 Blended

Providence Infrastructure

Schedule of Billing Rates

Change Font to Hourly 

Position Billing 

Classification Rate

Administration I $86.19

Administration II $113.30

Administration III $154.50

CADD I $84.43

CADD II $121.67

Senior Designer I $145.59

Senior Designer II $160.84

Resident Project Representative I $115.88

Resident Project Representative II $142.81

Data Analyst $76.75

Asset Management Specialist I $112.90

Asset Management Specialist II $147.07

GIS Specialist $139.64

Engineering Intern $71.31

Staff Engineer I $103.99

Staff Engineer II $126.27

Staff Engineer III $144.30

Staff Engineer IV $158.59

Senior Engineer I $171.58

Senior Engineer II $188.74

Senior Engineer III $203.52

Senior Engineer IV $218.28

Principal I $235.59

Principal II $244.97

Notes:

23VM

1.  Position classifications listed above refer to PROVIDENCE's standardized classification 

system for employee compensation.  

2.  The hourly rates shown above are for services through June 3, 2024 and are subject to 

revision after that date.

3.  Non-exempt personnel will be billed at 1.5 times hourly rate and exempt personnel will be 

billed at the standard hourly rate for any overtime.

4.  Expenses will be billed at actual cost and business mileage will be billed at the current 

Federal mileage reimbursement rate.

EXHIBIT B.3



Page 1 of 8

2133 South Timberline, Suite 110
Fort Collins, CO 80525

ditescoservices.com

Delivery by email to:
Eric Reckentine ericr@nwcwd.org

June 7, 2023

Mr. Eric Reckentine
General Manager
North Weld County Water District
32825 Co Rd 39
Lucerne, CO 80646

RE: Greeley Interconnect at Harmony
Temporary and Permanent Pump Station - Scope of Services Proposal

Dear Eric:

This scope of work proposal follows on our recent meetings discussing the Terry Ranch Pipeline project and 
Greeley Interconnect.  We are very excited at the opportunity to provide engineering and construction management 
services to North Weld County Water District to make this water supply infrastructure plan a reality!  We based this 
proposal on the District’s needs for temporary pumping this summer of 2023, and permanent pumping 
infrastructure installation and startup in summer/fall of 2024.

We understand the project will provide needed potable water service redundancy to a currently capacity-
constrained area of the water district in order to reduce supply risk, especially in summer months.  Thank you for 
giving Ditesco the opportunity to provide Design and CM services for this project.  Ditesco is built on relationships 
and we appreciate our continued relationship with North Weld!

Please let me know if you have any questions or require further information regarding this proposal, I can be 
reached by phone at 970.820.0175 and email bill.renz@ditescoservices.com.

Sincerely,

Bill Renz, P.E. – Senior Project Manager 
Ditesco 

Cc: Keith Meyer, P.E.

file



Page 2 of 8

Exhibit A
Harmony Pump Station at Greeley Interconnect

Design & Construction Management
 Scope of Services

Project Understanding

North Weld County Water District (NWCWD) currently plans to construct an interconnect between the City of 
Greeley’s 60” potable supply line and NWCWD’s 24” transmission main.  The interconnect will be located south of 
Harmony and in between Lantham Parkway and County Road 15.  The pump station serves to provide increased 
head pressure to supply the 24” main near CR 80 at a higher elevation.  NWCWD plans to install a temporary 
potable pumping system in summer/fall of 2023 to pump during peak summer supply season when required.  A 
permanent pre-packaged pump station has largely been designed and coordinated prior to Ditesco’s work with EFI-
Solutions, a pre-manufactured pump system supplier.  The pre-packaged pump station has not been ordered yet.

Ditesco’s services include design and coordination with a temporary pump skid supply firm, coordination with other 
entities as needed, including the City of Greeley, the Town of Windsor, CDPHE, and Timber Line Electric and 
Controls for installation of the pump station, startup, and controls.  Portions of the supply and installation of the 24” 
interconnect between the City of Greeley’s 60” line and NWCWD’s 24” line are contracted to be constructed 
through the Terry Ranch Project through an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the City of Greeley and 
NWCWD.  This proposal includes only design and construction management scope not currently contracted for 
through the IGA. 

Our proposed scope is broken into three parts: 

1. Temporary Pump Skid design, coordination, and management.
2. Permanent Pump Station site design, connection, plans of operation, bid package assembly, and CDPHE 

coordination.
3. Permanent Pump Station bid assistance, construction management, and startup assistance.

Temporary Pump Station Design and Management

Our scope includes design, coordination with Stantec and the pump skid supplier, and coordination with CDPHE as 
necessary.  We have included part time field assistance for site checks, startup assistance and general 
coordination.  We have assumed that general operation of the pump skid is by either NWCWD or other general 
contractor during use.  Portions of the controls and pump design will be by the pump supplier.  We anticipate a 
pump skid of two lead and one backup pump capable of pumping 9MGD and controlled via variable frequency 
drives (VFDs).  Ideally, cellular or radio backup communication will be supplied by the skid provider.

 Ditesco will work with Stantec to understand the existing hydraulic conditions for operation of the 
connecting pipe to confirm temporary pump station operating and head conditions.

 We will provide an overall site layout and piping configuration for use in positioning and hooking up the 
temporary pump skid.

 We will participate in regular design and coordination meetings at NWCWD and will provide agendas and 
tracked meeting action items from each meeting.

 We will provide operating parameters and requirements, including performance specifications for the 
temporary potable pump skid supplier.

 We will review information submitted and provided by the pump skid supplier to confirm components and 
operating conditions in advance of pump supply.

 Ditesco staff will provide startup assistance and site checks on an as-needed part-time basis.



Page 3 of 8

 At this time, it is assumed that the operator of the skid will be a general contractor currently contracted by 
NWCWD or one that can be contracted through an on-call contract.  If pumping is intermittent or of lower 
duration, NWCWD may decide to operate it internally with current staff. 

Permanent Pump Station Design

Our scope for permanent design includes site civil design including layout, pipe plan and profile for connecting 
pipelines, design for spread foundation underneath the pump station, general site integration of the pump station, 
blowoffs, venting, and electrical service to the station.  We are assuming that permanent power can be brought to 
the station by the area service provider, Xcel Energy, within a calendar year, based on the existing nearby 
infrastructure.  Design of the permanent pre-packaged pump station, supplied by EFI-Solutions, has been 
performed by others to date.  Ditesco will confirm the station operation with NWCWD’s existing 24” supply 
infrastructure, and integrate the station into the site.  Limited site feature layout has been included in scope but no 
landscaping is currently planned pending completion of easement language and execution of permanent 
easements.  Site electrical service design and provider coordination is included in our scope.  We have included 
coordination time, but we anticipate SCADA integration, programming, and telemetry to be performed by others.  

 Ditesco will work with Stantec to understand the existing hydraulic conditions for operation of the 
connecting pipe to confirm permanent pump station operating and head conditions.  We expect hydraulic 
calculations needed under this contract to be limited to verifying existing conditions and prior pump station 
design and that no modeling is to be performed.

 We estimate the following plan set will be needed to construct the pump station:

o Cover, general notes, existing site conditions, erosion control, and civil site layout (5-6 sheets)
o Mechanical and site piping, plan and profile, general details and connection details (3-4 sheets)
o Site electrical and details (3 sheets)
o Total (11-13 sheets)

 We will provide a Project Manual and technical specifications including Div 0- Div 44 or as required.  We 
plan to use NWCWD standard construction contract documents or can adapt from 2018 EJCDC 
documents.

 We will provide a bid package including instructions to bidders, bid form, and necessary qualifying 
documents for bidding purposes.

 We will participate in regular design and coordination meetings at NWCWD and will provide agendas and 
tracked meeting action items from each meeting.

 We will provide review sets at approximately 50% and 90% design for NWCWD review and will issue a final 
For Bid set.

 We will update and include any changes during the bidding process and provide a conformed For 
Construction PE stamped plan and specification set.

Permanent Pump Bid and Construction Management

Our scope for construction management of the permanent pump station includes bid assistance and general 
contractor and construction management.  We have included regular progress meeting management, part-time 
field inspection and oversight of construction as well as materials testing for essential soils and concrete 
testing.  We have also included, startup assistance, coordination with CDPHE and SCADA integrator as 
needed.  We will provide as-built and job files to NWCWD upon completion of the work.

 Ditesco personnel will coordinate and manage one preconstruction meeting and several pre-activity 
meetings for the various phases of work as required by the specifications.



Page 4 of 8

 We will conduct weekly progress meetings on site or virtually with NWCWD, the general contractor and 
critical subcontractors.  We will provide meeting minutes for all meetings and distribute these via email or a 
Procore document management system provided and maintained by Ditesco.

 We will review and recommend approval of pay applications, review and manage pending issues, 
coordinate responses to RFIs and submittals, and provide for overall administration of the construction 
contract.  Document control will be through a project specific Procore site.

 Our staff will perform periodic site inspections to ensure quality construction and conformity to the plans 
and specifications.  We will provide key coordination with NWCWD operations and the general contractor; 
provide daily logs; and coordinate testing and specialty inspections.  Inspections and onsite presence will 
be part time.

 Ditesco will review all material test reports.  We will comment on reports not meeting specifications and 
recommend remediation measures if necessary.  We will ensure the appropriate numbers of tests are 
taken and that they are sampled according to industry standards and the project specifications.

 We will maintain progress photos of the project.  Photos will include preconstruction, construction and post 
construction phases and will be housed on Procore during construction.  Photos during construction will 
mainly be associated with daily log observations and will be part of the daily log.

 We will maintain project records including contracts, schedules (overall job and three week look-ahead), 
progress meeting minutes, material test results, inspection logs, correspondence, pay applications, pending 
issues logs, routine photographs, submittals, O&Ms, commissioning records and post construction close-
out paperwork (punch lists, lien waivers, substantial completion/final acceptance).

 We will conduct a final punch list walk through and final inspection of the completed items.

 Ditesco personnel will ensure that an as-built plan set is maintained and transmitted to NWCWD upon 
completion of the project.  This will be a redlined drawing set maintained by our staff and will be 
coordinated with plan changes that may be documented by the general contractor.

Schedule

The anticipated schedule is as follows.

Temporary Pump Station Design / Management June 2023 to September 2023
Permanent Pump Station Design August 2023 to December 2023
Bidding January 2024 to February 2024
Construction May/June 2024

Fee Estimate

We have based our fee estimate on the following assumptions of the project schedule.

 Fees associated for permits are not included in this scope of work and assumed by others.
 Survey of area provided by NWCWD from prior work.
 Electrical design is included.  SCADA design and integration is assumed by others.  Coordination with 

SCADA and integration is included.  
 Permanent Pump Station design by supplier, EFI-Solutions.  Coordination for supply of station is in-scope.
 Portions of temporary pump skid and controls by supplier.



Page 5 of 8

Temporary Pump Station Design and Management: $     26,298.00
Permanent Pump Station Design: $     44,258.00
Bidding and Construction Management: $     36,143.00
ODCs: $       3,720.00
Total: $   111,049.00

A detailed task breakdown is included.  Please find this on page 7 and 8 of this scope of work proposal.

The fee shown above is to be billed on a time and material basis based on the rates shown in the table on page 7-8 
of this proposal.  All reimbursable expenses will be billed at direct cost.



Page 6 of 8

Exhibit B

Ditesco 2023 Rates

Role Rate
Principal: $158.00 - $185.00 per hour
Senior Project Manager: $123.00 - $152.00 per hour
Project Manager $118.00 - $135.00 per hour
Project Engineer: $115.00 - $130.00 per hour
Engineer: $95.00 - $122.00 per hour
Senior Construction Manager: $120.00 - $148.00 per hour
Construction Manager/Resident Engineer: $97.00 - $128.00 per hour
Inspector: $75.00 - $124.00 per hour
CAD Design $79.00 - $123.00 per hour
GIS Technician: $72.00 - $118.00 per hour
Administrative: $58.00 - $71.00 per hour
Reimbursable Expenses
Mileage Reimbursement: IRS Rate
Daily Truck Rate (if needed): $105.00 per day
Subconsultant Markup*: None
All other costs at direct expense*
Terms 30 days net



NWCWD

Harmony Pump Station at Greeley Interconnect 6/7/2023

Keith Meyer Bill Renz
Dan Egger / Trent 

Cooper
Whitney Crawford

Principal
Sr. Project 

Manager
Project Engineer Admin

(hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs)

$185 $150 $130 $72

Task 1: Temporary Pump Station Design and Management $24,688

2.03 Contract Management 4 6 4 4 $2,448

1.02 Meetings 0 10 10 0 $2,800 Bi-weekly August/Sept

1.01 Design

    Pump Skid Performance Specification 0 2 6 0 $1,080 Confirm Performance Parameters

    Skid supplier coordination 0 4 2 0 $860 Coord. Pumps, VFDs, Local Controls
    Power and Controls Coordination 0 4 4 0 3,500.00$               $4,620 Electrical review Included, Telemetry by supplier

1.05 Site Investigation 0 2 8 0 $1,340 Access Coordination

1.09 Permitting 0 8 10 0 $2,500 CDPHE Coord for temporary pumping

1.04 Bid Assistance CMaR, On-Call, or Bid Out
    Contracting Package and Coord 2 8 10 0 $2,870

2.1 Resident Engineering 0 14 25 0 $5,350 Coordination, Installation Management

2.6 Startup & Testing 0 2 4 0 $820

Work Effort Subtotal 6 60 83 4 24,688$         

Cost per labor category $1,110.00 $9,000.00 $10,790.00 $288.00

Subconsultants Cost $3,500.00

Effort (days) 0.8 7.5 10.4 0.5

Task 2: Permanent Pump Station Design $44,258

2.03 Contract Management 4 10 0 4 $2,528
1.02 Meetings 0 16 20 0 $5,000 Bi weekly - 4 mos

1.01 Design

    Site Civil, Foundation, Layout, Access Plans 0 10 20 0 $4,100

    Electrical Design and Supply Coordination 0 10 10 0 7,500$                    $10,300 Site Elec Design, Power Source Coord.

    Mechanical, Piping, Connections and Phasing 0 8 16 0 $3,280 Telemetry and SCADA under separate contract

    Telemetry, SCADA Coordination 0 10 10 0 $2,800

    Develop SOP for operation 4 10 8 0 $3,280

1.06 Technical Specifications 0 6 8 0 4,500.00$               $6,440 Geotech for Foundation Design

1.09 Permitting (CDPHE Permit) 0 8 12 0 $2,760

1.04 Bid Assistance Assumed Bid Out
    Contracting Package and Coord 2 14 10 0 $3,770

Work Effort Subtotal 10 102 114 4 44,258$         

Cost per labor category $1,850.00 $15,300.00 $14,820.00 $288.00

Subconsultants Cost $12,000.00

Effort (days) 1.3 12.8 14.3 0.5

Task 3: Permanent Pump Station Bid and Construction Management $36,143 Bid Out and Manage Bid Process

1.04 Bid Assistance 0 10 12 4 $3,348 Change Management, Pay Apps

2.3 Contract Management 4 10 0 0 $2,240 Concrete and Soils Testing

1.05 Geotech and Materials Testing 0 2 4 0 2,500$                    $3,320 Weekly During Construction

2.1 Resident Engineering Part Time, Periodic

    Site Inspection 0 18 44 0 $8,420 Coordination and Permitting Exhibits

    Windsor/Greeley Coordination 0 6 4 0 $1,420 Coordination During Construction

    Site Power Installation 0 4 8 0 $1,640

1.02 Meetings 0 22 28 0 $6,875 Weekly During Construction

Task TotalPhase/Task Description

Classification

CommentsSubcontractor

Page 7 of 8



NWCWD

Harmony Pump Station at Greeley Interconnect 6/7/2023

Keith Meyer Bill Renz
Dan Egger / Trent 

Cooper
Whitney Crawford

Principal
Sr. Project 

Manager
Project Engineer Admin

(hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs)

$185 $150 $130 $72

Task TotalPhase/Task Description

Classification

CommentsSubcontractor

2.2 Submittal Review 0 4 8 0 $1,640

2.4 RFI Response 0 4 8 0 $1,640

2.5 Schedule Review 0 6 2 0 $1,160

2.6 Startup & Testing 0 8 10 0 $2,500
2.7 Project Close Out 0 6 8 0 $1,940

Other direct costs at 2% $2,102

Mileage Reimbursement (Fed Rate) $1,345

Work Effort Subtotal 4 100 136 4 $36,143

ODCs $3,447

Cost per labor category $740.00 $15,000.00 $17,615.00 $288.00

Subconsultants Cost $2,500.00

Effort (days) 0.5 12.5 16.9 0.5

Total Work Effort 20 262 333 12 $105,089

Total Work Effort (days) 3 33 42 2

Total ODCs $3,447

 Total Cost per labor category $3,700.00 $39,300.00 $43,225.00 $864.00

Total Fee Estimate: $108,536

Assumptions:  

5.5 Month Preconstruction (Bi-weekly Meetings)

4 Month Construction (Weekly Meetings)
Initial pump station design by others, site design, piping and pump station connections by Ditesco

Portions of temporary pump skid design by supplier, other GC or NWCWD to maintain operation during use

Integration of permanent station to NWCWD SCADA system by others under separate contract.

Page 8 of 8



1

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This AGREEMENT is entered into on the 12th day of June 2023, by and between the North Weld 
County Water District, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado, hereinafter called "OWNER” and Ditesco LLC, a Colorado corporation, hereinafter 
called "CONSULTANT”, as follows:

CONSULTANT will perform professional services for a project known and described as the Greeley 
Interconnect at Harmony Pump Station Project, hereinafter called the "PROJECT." OWNER and 
CONSULTANT for mutual consideration, agree as follows:

1. Services of CONSULTANT:  CONSULTANT agrees to provide and perform certain 
professional services for OWNER in connection with the PROJECT per the 
CONSULTANT’S letter proposal dated June 7, 2023, attached as Exhibit A. Exhibit A is 
hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this AGREEMENT.

2. OWNER's Responsibilities:  OWNER shall provide CONSULTANT with OWNER's requirements 
for the PROJECT, including, but not limited to, design objectives, capacity and performance 
requirements, flexibility, expandability and budgetary limitations.  OWNER shall furnish to 
CONSULTANT all studies, reports and other data in OWNER's possession or control which 
Owner believes is pertinent to the services to be provided by Consultant.  OWNER shall arrange 
for access by CONSULTANT to the facilities which are required by CONSULTANT to perform its 
services under this Agreement.

3. Schedule:  CONSULTANT shall perform its services in accordance with the schedule set forth 
in Exhibit A and complete the services by December 31, 2024. OWNER agrees that 
CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for delays, which are due to causes beyond 
CONSULTANT’S reasonable control.  In the case of any such delay the time for completion of 
CONSULTANT’S services hereunder shall be extended accordingly.

4. Compensation:
a. Fees: OWNER agrees to pay CONSULTANT compensation for its services satisfactorily 

completed in accordance with the CONSULTANTS’s fee schedule and project budget 
worksheet as attached to Exhibit A. The CONSULTANT shall not exceed the estimated 
amount without the prior written approval of OWNER. This AGREEMENT is not a lump 
sum contract.

b. Billing: Fees and all other charges will be billed monthly, on a time and materials basis, 
and per the CONSULTANT’S tasks as delineated in the CONSULTANT’S project 
budget worksheet as attached to Exhibit A. CONSULTANT shall bill the OWNER as the 
work progresses and the net amount shall be due in 30 days. Should OWNER dispute in 
good faith any portion of an invoice OWNER shall pay the undisputed portion as provided 
herein. Interest of 1% per month (but not exceeding the maximum rate allowable by law) 
will be payable on any amounts wrongfully withheld or not paid within thirty days of the 
billing date, payment thereafter to be applied first to accrued interest and then to the 
principal unpaid amount. 

c. Project Delay: In the event that CONSULTANT’S services hereunder are delayed for a 
period in excess of six (6) months due to causes beyond CONSULTANT’S reasonable 
control, CONSULTANT’S compensation shall be subject to renegotiation.

d. Partial Services:  In the event any portion of the work prepared or partially prepared by 
CONSULTANT is suspended, abandoned, or terminated at the request of OWNER, 
OWNER shall pay CONSULTANT for the work performed on such portion on an hourly 
basis, not to exceed any maximum contract amount specified herein for the designated 
portion of the work.

e. Changes in Scope of Work: In the event the Project’s Scope of Work changes, either as 
necessitated by project conditions, discovery, OWNER direction or any other cause, the 



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

2

CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the OWNER of the change and request an 
amendment to this AGREEMENT. OWNER shall not be obligated to pay the 
CONSULTANT for any work, subcontracted work or other charges incurred outside of the 
original Scope of Work which may have been performed prior to execution of an 
amendment.

5. Standard of Care: In the performance of its professional services, CONSULTANT will use that 
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised under similar conditions in similar localities and no 
other warranties, express or implied, are made or intended in any of CONSULTANT’S 
proposals, contracts or reports. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy of 
data and information provided by OWNER or others without independent review or evaluation 
unless provided on such data and information or otherwise in Exhibit A. CONSULTANT shall 
perform its services in connection with applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards that 
are in effect as of the date of this AGREEMENT.   If any changes occur in such laws, rules, 
regulations or standards that materially affect the scope of work or schedule of this 
AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT'S       compensation shall be renegotiated accordingly.

6. Subconsultants:  CONSULTANT may employ such subconsultants as it deems necessary to 
assist CONSULTANT in the performance or furnishing of the services hereunder, subject to 
reasonable, timely and substantial objections by OWNER.

7. Construction Safety and Methods: OWNER agrees that in accordance with generally accepted 
practices, the construction contractor will be required to assume sole and complete 
responsibility for job site conditions during the course of construction of the PROJECT, 
including safety of all persons and property, and that this requirement shall be made to apply 
continuously and not be limited to normal working hours. CONSULTANT shall not have control 
over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures, as these are solely the responsibility of the construction contractor. 
CONSULTANT shall not have the authority to stop or reject the work of the construction 
contractor but shall promptly notify OWNER if CONSULTANT actually observes any work 
performed by the construction contractor and its subcontractors which is not in compliance with 
the CONSULTANT’S work.

8. Opinion of Construction Cost: Any Opinion of the Construction Cost prepared by 
CONSULTANT represents its judgment as a design professional and is supplied for the 
general guidance of OWNER. Since CONSULTANT has no control over the cost of labor 
and material, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of such opinions as compared to contractor bids or actual cost to 
OWNER.

9. Governmental Immunity:  In performing the services required under this AGREEMENT, 
CONSULTANT is acting as an agent of OWNER, subject to the general supervision and 
control of OWNER. As such, to the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall be 
entitled to the same immunities and protections as any other government employee 
exercising discretion under all applicable statutes, regulations and judicial and administrative 
precedent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to receive any 
other employee benefits from OWNER and shall not have the authority to independently 
authorize the expenditure of OWNER'S funds or otherwise undertake any other action on 
behalf of OWNER except as expressly authorized herein.

10. Insurance Requirement: CONSULTANT will maintain workmen's compensation, general 
liability, professional liability, automobile liability and such other insurance as required by 
OWNER, all in accordance with the insurance requirements set forth on the attached Exhibit 
B and will promptly provide certificates of insurance to OWNER evidencing the maintenance 



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

3

of such insurance.

11. Limitation of Liability: In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the PROJECT to 
the parties, OWNER agrees to limit CONSULTANT'S liability for damages to OWNER 
arising out of services performed by CONSULTANT and caused by CONSULTANT’S 
negligence or intentional acts hereunder to a sum not to exceed CONSULTANT’S 
professional liability limits as set forth in the attached Exhibit B.

12. Instruments of Service: All drawings, sketches, survey notes, calculations (hard copy and 
electronic), data (survey, field notes, electronic data, CADD info, etc.), email, and any and all 
other documents created as part of this PROJECT, excluding Consultant's computer software 
and pre-existing proprietary information, are instruments of service and shall become the joint 
property of the CONSULTANT and the OWNER. OWNER shall have rights to full use of any 
and all instruments of service. CONSULTANT shall have no rights or authority to limit 
OWNER’S use of the instruments of service. CONSULTANT shall deliver instruments of 
service to the OWNER in a format as requested by OWNER and within seven (7) days of 
written request by OWNER.

13. Reuse of Documents: Documents, including drawings, specifications and instruments of 
service, prepared by CONSULTANT pursuant to this AGREEMENT are not intended or 
represented to be suitable for reuse by OWNER or others on extensions of the PROJECT or 
on any other project. Any use of completed documents for other projects and any use of 
incomplete documents without specific written authorization from CONSULTANT will be at 
OWNER'S sole risk and without liability to CONSULTANT. Further, any and all liability 
arising out of changes made to CONSULTANT'S deliverables under th is  AGREEMENT by 
OWNER or persons other than CONSULTANT is waived as against CONSULTANT and the 
OWNER assumes full responsibility for such changes unless OWNER has given 
CONSULTANT prior notice and has received from CONSULTANT written consent for such 
changes.

14. CADD and GIS Data: CADD and GIS data delivered to OWNER shall not include the 
professional stamp or signature of an engineer or architect. OWNER agrees that 
CONSULTANT shall not be liable  for claims, liabilities or losses arising out of, or connected 
with (a) the modification or misuse by OWNER, or anyone authorized by OWNER, of CADD  
or GIS data; (b) the decline of accuracy or readability of CADD or GIS data due to 
inappropriate storage conditions or duration; or (c) any use by OWNER, or anyone 
authorized by OWNER, of CADD or GIS data for additions  to this PROJECT, for the 
completion of this PROJECT by others, or for any other  project, excepting only such use as 
is authorized, in writing, by CONSULTANT. By acceptance of CADD or GIS data, OWNER 
agrees to release CONSULTANT from damages and liability resulting from the modification, 
use or misuse of such data.

15. Fees and Permits: OWNER shall pay the cost of all fees, permits, bond premiums, title 
company charges and reproductions in connection with the PROJECT and 
CONSULTANT'S services hereunder.

16. Asbestos or Hazardous Materials: CONSULTANT is not licensed to provide services involving 
the identification or handling of asbestos or hazardous materials.  Therefore, in providing its 
services hereunder, CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for the identification, handling, 
containment or abatement of any asbestos or other hazardous material present in connection 
with the PROJECT.  In the event that OWNER or CONSULTANT becomes aware of the 
presence of asbestos or any other hazardous material at the jobsite, such party shall 
immediately notify the other party. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to cease any of its services 
that may be affected by the asbestos or other hazardous material and shall not be liable for 



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

4

damages in connection with such termination of services. OWNER shall be responsible for 
complying with all applicable federal and state rules and regulations in connection with the 
asbestos or other hazardous material. Further, OWNER shall release CONSULTANT, its 
consultants, agents, directors, officers and employees from all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses, (collectively "the Liabilities"), which Liabilities are related to asbestos or other 
hazardous materials and arise out of work performed on the PROJECT by others.

17. Termination of AGREEMENT: In the event OWNER fails to pay CONSULTANT within thirty 
days after an invoice is rendered, then OWNER agrees that CONSULTANT shall have the 
right to terminate this AGREEMENT upon ten days' written notice. Except as otherwise 
provided in the preceding sentence this AGREEMENT may be terminated by either 
OWNER or CONSULTANT upon thirty days' written notice in the event of substantial failure 
of the other party to perform in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT. OWNER 
expressly agrees to release CONSULTANT from any liability arising out of CONSULTANT'S 
termination of its services hereunder due to OWNER'S failure to perform and/or pay in 
accordance with the provisions of this AGREEMENT. In the event of termination of this 
AGREEMENT as a result of default by OWNER, OWNER shall promptly pay CONSULTANT 
for all of the fees, charges and services performed by CONSULTANT in accordance with the 
compensation arrangements under this AGREEMENT or on an agreed hourly basis.

18. Dispute Resolution: The parties agree in good faith to attempt to resolve amicably, without 
litigation, any dispute arising out of or relating to this AGREEMENT.  In the event that a 
dispute cannot be resolved through direct discussions, the parties agree to endeavor to 
settle the dispute by mediation. Either party may make a written demand for mediation, 
which demand shall specify the facts of the dispute. The matter shall be submitted to a 
mediator who shall hear the matter and provide a nonbinding opinion and advice in order to 
help resolve the dispute. The mediator's fee shall be shared equally by the parties. If the 
dispute is not resolved through mediation within thirty (30) days following demand for 
mediation, the matter may t h e r e a f t e r  be submitted to the judicial system, in which event 
all litigation and collection expenses, witness fees, court costs and attorneys' fees shall be 
paid to the prevailing party.

19. Assignment: Services provided under this AGREEMENT are for the exclusive use of OWNER. 
Neither O WNER nor CONSULTANT shall assign its interest in this AGREEMENT without the 
written consent of the other.

20. Severability: Shall any provision herein be found or deemed to be invalid, this AGREEMENT 
shall be construed as not containing such provision, and all other provisions which are 
otherwise lawful shall remain in full force and effect, and to this end the provisions of this 
AGREEMENT are declared to be severable.

21. Other Agreements: There are no understandings or agreements except as herein expressly 
stated. This AGREEMENT may  only be modified by a written amendment s igned by both 
parties.

22. Acceptance Not Waiver: OWNER’S acceptance or approval of drawings, designs, plans, 
specifications, reports, and incidental work or materials furnished under this AGREEMENT shall 
not in any way relieve CONSULTANT of responsibility for the quality or technical accuracy of the 
work. OWNER’S approval or acceptance of, or payment for, any of the services shall not be 
construed to operate as a waiver of any rights or benefits provided to OWNER under this 
AGREEMENT.

23. Counterparts: This AGREEMENT   may be executed i n  one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original, bu t  all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument.



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

5

24. Notices: Written notices required under this AGREEMENT and all other correspondence 
between the parties shall be deemed received when hand-delivered or three (3) days after 
being sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.

25. Governing Law: This AGREEMENT shall be governed by  and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the state of Colorado.

26. Unlawful Employees, Consultants and Subconsultants: The CONSULTANT hereby represents, 
warrants, certifies and agrees to and with the OWNER as follows:

a. It does not and shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work 
under this Contract or enter into a contract with a subconsultant that knowingly employs or 
contracts with an illegal alien to perform work under this AGREEMENT.

b. It will not enter into a contract with a subconsultant that fails to certify to the CONSULTANT 
that the subconsultant shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform 
work under this AGREEMENT.

c. It has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 
employment to perform work under the AGREEMENT through participation in either the e-verify 
program jointly administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security and the 
Social Security Administration ("E-Verify Program") or the Colorado Department of Labor and 
Employment employment verification program ("Department Program").

d. It shall not use either the E-Verify Program or the Department Program procedures to 
undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while the Contract is being performed.

e. If the CONSULTANT obtains actual knowledge that a subconsultant performing work under the 
AGREEMENT knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the CONSULTANT shall:

1) Notify the subconsultant and the OWNER within three (3) days that the CONSULTANT has 
actual knowledge that the subconsultant is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; 
and

2) Terminate the subcontract with the subconsultant if within three (3) days of receiving the 
notice required pursuant to Subsection 5.A above, the subconsultant does not stop 
employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that the CONSULTANT shall not 
terminate the contract with the subconsultant if during such three (3) days the 
subconsultant provides information to establish that the subconsultant has not knowingly 
employed or contracted with an illegal alien.

f. The CONSULTANT shall comply with any reasonable request by the Colorado Department of 
Labor and Employment ("Department") made in the course of an investigation that the 
Department is undertaking pursuant to the authority established pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-
102(5)(a).

g. In addition to any remedies which may exist under the AGREEMENT, if the CONSULTANT 
violates any of the provisions of this Section, the OWNER may terminate the AGREEMENT for 
a breach of the AGREEMENT and the CONSULTANT shall be liable for actual and 
consequential damages to the OWNER.

h. It shall, within twenty (20) days after hiring an employee who is newly hired for employment to 
perform work under the AGREEMENT, affirm that it has examined the legal work status of such 
employee, retained file copies of the documents required by 8 U.S.C. Sec. 1324a, and not 
altered or falsified the identification documents for such employees. The CONSULTANT shall 
provide a written, notarized copy of the affirmation to the OWNER.

i. It shall in all respects comply with the provisions of C.R.S. 8-17.5-101, et seq. with regard to 
the employment of illegal aliens.

27. CONSULTANT’S Certifications: CONSULTANT certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, 



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

6

fraudulent or coercive practices in competing for or in executing this Agreement.  For the 
purposes of this Section:

a. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting of any thing of value 
likely to influence the action of a public official in the selection process or in the 
AGREEMENT execution;

b. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (i) to 
influence the selection process or the execution of this AGREEMENT to the detriment 
of OWNER or (ii) to deprive OWNER of the benefits of free and open competition;

c. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the selection process or 
affect the execution of this AGREEMENT.

28. Priority for Conflicts or Inconsistencies:  If there is any conflict or inconsistency between the 
terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits attached hereto and any directives or 
change orders issued by OWNER which describe the scope of the services to be provided by 
CONSULTANT to OWNER, the terms and conditions of such AGREEMENT, Exhibits, 
directives and change orders shall control in the following order of priority:

a. This AGREEMENT.

b. Directives or change orders issued during the course of work.

c. CONSULTANT’S proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A.

[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGE]



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

7

In witness thereof, CONSULTANT and OWNER hereby execute this AGREEMENT. 
 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT,
a quasi-municipal corporation
and a political subdivision of the State of
Colorado: 

Signature_______________________________

Name: ________________________________

Title: __________________________________

Date: ________________________________

CONSULTANT:  Ditesco LLC

Signature ______________________________

Name: _________________________________

Title: __________________________________

Date: __________________________________

List of Exhibits:

Exhibit A: CONSULTANT’S Proposal Letter of June 7, 2023
Exhibit B: Insurance Requirements



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

8

Exhibit A
Consultant’s Proposal



Page 1 of 8

2133 South Timberline, Suite 110
Fort Collins, CO 80525

ditescoservices.com

Delivery by email to:
Eric Reckentine ericr@nwcwd.org

June 7, 2023

Mr. Eric Reckentine
General Manager
North Weld County Water District
32825 Co Rd 39
Lucerne, CO 80646

RE: Greeley Interconnect at Harmony
Temporary and Permanent Pump Station - Scope of Services Proposal

Dear Eric:

This scope of work proposal follows on our recent meetings discussing the Terry Ranch Pipeline project and 
Greeley Interconnect.  We are very excited at the opportunity to provide engineering and construction management 
services to North Weld County Water District to make this water supply infrastructure plan a reality!  We based this 
proposal on the District’s needs for temporary pumping this summer of 2023, and permanent pumping 
infrastructure installation and startup in summer/fall of 2024.

We understand the project will provide needed potable water service redundancy to a currently capacity-
constrained area of the water district in order to reduce supply risk, especially in summer months.  Thank you for 
giving Ditesco the opportunity to provide Design and CM services for this project.  Ditesco is built on relationships 
and we appreciate our continued relationship with North Weld!

Please let me know if you have any questions or require further information regarding this proposal, I can be 
reached by phone at 970.820.0175 and email bill.renz@ditescoservices.com.

Sincerely,

Bill Renz, P.E. – Senior Project Manager 
Ditesco 

Cc: Keith Meyer, P.E.

file



Page 2 of 8

Exhibit A
Harmony Pump Station at Greeley Interconnect

Design & Construction Management
 Scope of Services

Project Understanding

North Weld County Water District (NWCWD) currently plans to construct an interconnect between the City of 
Greeley’s 60” potable supply line and NWCWD’s 24” transmission main.  The interconnect will be located south of 
Harmony and in between Lantham Parkway and County Road 15.  The pump station serves to provide increased 
head pressure to supply the 24” main near CR 80 at a higher elevation.  NWCWD plans to install a temporary 
potable pumping system in summer/fall of 2023 to pump during peak summer supply season when required.  A 
permanent pre-packaged pump station has largely been designed and coordinated prior to Ditesco’s work with EFI-
Solutions, a pre-manufactured pump system supplier.  The pre-packaged pump station has not been ordered yet.

Ditesco’s services include design and coordination with a temporary pump skid supply firm, coordination with other 
entities as needed, including the City of Greeley, the Town of Windsor, CDPHE, and Timber Line Electric and 
Controls for installation of the pump station, startup, and controls.  Portions of the supply and installation of the 24” 
interconnect between the City of Greeley’s 60” line and NWCWD’s 24” line are contracted to be constructed 
through the Terry Ranch Project through an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the City of Greeley and 
NWCWD.  This proposal includes only design and construction management scope not currently contracted for 
through the IGA. 

Our proposed scope is broken into three parts: 

1. Temporary Pump Skid design, coordination, and management.
2. Permanent Pump Station site design, connection, plans of operation, bid package assembly, and CDPHE 

coordination.
3. Permanent Pump Station bid assistance, construction management, and startup assistance.

Temporary Pump Station Design and Management

Our scope includes design, coordination with Stantec and the pump skid supplier, and coordination with CDPHE as 
necessary.  We have included part time field assistance for site checks, startup assistance and general 
coordination.  We have assumed that general operation of the pump skid is by either NWCWD or other general 
contractor during use.  Portions of the controls and pump design will be by the pump supplier.  We anticipate a 
pump skid of two lead and one backup pump capable of pumping 9MGD and controlled via variable frequency 
drives (VFDs).  Ideally, cellular or radio backup communication will be supplied by the skid provider.

 Ditesco will work with Stantec to understand the existing hydraulic conditions for operation of the 
connecting pipe to confirm temporary pump station operating and head conditions.

 We will provide an overall site layout and piping configuration for use in positioning and hooking up the 
temporary pump skid.

 We will participate in regular design and coordination meetings at NWCWD and will provide agendas and 
tracked meeting action items from each meeting.

 We will provide operating parameters and requirements, including performance specifications for the 
temporary potable pump skid supplier.

 We will review information submitted and provided by the pump skid supplier to confirm components and 
operating conditions in advance of pump supply.

 Ditesco staff will provide startup assistance and site checks on an as-needed part-time basis.



Page 3 of 8

 At this time, it is assumed that the operator of the skid will be a general contractor currently contracted by 
NWCWD or one that can be contracted through an on-call contract.  If pumping is intermittent or of lower 
duration, NWCWD may decide to operate it internally with current staff. 

Permanent Pump Station Design

Our scope for permanent design includes site civil design including layout, pipe plan and profile for connecting 
pipelines, design for spread foundation underneath the pump station, general site integration of the pump station, 
blowoffs, venting, and electrical service to the station.  We are assuming that permanent power can be brought to 
the station by the area service provider, Xcel Energy, within a calendar year, based on the existing nearby 
infrastructure.  Design of the permanent pre-packaged pump station, supplied by EFI-Solutions, has been 
performed by others to date.  Ditesco will confirm the station operation with NWCWD’s existing 24” supply 
infrastructure, and integrate the station into the site.  Limited site feature layout has been included in scope but no 
landscaping is currently planned pending completion of easement language and execution of permanent 
easements.  Site electrical service design and provider coordination is included in our scope.  We have included 
coordination time, but we anticipate SCADA integration, programming, and telemetry to be performed by others.  

 Ditesco will work with Stantec to understand the existing hydraulic conditions for operation of the 
connecting pipe to confirm permanent pump station operating and head conditions.  We expect hydraulic 
calculations needed under this contract to be limited to verifying existing conditions and prior pump station 
design and that no modeling is to be performed.

 We estimate the following plan set will be needed to construct the pump station:

o Cover, general notes, existing site conditions, erosion control, and civil site layout (5-6 sheets)
o Mechanical and site piping, plan and profile, general details and connection details (3-4 sheets)
o Site electrical and details (3 sheets)
o Total (11-13 sheets)

 We will provide a Project Manual and technical specifications including Div 0- Div 44 or as required.  We 
plan to use NWCWD standard construction contract documents or can adapt from 2018 EJCDC 
documents.

 We will provide a bid package including instructions to bidders, bid form, and necessary qualifying 
documents for bidding purposes.

 We will participate in regular design and coordination meetings at NWCWD and will provide agendas and 
tracked meeting action items from each meeting.

 We will provide review sets at approximately 50% and 90% design for NWCWD review and will issue a final 
For Bid set.

 We will update and include any changes during the bidding process and provide a conformed For 
Construction PE stamped plan and specification set.

Permanent Pump Bid and Construction Management

Our scope for construction management of the permanent pump station includes bid assistance and general 
contractor and construction management.  We have included regular progress meeting management, part-time 
field inspection and oversight of construction as well as materials testing for essential soils and concrete 
testing.  We have also included, startup assistance, coordination with CDPHE and SCADA integrator as 
needed.  We will provide as-built and job files to NWCWD upon completion of the work.

 Ditesco personnel will coordinate and manage one preconstruction meeting and several pre-activity 
meetings for the various phases of work as required by the specifications.



Page 4 of 8

 We will conduct weekly progress meetings on site or virtually with NWCWD, the general contractor and 
critical subcontractors.  We will provide meeting minutes for all meetings and distribute these via email or a 
Procore document management system provided and maintained by Ditesco.

 We will review and recommend approval of pay applications, review and manage pending issues, 
coordinate responses to RFIs and submittals, and provide for overall administration of the construction 
contract.  Document control will be through a project specific Procore site.

 Our staff will perform periodic site inspections to ensure quality construction and conformity to the plans 
and specifications.  We will provide key coordination with NWCWD operations and the general contractor; 
provide daily logs; and coordinate testing and specialty inspections.  Inspections and onsite presence will 
be part time.

 Ditesco will review all material test reports.  We will comment on reports not meeting specifications and 
recommend remediation measures if necessary.  We will ensure the appropriate numbers of tests are 
taken and that they are sampled according to industry standards and the project specifications.

 We will maintain progress photos of the project.  Photos will include preconstruction, construction and post 
construction phases and will be housed on Procore during construction.  Photos during construction will 
mainly be associated with daily log observations and will be part of the daily log.

 We will maintain project records including contracts, schedules (overall job and three week look-ahead), 
progress meeting minutes, material test results, inspection logs, correspondence, pay applications, pending 
issues logs, routine photographs, submittals, O&Ms, commissioning records and post construction close-
out paperwork (punch lists, lien waivers, substantial completion/final acceptance).

 We will conduct a final punch list walk through and final inspection of the completed items.

 Ditesco personnel will ensure that an as-built plan set is maintained and transmitted to NWCWD upon 
completion of the project.  This will be a redlined drawing set maintained by our staff and will be 
coordinated with plan changes that may be documented by the general contractor.

Schedule

The anticipated schedule is as follows.

Temporary Pump Station Design / Management June 2023 to September 2023
Permanent Pump Station Design August 2023 to December 2023
Bidding January 2024 to February 2024
Construction May/June 2024

Fee Estimate

We have based our fee estimate on the following assumptions of the project schedule.

 Fees associated for permits are not included in this scope of work and assumed by others.
 Survey of area provided by NWCWD from prior work.
 Electrical design is included.  SCADA design and integration is assumed by others.  Coordination with 

SCADA and integration is included.  
 Permanent Pump Station design by supplier, EFI-Solutions.  Coordination for supply of station is in-scope.
 Portions of temporary pump skid and controls by supplier.



Page 5 of 8

Temporary Pump Station Design and Management: $     26,298.00
Permanent Pump Station Design: $     44,258.00
Bidding and Construction Management: $     36,143.00
ODCs: $       3,720.00
Total: $   111,049.00

A detailed task breakdown is included.  Please find this on page 7 and 8 of this scope of work proposal.

The fee shown above is to be billed on a time and material basis based on the rates shown in the table on page 7-8 
of this proposal.  All reimbursable expenses will be billed at direct cost.



Page 6 of 8

Exhibit B

Ditesco 2023 Rates

Role Rate
Principal: $158.00 - $185.00 per hour
Senior Project Manager: $123.00 - $152.00 per hour
Project Manager $118.00 - $135.00 per hour
Project Engineer: $115.00 - $130.00 per hour
Engineer: $95.00 - $122.00 per hour
Senior Construction Manager: $120.00 - $148.00 per hour
Construction Manager/Resident Engineer: $97.00 - $128.00 per hour
Inspector: $75.00 - $124.00 per hour
CAD Design $79.00 - $123.00 per hour
GIS Technician: $72.00 - $118.00 per hour
Administrative: $58.00 - $71.00 per hour
Reimbursable Expenses
Mileage Reimbursement: IRS Rate
Daily Truck Rate (if needed): $105.00 per day
Subconsultant Markup*: None
All other costs at direct expense*
Terms 30 days net



NWCWD

Harmony Pump Station at Greeley Interconnect 6/7/2023

Keith Meyer Bill Renz
Dan Egger / Trent 

Cooper
Whitney Crawford

Principal
Sr. Project 

Manager
Project Engineer Admin

(hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs)

$185 $150 $130 $72

Task 1: Temporary Pump Station Design and Management $24,688

2.03 Contract Management 4 6 4 4 $2,448

1.02 Meetings 0 10 10 0 $2,800 Bi-weekly August/Sept

1.01 Design

    Pump Skid Performance Specification 0 2 6 0 $1,080 Confirm Performance Parameters

    Skid supplier coordination 0 4 2 0 $860 Coord. Pumps, VFDs, Local Controls
    Power and Controls Coordination 0 4 4 0 3,500.00$               $4,620 Electrical review Included, Telemetry by supplier

1.05 Site Investigation 0 2 8 0 $1,340 Access Coordination

1.09 Permitting 0 8 10 0 $2,500 CDPHE Coord for temporary pumping

1.04 Bid Assistance CMaR, On-Call, or Bid Out
    Contracting Package and Coord 2 8 10 0 $2,870

2.1 Resident Engineering 0 14 25 0 $5,350 Coordination, Installation Management

2.6 Startup & Testing 0 2 4 0 $820

Work Effort Subtotal 6 60 83 4 24,688$         

Cost per labor category $1,110.00 $9,000.00 $10,790.00 $288.00

Subconsultants Cost $3,500.00

Effort (days) 0.8 7.5 10.4 0.5

Task 2: Permanent Pump Station Design $44,258

2.03 Contract Management 4 10 0 4 $2,528
1.02 Meetings 0 16 20 0 $5,000 Bi weekly - 4 mos

1.01 Design

    Site Civil, Foundation, Layout, Access Plans 0 10 20 0 $4,100

    Electrical Design and Supply Coordination 0 10 10 0 7,500$                    $10,300 Site Elec Design, Power Source Coord.

    Mechanical, Piping, Connections and Phasing 0 8 16 0 $3,280 Telemetry and SCADA under separate contract

    Telemetry, SCADA Coordination 0 10 10 0 $2,800

    Develop SOP for operation 4 10 8 0 $3,280

1.06 Technical Specifications 0 6 8 0 4,500.00$               $6,440 Geotech for Foundation Design

1.09 Permitting (CDPHE Permit) 0 8 12 0 $2,760

1.04 Bid Assistance Assumed Bid Out
    Contracting Package and Coord 2 14 10 0 $3,770

Work Effort Subtotal 10 102 114 4 44,258$         

Cost per labor category $1,850.00 $15,300.00 $14,820.00 $288.00

Subconsultants Cost $12,000.00

Effort (days) 1.3 12.8 14.3 0.5

Task 3: Permanent Pump Station Bid and Construction Management $36,143 Bid Out and Manage Bid Process

1.04 Bid Assistance 0 10 12 4 $3,348 Change Management, Pay Apps

2.3 Contract Management 4 10 0 0 $2,240 Concrete and Soils Testing

1.05 Geotech and Materials Testing 0 2 4 0 2,500$                    $3,320 Weekly During Construction

2.1 Resident Engineering Part Time, Periodic

    Site Inspection 0 18 44 0 $8,420 Coordination and Permitting Exhibits

    Windsor/Greeley Coordination 0 6 4 0 $1,420 Coordination During Construction

    Site Power Installation 0 4 8 0 $1,640

1.02 Meetings 0 22 28 0 $6,875 Weekly During Construction

Task TotalPhase/Task Description

Classification

CommentsSubcontractor

Page 7 of 8



NWCWD

Harmony Pump Station at Greeley Interconnect 6/7/2023

Keith Meyer Bill Renz
Dan Egger / Trent 

Cooper
Whitney Crawford

Principal
Sr. Project 

Manager
Project Engineer Admin

(hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs)

$185 $150 $130 $72

Task TotalPhase/Task Description

Classification

CommentsSubcontractor

2.2 Submittal Review 0 4 8 0 $1,640

2.4 RFI Response 0 4 8 0 $1,640

2.5 Schedule Review 0 6 2 0 $1,160

2.6 Startup & Testing 0 8 10 0 $2,500
2.7 Project Close Out 0 6 8 0 $1,940

Other direct costs at 2% $2,102

Mileage Reimbursement (Fed Rate) $1,345

Work Effort Subtotal 4 100 136 4 $36,143

ODCs $3,447

Cost per labor category $740.00 $15,000.00 $17,615.00 $288.00

Subconsultants Cost $2,500.00

Effort (days) 0.5 12.5 16.9 0.5

Total Work Effort 20 262 333 12 $105,089

Total Work Effort (days) 3 33 42 2

Total ODCs $3,447

 Total Cost per labor category $3,700.00 $39,300.00 $43,225.00 $864.00

Total Fee Estimate: $108,536

Assumptions:  

5.5 Month Preconstruction (Bi-weekly Meetings)

4 Month Construction (Weekly Meetings)
Initial pump station design by others, site design, piping and pump station connections by Ditesco

Portions of temporary pump skid design by supplier, other GC or NWCWD to maintain operation during use

Integration of permanent station to NWCWD SCADA system by others under separate contract.

Page 8 of 8



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

9

EXHIBIT B

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. The Consultant shall carry and pay for the following insurance coverage with limits equal to or 
greater than the highest limits specified in the Contract or those specified in Section 2 below. In the event 
any work is performed by a subcontractor, the Consultant shall be responsible for any liability directly or 
indirectly arising out of the work performed under this Contract by a subcontractor, which liability is not 
covered by the subcontractor’s insurance. Consultant’s insurance shall have no Exclusion of 
Subcontractor’s Work (Consultant’s insurance not to include Form CG 22 94-Exclusion-Damage to Work 
Performed by Subcontractors on Your Behalf).  Before commencing work, the Consultant shall furnish the 
District with certificates of insurance showing the type, amount, class of operations covered, effective dates 
and date of expiration of policies, and containing substantially the following statement:

"The insurance evidenced by this Certificate will not be cancelled or materially altered, except after 
ten (10) days written notice has been received by North Weld County Water District."

In case of breach of any provision of the Insurance Requirements, the District, at their option, may take out 
and maintain, at the expense of the Consultant, such insurance as the District may deem proper and may 
deduct the cost of such insurance from any monies which may be due or become due the Consultant under 
this Agreement.  

The District and Consultant waive all rights of subrogation against each other, the District and all other 
Consultants to the extent of any property insurance recovery obtained by the waiving party for loss or 
damages caused by fire or other perils, except such rights as such party may have to insurance proceeds 
held by any other person as trustee or otherwise on behalf of such party. 

2. Insurance coverage shall be as follows:

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance for the protection of the Consultant's partners and 
employees as required by law, and Employer’s Liability with minimum limits of: 

$100,000 Each Accident

$100,000 Each Occupational Disease

$500,000 Occupational Disease Aggregate

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance shall include premises/operations, contractual, 
products/completed operations, explosion, collapse, and underground hazard. Minimum limits of 
liability shall be:

$2,000,000 General Aggregate

$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations

$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence

$50,000 Fire Damage (Any one fire)

$5,000 Medical Expense (Any one person)



Agreement for Professional Service
Greeley Interconnect at Harmony

Project, Design, and Construction Management Services

10

The Consultant’s policy shall be primary to any other insurance policies held by District or any other 
additional insured, and no other insurance of District will be called on to contribute to a loss.  Limits 
will apply on a Per Project basis. 

C. Automobile Liability Insurance covering the use, operation and maintenance of any 
automobile, truck, trailer or other vehicles used by the Consultant shall include coverage for owned, 
hired and non-owned liability. Consultant shall be certain coverage is provided which complies with 
all provisions of the law.

$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit

D. Excess Liability

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence

E. Professional Liability

$1,000,000 Each Claim

$1,000,000 Aggregate

F. Additional Insured’s 

a. None required



NWCWD Variance Request Containment to Isolation   
 Premise Number   Premise Address Comments/Assumptions 

110 33244 W CR 31 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

331 12945 CR 80 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

678 14489 CR 66 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

494 28236 CR 58 1/2 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1740 6501 CR 86 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1779 840 Helena Ct Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1369 3519 Holman Court Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1406 28545 CR 72 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1492 28970 CR 72 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1610 9509 Hwy 392 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1887 37353 HWY 85 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1957 17945 CR 76 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

712 1312 N 7th Ave Can be protected with ISOLATION  

750 31306 CR 57 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1207 39450 CR 33 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

29 12404 CR 64 1/2 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

152 5600 East County Road 52 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

161 34645 County Road 31 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

195 38981 West County Road 19 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

368 14219 Highway 14 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

912 42492 WCR 41 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1130 25471 WCR 76 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1226 33899 W CR 55 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1335 10545 Highway 14 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1718 14540 W CR 64 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

1893 34499 W CR 31 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

464 30930 CR 45 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

522 34018 CR 55 Can be protected with ISOLATION  



565 31386 W CR 51 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

2053 30500 CR 388 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

3509 4321 West O Street Can be protected with ISOLATION  

4447 12336 CR 64 1/2 Can be protected with ISOLATION  

 







From: Darin Pytlik <dpytlik@providenceic.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, April 26, 2023 8:52 AM 
To: Eric Reckentine <ericr@nwcwd.org> 
Cc: Garret Mick <garretm@nwcwd.org>; Zachary P. White <zwhite@wbapc.com> 
Subject: RE: Connell - 30 inch Pipeline materials issues and remedy 
 
Eric, 
 
In reviewing the records of the pressure test that was conducted on 3/29/23, the eastern ±3,880 feet of 
pipe was tested in accordance with NWCWD’s Standard Specification Section 33 05 06 which requires a 
2-hour test with a minimum pressure of 150 psi. Furthermore, the Specification allows for a small 
amount of leakage in gallons-per-hour based on a leakage formula that considers length of pipe tested, 
the diameter of the pipe, and the test pressure. The leakage is tracked using makeup water that the 
Contractor has to put into the pipe to maintain pressure. 
Using the given formula, the maximum allowable leakage for the test section over the 2-hour test 
duration calculates to be 19.2 gallons or 9.6 gallons-per-hour. After reviewing the test records from 
3/29/23, Connell used ±1 gallon of total makeup water to maintain the abovementioned test pressure. 
These records show that they definitively passed the test, which is very encouraging. However, I 
encourage NWCWD to take Connell up on their offer to retest this segment of one more time later this 
year to ensure nothing has changed. In talking with Connell this week, I was able to confirm their 
willingness and intent to retest this section of pipeline. 
 
In addition to reviewing the test records and allowable leakage, I’ve also researched mechanical joint 
(MJ) leakage issue and consulted with several industry experts and other contractors on this issue. None 
of these contacts have experienced these issues with leaking mechanical joints. Below are a variety of 
notes for your files that cover my questions and thoughts on the matter: 

1) Is it possible that Connell installed the gaskets backwards? If they did, the geometry of the 
gasket sitting in the joint may not have engaged to provide full sealing until the extra torque was 
applied to the nuts on the joints’ T-bolts. In order to definitively answer this, a complete 
disassembly of the joints would be required. However, if the gaskets were installed backwards, I 
don’t think Connell could have achieved sealed joints like they have. I also think that a backward 
gasket would have been very evident at the time the restraining gland (Mega-Lug) was butted 
up against the gasket prior to tightening. In speaking with independent contractors, the 
installation of a backward MJ gasket would be very unlikely. 
 

2) Is it possible that Connell tightened the radial bolts on the Mega-Lugs prior to tightening the 
nuts on the T-bolts which is required to compress the gasket and create a seal? By doing this, 
the radial bolts in the Mega-Lug gland ring would have likely prevented adequate compression 
of the gasket at the point T-bolt nut torque was reached. Combining the experience of Connell’s 
crew, and oversight provided by NWCWD and TriHydro, this possibility seems minimal. In either 
case, the passing hydro test indicates that this issue was inherently remedied during the 
retorquing process after the joints were re-excavated. 
 

3) Did Connell use lubricate (“soap”) to facilitate the assembly of the mechanical joints? The 
Ductile Iron Pipe Research Association (DIPRA) provides guidance on the installation of ductile 
iron fittings with mechanical joints. DIPRA’s Installation Guide mentions the use of lubricant to 
facilitate the assembly of mechanical joints. However, DIPRA does not mention that lubricant is 
necessary to achieve a sealed joint. If Connell was using gaskets that were either old or had 



been exposed to the elements for a long period and the rubber had dried out, lubricant may 
have helped with sealing to some extent. Connell confirmed during the meeting at NWCWD’s 
office on 3/15/23 that they did not use lubricant while assembling the joints. I also confirmed 
with Connell on 4/24/23 that the gaskets did not appear to be dried-out, unpliable, or suspect in 
any way. 
 

4) Did installation during winter conditions contribute challenges with joint sealing? My initial 
suspicion that installing cold gaskets may have contributed to the sealing issues is ‘loosely’ 
confirmed by DIPRA. DIPRA recommends warming gaskets prior to installation in cold weather 
as a preferred practice; not a requirement. One contractor I spoke to said they keep gaskets in 
their pickups with the heater on them, and I’ve observed contractors doing this on past projects. 
I communicated this to Connell, and I would also recommend that NWCWD make this a best 
practice going forward. 
 

5) Is it uncommon to torque the joint bolts above specification? One contractor I spoke to said 
they regularly over-torque T-bolt nuts upon assembly of mechanical joints to prevent any 
potential for leakage and to allow for post-installation settlement of the thick gaskets. This 
contractor also stated that “over-torquing” a mechanical joint is very hard to do. This contractor 
feels comfortable applying additional torque as the gaskets have considerable elasticity and 
settle in the joint; and the steel T-Bolts also have inherent elasticity. Considering this 
independent conversation, I don’t believe Connell’s follow up efforts to apply additional torque 
to the joints was unreasonable or abnormal.  
 

6) Should there be any concern related to the integrity of the T-bolts and nuts based on Connell 
applying additional torque? In re-reviewing Connell’s submittal, the T-bolts used on the job were 
manufactured in accordance with AWWA Standard C111 (Rubber-Gasket Joints for Ductile-Iron 
Pressure Pipe and Fittings). This Standard describes the required bolt diameters, nut dimensions, 
and steel properties of the bolts. Based on a specified proof strength of the 1-inch T-bolts that 
were installed, a maximum torque of 268 ft-lbs was calculated, and a recommended torque of 
201 ft-lbs was calculated, for normal fastening. This translates into a tensile load on the bolts of 
16,068 pounds (max) and 12,051 pounds (normal), respectively. Tensile loads on the T-Bolts 
were also calculated for 120-, 140-, and 160 foot-pounds of torque and were determined to be 
7,200 pounds, 8,400 pounds, and 9,600 pounds, respectively. Based on the calculations, I don’t 
feel that NWCWD should be concerned with the additional torque that was applied to the T-
bolts. 
 

Regarding an extended warranty, I was able to speak to Connell and they are agreeable to providing a 5-
year warranty on the mechanical joints in this section of pipeline. Based on common warranties included 
in normal construction contracts which are typically two years, I would recommend that NWCWD accept 
this extended warranty. If there are issues with these mechanical joint installations, I believe it will 
become evident within this 5-year window. If this extended warranty is acceptable to NWCWD, Connell 
offered to draft a warranty letter which will also include an agreement to perform the additional 
pressure test to be performed later this year.  
 
Please note that in my conversations with Connell, I understand that they were not able to obtain any 
type of product certification from the PVC pipe manufacturer (Diamond) or from the gasket 
manufacturer (Star). In Connell’s conversations with Diamond, they foresee no issues with the integrity 
of their pipe by torquing bolts beyond 120 ft-lbs, as it pertains to their pipe. Related to Star, Connell said 



that a product representative contacted them after performing materials testing on the sample gaskets 
that were taken from the site and found no issues. As such, Star will not agree to providing a 
certification or guarantee. 
 
Based on all of the follow up efforts that I was able to perform, below are my next step 
recommendations for NWCWD: 

1) Accept Connell’s offer of an additional warranty and follow up pressure testing. If the additional 
warranty and testing is not acceptable to NWCWD, I recommend another meeting take place 
between NWCWD and Connell to discuss what other measures could potentially be taken. If the 
additional warranting and testing is acceptable, I will request that Connell draft a letter for 
NWCWD’s review and approval. 

2) In line with recommendation 1, oversee the second pressure test later this year. I would 
recommend that this test be performed in cold weather to try to mimic the same climate 
conditions experienced during the initial installation. Furthermore, because Josh Matthews 
oversaw the first test, I recommend NWCWD have him oversee the second test for consistency 
and evaluate whether any discrepancies exist between the test procedures/results. 

3) Remove Star components from NWCWD’s specifications for pipe sizes 24-inches, and larger. 
Please note that I understand that other water providers in Colorado exclude Star components 
from their specifications/approved supplier lists. 

4) Add requirements to NWCWD specifications: 
a. Use lubricant to assemble mechanical joints. 
b. Provide the means to keep gaskets warm prior to installation in cold temperatures. 

 
Darin 
 
From: Darin Pytlik  
Sent: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 3:51 PM 
To: 'Eric Reckentine' <ericr@nwcwd.org> 
Cc: Garret Mick <garretm@nwcwd.org>; Zachary P. White <zwhite@wbapc.com> 
Subject: RE: Connell - 30 inch Pipeline materials issues and remedy 
 
Eric, 
Okay – I have a call into Connell regarding these items. 
I’ll follow-up after I’ve had a chance to discuss with them. 
Darin 
 
From: Eric Reckentine <ericr@nwcwd.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 2:00 PM 
To: Darin Pytlik <dpytlik@providenceic.com> 
Cc: Garret Mick <garretm@nwcwd.org>; Zachary P. White <zwhite@wbapc.com> 
Subject: Connell - 30 inch Pipeline materials issues and remedy 
 
Darin 
 
NW met with Connell and PIC to discuss the material issues, the resulting leaks along the ¾ mile 
segment of the 30 inch PVC installed pipeline. The contractor methodology to remedy the leaks was to 
overtighten the lugs above manufacturer recommendations and conduct a pressurization retest. 
 



Currently the contractors pay aps are on hold until we determine the next course of action for the 
district. 
 
We discussed with the contractor  

1. Additional warranty period 
2. Additional pressure testing 
3. Certification from both the pipe company and gasket manufacturer  

 
Prior to finalizing pay applications the district needs to understand the best remedy to eliminate any risk 
to district up to including reinstallation of the gaskets  
 
Please provide a recommendation of nest steps for district  
 
Eric  
 
 
 

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the 
recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited 
and may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast 
Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your 
human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 

 
 

 CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or 
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  



1  

LICENSE TO ENTER CITY OF THORNTON PROPERTY 

 

The CITY OF THORNTON, a Colorado home rule municipality, located at 9500 Civic Center 

Drive, Thornton, Colorado 80229 (hereinafter “Licensor” or “Thornton”), the owner of property in 
Weld County Colorado, as more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A incorporated 
herein by this reference (the “Property”), does hereby grant this License to Enter (“License”) to 
allow North Weld County Water District, a Colorado political subdivision, whose address is 32825 

CR 39, Lucerne, CO 80646 (hereinafter “Licensee”), its employees, authorized agents and 
contractors (“Crews”), to enter upon the Property for the purpose of: surveying, environmental and 
geotechnical investigations, and other necessary field work and data gathering in connection with 
the construction of a 42” water pipeline (the “Work”). 

 
This License is subject to the following conditions and limitations: 

 

1. This License shall commence on the date set forth below for  a term of one (1) year.  

2. Licensee’s crews will not enter fields that have crops or that are being prepared for crop 

planting with vehicles or ATV’s. 

3. Crews will coordinate Licensee’s access to the Property with Thornton by contacting Brian 
Foss at (303) 538-7568, Brian.Foss@ThorntonCO.gov or Mike Flowers at (720) 977-7565, 
Mike.Flowers@ThorntonCO.gov at least 24 hours prior to entry. 

4. All Work allowed under this License shall be performed in compliance with any and  all 
applicable laws, codes or regulations by state, federal, or local requirements. 

5. This License does not provide Licensee with any right to construct any permanent 
structures or above-ground appurtenances on the Property.    

6. All Work allowed under this License shall be conducted in a manner that will not 
permanently damage the Licensor’s Property or interfere with Licensor’s or its tenant or agent’s 
use and occupancy of the Property and Licensee shall leave the Property in the same condition 
found. 

7. Licensee will be responsible for any injury or damage to any of the infrastructure or 
facilities or any of the operations being conducted on the Property, resulting from the Work, as a 
condition of Licensee’s access to the Property. 

8. Licensee affirms that by entering into this License, Thornton will require Licensee, and 

Licensee agrees to design, locate and place any resulting infrastructure on the Property so as to 
locate such infrastructure as close to existing property lines as possible so that such infrastructure 
causes the minimum possible inconvenience and damage to Thornton and/or the Property. 

9. Licensee shall be responsible for securing the Property while conducting all Work allowed 

under this License, using temporary fencing and/or signage, if necessary for the protection of 
livestock, personnel and/or the public.  Any such fencing shall be constructed in a way so as not 



2  

to prevent access to the Property by Licensor and/or the Landowner in the event of an emergency. 

10. Licensee hereby agrees to promptly pay for any damages, including but not limited to 
damages of growing crops, pasture, fences, livestock, drain tile or buildings of Licensor, its 

tenants, or agents, resulting from Licensee’s exercise of the rights granted herein. 

11. Licensee hereby releases Licensor, it tenants and agents from and against any claims for 
injury or damages, including court costs and attorney’s fees, arising from the exercise of this grant 
herein, except for claims arising from the negligence or willful misconduct of Licensor, its tenants, 

or agents. 

12. Licensee, its agents, contractors, or affiliates agree to obtain and maintain in force during 
the term of this License, at its own cost, the following insurance coverages: 

a) Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance as required by the Labor 

Code of the State of Colorado. 

b) Commercial General Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each 
occurrence and $2,000,000 general aggregate naming Licensor as an additional insured. 

13. Licensor does not guarantee that any markers or stakes will remain on the Property for any 

length of time. No metal markers or flags are to be used, only wooden stakes and only if necessary. 

14. Licensee agrees to furnish Licensor, at no cost to Licensor, copies of any and all study and 
survey results and reports produced by or for Licensee as a result of the Work done under this 
License. 

15. Licensee and Licensor understand and agree that they and their officers and employees, are 
relying on, and do not waive or intend to waive, by any provision of this License, the monetary 
limitations or any other rights, immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101 et seq., as it is from time to time amended, or otherwise available 

to Licensor and Licensee and their respective officers and employees. 

16. Licensor or Licensee may terminate this License to Enter without cause by providing 30 
days written notice the intent to terminate. 

17. The parties hereby warrant that each party signing below has full and lawful authority to 

execute this License to Enter on behalf of said party. 

 

 APPROVED AND AGREED TO this      day of __________________, 2023. 

Signature pages follow. 



3  

 

 
LICENSOR: 

 

CITY OF THORNTON 

a Colorado home rule municipality 
 
 

By:_____________________________ 

Brett E. Henry, Executive Director-Infrastructure 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 

 

Kristen N. Rosenbaum, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Tami Yellico, City Attorney 
 
 

 

Kara Godbehere, Senior Assistant City Attorney - Water



 

 

LICENSEE:  
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER  
DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the  

State of Colorado 
 
ATTEST:            
             

____________________                    ___________________________ 
Scott Cockroft, Secretary  Tad Stout, President      
 
 

STATE OF COLORADO  
   ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________  
 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 2023, by 
Tad Stout, as President of the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political 
Subdivision of the State of Colorado. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: _________________  

 
             
      _____________________________ 
      Notary Public 

  



 

 

Exhibit A 

Property Description 

Thornton Farm 64 
 

 

Legal Description per County Assessor: PT SW4 7-7-67 LOT B, REC EXEMPT RE-946  

 

Location Address: VACANT LAND  

 

Assessor Parcel Number: 070507000046  

 
 































































































1 

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
(North Weld County Water District) 

THIS TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 
made this                            day of ___________________, 2023 (“Effective Date”), by and between 
Shaun Amelia Basiliere and Wesley Jay Basiliere, whose address is 13813 County Road 74, Eaton 
CO 80615 (“Grantor”), and NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado, whose address is 32825 Weld CR 39, 
Lucerne, Colorado 80646 (the “District”). 

1. Grantor’s Property.  Grantor is the owner of that certain parcel of real property 
located in Weld County, Colorado, which is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made 
a part hereof (the “Property”). 

2. Grant of Temporary Easement.  For and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars 
($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration paid by Grantee to Grantor, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Grantor has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, 
and by this Agreement does grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm unto Grantee, its successors and 
assigns, a temporary construction easement (the “Temporary Easement”) in, on, under, over, across 
and upon the real property legally described and depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Temporary Easement Area”). 

3. Purpose and Uses of Temporary Easement.  The Temporary Easement herein granted 
may be used by the District for the purposes of: 

(a) Surveying, locating, installing, constructing, reconstructing, using, operating,
maintaining, inspecting, repairing, altering, removing, and replacing one (1)
or more buried water pipelines, in whole or in part, and all necessary
subsurface and surface appurtenances for the transportation of water and the
operation of water control facilities; (the “Improvements”), including
supporting pipelines located within the Temporary Easement Area across
ravines and water courses with such structures as the District shall reasonably
determine to be necessary or advisable;

(b) Cutting and clearing trees, brush, debris and other obstructions on the
Temporary Easement Area that might interfere with the District’s activities
on the Temporary Easement Area;

(c) Allowing the District’s contractors, agents and employees to enter upon the
Temporary Easement Area with machinery, trucks, materials, tools and other
equipment which may be used or required in the construction of a water
pipeline; and

(e) Marking the location of the Temporary Easement Area by suitable markers
set in the ground.



 
 

2 

 4. Term.  The Temporary Easement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall 
terminate thirty (30) days following completion of construction of the Improvements and related 
facilities within the Temporary Easement Area or one (1) year following the Effective Date, 
whichever shall first occur. 
 
 5. Additional Rights of the District.  Grantor further grants to the District, its successors 
and permitted assigns: 
 

(a) The right of ingress to and egress from the Temporary Easement Area over, 
across and upon the Property by means of any roads and lanes now or 
hereafter located thereon; and 

 
(b) The right to install, maintain and use gates or other livestock barriers in all 

fences which now cross or shall hereafter cross the Temporary Easement 
Area. 

 
(c) The right to grade the Temporary Easement Area as determined by the 

District to be reasonably necessary or advisable for the proper use thereof for 
the purposed set forth in Section 3 above. 

 
(d) The District shall have and exercise the right of subjacent and lateral support 

to whatever extent is necessary for the operation and maintenance of the 
Improvements. It is specifically agreed to between and among the parties 
that, except as provided in this Easement, the Grantor, its successors and 
assigns, shall not take any action which would impair the lateral or subjacent 
support for the Improvements. The Grantor, its successors and assigns, shall 
have and exercise the right of subjacent and lateral support to whatever extent 
is necessary for the operation and maintenance of any improvements on the 
property adjoining the Property. It is specifically agreed by and between the 
Grantor and the District that, except as provided in this Agreement, the 
District shall not take any action which would impair the lateral or subjacent 
support for such improvements. This paragraph is not intended to prohibit the 
development of the private property located adjacent to the Property. 

 
(e) The District shall have the right to use so much of the adjoining premises of 

the Grantor, its successors or assigns, during surveying, construction, 
reconstruction, use, maintenance, repair, replacement and/or removal of the 
Improvements as may be reasonably required; provided, however that such 
activities shall not interfere unreasonably with Grantor’s, its successors’ or 
assigns’ use and enjoyment of such adjoining premises. The District and its 
permitted assignees and licensees shall repair any damage caused to any 
adjoining premises and the improvements thereon, and shall be liable for any 
injury to any person or damage to property, to the extent arising out of the 
District’s, its permitted assignee’s or licensee’s use of the Easement. 

 
 6. The District’s Obligations.  In connection with the District’s use of the Temporary 



 
 

3 

Easement Area, the District shall: 
 

(a) Insofar as practicable, restore the surface of the ground to its condition prior 
to the District’s activities related to the Improvements on the Temporary 
Easement Area; 

 
(b) Insofar as practicable, restore existing fences, drain tile, irrigation systems, 

landscaping, private roads and other improvements, to the conditions existing 
prior to the District’s activities related to the Improvements within the 
Temporary Easement Area; and 

 
(c) Pay Grantor the fair market value for any growing crops, livestock and other 

items which are damaged by the District’s activities related to the 
Improvements within the Temporary Easement Area. 

 
7. Livestock Crossing During the District’s Operations on Temporary Easement Area.  

In the event Grantor’s Property is being used for grazing purposes, the District agrees that, during 
the period of construction activities related to the Improvements within the Temporary Easement 
Area, the District shall leave or arrange for reasonable crossing over the Temporary Easement Area 
for cattle and livestock of Grantor and its tenants and lessees.  Further, whenever it becomes 
necessary for the District, its agents or contractors to cut a fence on Grantor’s Property during its 
operations, the District shall, at its option, either keep the gate closed or guarded in such a manner so 
as to prevent the entrance and exit of cattle or livestock through such opening, or construct in any 
one (1) or more places, substantial gates with dual locks and to furnish Grantor with one (1) set of 
keys thereto.  Before any of Grantor’s fences are cut by the District, the fence shall be braced in 
order to prevent slackening of wires along the fence in each direction from the District’s temporary 
opening. 

 
8. Maintenance of Temporary Easement Area. 

 
(a) Grantor will maintain the surface of the Temporary Easement Area (except 

for any of the District’s Improvements permitted thereon) in a sanitary 
condition in compliance with any applicable weed, nuisance or other legal 
requirements; however, Grantor is not responsible for any conditions directly 
caused by the District’s use and occupancy of the Temporary Easement Area. 

 
(b) Grantor will not deposit, or permit or allow to be deposited, earth, rubbish, 

debris, or any other substance or material, whether combustible or 
noncombustible, within the Temporary Easement Area. 

 
(c) Upon completion of construction activities, the District will make such 

repairs or take such other action as may be reasonably necessary to restore 
the Temporary Easement Area to a condition comparable to its prior 
condition as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, re-seeding and re-planting of any disturbed areas in a manner 
reasonably satisfactory to Grantor, correction of any subsidence and 



 
 

4 

restoration of any other improvements or conditions impacted by the 
District’s activities related to the Improvements. 

 
 9. Representations of Grantor.  Grantor represents and warrants that it is the lawful 
owner in fee simple of the Temporary Easement Area; that it has good and lawful right and authority 
to grant, sell and convey the Temporary Easement Area or any part thereof; and that it will warrant 
and defend title to the Temporary Easement and Temporary Easement Area. 
 
 10. Additional Terms and Conditions.   
 

(a) Construction.  Whenever used herein, the singular includes the plural, the 
plural the singular; and the use of any gender is applicable to all genders. 

 
(b) Validity.  If any term of this Agreement is determined by any court to be 

unenforceable, the other terms of this Agreement shall nonetheless remain in 
full force and effect; provided, however, that if the severance of any such 
provision materially alters the rights or obligations of the parties, the parties 
shall engage in good faith negotiations in order to adopt mutually agreeable 
amendments to this Agreement as may be necessary to restore the parties as 
closely as possible to the initially agreed upon relative rights and obligations. 

 
(c) Binding Effect.  All of the covenants herein contained are binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns.  

 
(d) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

 
(e) Recordation. This Agreement shall be recorded in the real property records of 

Weld County. 
 
(f) Assignability. It is expressly acknowledged and agreed that the District shall 

have the right and authority to assign the Easement to any appropriative local 
governmental entity or to any public utility provider, including but not 
limited to all rights to use, and all obligations associated with, the Easement 
as are granted to and assumed by the District herein, subject to such assignee 
assuming the obligations set forth herein, the District shall have the right and 
authority to grant temporary construction easements to any appropriative 
local governmental entity or public utility provider for purposes of 
construction, reconstruction, operation, use, maintenance, repair, replacement 
and/or removal of the Improvements, subject to all the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement. 

 
(g) Benefits and Burdens.  Each and every one of the benefits and burdens of this 

Agreement shall inure to and be binding upon the respective legal 



 
 

5 

representatives, administrators, successors and permitted assigns of the 
Grantor and the District. 

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 
 
 
 

 





7 

DISTRICT: 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado 

By________________________________ 
                   Tad Stout, President 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF WELD  ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ 
day of _____________________, 2023, by Tad Stout, as President, of NORTH WELD 
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of 
the State of Colorado. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires:  ____________________ 

_______________________________________ 
Notary Public 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Grantor’s Property 
 

PT E2SE4 32-7-66 AMEND SUB EXEMPT AMDSE-1030 



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Legal Description of Temporary Easement Area 
 
 
 

 







1 

PERMANENT WATER EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
(North Weld County Water District) 

THIS PERMANENT WATER EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this 
_____ day of ____________, 2023, by and between Shaun Amelia Basiliere and Wesley Jay 
Basiliere, whose address is 13813 WCR 74, Eaton CO 80615 ( “Grantor”), and NORTH WELD 
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State 
of Colorado, whose address is 32825 County Road 39, Lucerne, Colorado 80646 (the “District”). 

1. Grantor’s Property.  Grantor is the owner of that certain parcel of real property 
located in Weld County, Colorado, which is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made 
a part hereof (the “Property”). 

2. Grant of Easement.  For and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and 
other good and valuable consideration paid by Grantee to Grantor, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, Grantor has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, and by this 
Agreement does grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, a 
perpetual easement (the “Easement”) in, on, under, over, across and upon the real property legally 
described and depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the 
“Easement Area”). 

3. Purpose and Uses of Easement.  The Easement herein granted may be used by the 
District for the purposes of: 

(a) Surveying, locating, installing, constructing, reconstructing, using, operating,
maintaining, inspecting, repairing, altering, removing, and replacing one (1)
or more buried water pipelines, in whole or in part, and all necessary
subsurface and surface appurtenances for the transportation of water and the
operation and control of water facilities (the “Improvements”) including;
supporting pipelines located within the Easement Area across ravines and
water courses with such structures as the District shall reasonably determine
to be necessary or advisable;

(b) Marking the location of the Easement Area and Improvements therein by
suitable markers set and maintained in the ground at locations which shall not
unreasonably interfere with Grantor’s use of the Easement Area under the
terms of this Agreement; and

(c) Cutting and clearing trees, brush, debris and other obstructions on the
Easement Area that might interfere with the operation and maintenance of the
District’s activities and facilities related to the Improvements on the
Easement Area.

4. Additional Rights of the District.  Grantor further grants to the District, its successors
and permitted assigns: 



 
 
 
 

2 

(a) The right of ingress to and egress from the Easement Area over, across and 
upon the Property by means of any roads and lanes now or hereafter located 
thereon;  

 
(b) The right to install, maintain and use gates or other livestock barriers in all 

fences which now cross or shall hereafter cross the Easement Area; and 
 
(c) The right to grade the Easement Area as determined by the District to be 

reasonably necessary or advisable for the proper use thereof for the purposes 
set forth in Section 3 above. 

 
(d) The District shall have and exercise the right of subjacent and lateral support 

to whatever extent is necessary for the operation and maintenance of the 
Improvements. It is specifically agreed to between and among the parties 
that, except as provided in this Easement, the Grantor, its successors and 
assigns, shall not take any action which would impair the lateral or subjacent 
support for the Improvements. The Grantor, its successors and assigns, shall 
have and exercise the right of subjacent and lateral support to whatever extent 
is necessary for the operation and maintenance of any improvements on the 
property adjoining the Property. It is specifically agreed by and between the 
Grantor and the District that, except as provided in this Agreement, the 
District shall not take any action which would impair the lateral or subjacent 
support for such improvements. This paragraph is not intended to prohibit the 
development of the private property located adjacent to the Property. 

 
(e) The District shall have the right to use so much of the adjoining premises of 

the Grantor, its successors or assigns, during surveying, construction, 
reconstruction, use, maintenance, repair, replacement and/or removal of the 
Improvements as may be reasonably required; provided, however that such 
activities shall not interfere unreasonably with Grantor’s, its successors’ or 
assigns’ use and enjoyment of such adjoining premises. The District and its 
permitted assignees and licensees shall repair any damage caused to any 
adjoining premises and the improvements thereon, and shall be liable for any 
injury to any person or damage to property, to the extent arising out of the 
District’s, its permitted assignee’s or licensee’s use of the Easement. 

 
 5. The District’s Obligations.  In connection with the District’s use of the Easement 
Area, the District shall: 
 

(a) Insofar as practicable, bury Improvements to a sufficient depth at the time of 
construction so as not to interfere unreasonably with the cultivation of the 
Easement Area for agricultural purposes; 

 
(b) Insofar as practicable, restore the surface of the ground to its condition prior 

to installation, construction, maintenance, alteration, or replacement of the 
Improvements and appurtenances thereto; 



 
 
 
 

3 

 
(c) Insofar as practicable, restore existing fences, drain tile, irrigation systems, 

landscaping, private roads and other improvements, to the conditions existing 
prior to the District’s activities related to the Improvements within the 
Easement Area;  

 
(d) Pay Grantor the fair market value for any growing crops, livestock and other 

items which are damaged by the District’s activities related to the 
Improvements within the Easement Area; and 

 
(e) Restore or replace improvements made by Grantor on the Easement Area that 

were made with the written consent of the District, as provided in Section 7 
below in the event those improvements are disturbed by the District, on the 
condition that Grantor pays the costs for such restoration or replacement.  

 
6. Livestock Crossing During the District’s Operations on Easement Area.  In the event 

Grantor’s Property is being used for grazing purposes, the District agrees that, during the period of 
construction of the Improvements within the Easement Area or any subsequent alteration, removal or 
replacement of said Improvements, the District shall leave or arrange for reasonable crossing over 
the Easement Area for cattle and livestock of Grantor and its tenants and lessees.  Further, whenever 
it becomes necessary for the District, its agents or contractors to cut a fence on Grantor’s Property 
during its operations, the District shall, at its option, either keep the gate closed or guarded in such a 
manner so as to prevent the entrance and exit of cattle or livestock through such opening, or 
construct in any one (1) or more places, substantial gates with dual locks and to furnish Grantor with 
one (1) set of keys thereto.  Before any of Grantor’s fences are cut by the District, the fence shall be 
braced in order to prevent slackening of wires along the fence in each direction from the District’s 
temporary opening. 

 
7. Grantor’s Rights in Easement Area.  Grantor reserves the right to use and occupy the 

Easement Area for any purposes consistent with the rights and privileges granted herein which 
will not interfere with or endanger any of the District’s facilities on or under the Easement Area or 
the District’s use thereof, provided that Grantor, its successors and assigns shall not: 

 
(a) Construct or allow the construction of any buildings or other structures on or 

under the Easement Area; 
 
(b) Impound water or other substances on or over the Easement Area; 
 
(c) Store or dispose of any dangerous, toxic, or hazardous substance on or under 

the Easement Area; 
 
(d) Alter or replace any fence on the Easement Area without the prior written 

consent of Grantee; 
 
(e) Plant or allow any trees, shrubs or other landscaping to exceed three (3) feet 

at mature growth to grow on the Easement Area, or alter ground level, 



 
 
 
 

4 

without the prior written consent of Grantee; 
 
(f) Add or remove soil or alter the grade of the land within the Easement Area; 
 
(g) Use the Easement Area for any purpose except agriculture without the prior 

written consent of Grantee; provided, however, the written consent of 
Grantee shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned for the 
following uses: 

 
(1)  Open space areas with or without landscaping but excluding fences 

(other than along property lines), retaining walls, and trees; 
 

(2)  Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced local roadways (not arterial 
roadways); 
 

(3)  Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced parking areas except use 
involving long-term storage; 

 
(4) Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced recreation areas (excluding 

buildings) such as trails, bike paths, basketball courts, tennis courts, 
volleyball courts;  

 
(5)  Temporary covers or enclosures not requiring the construction of a 

foundation and not to be used for long-term storage; and 
 
(6) Utility service crossings at near right angles of the Improvements 

with a minimum two (2) feet of clearance from actual pot-holed 
elevations of the pipe. Other industry standards for crossings may 
apply and would be addressed during the plan review for each 
crossing. 

 
 8. Maintenance of Easement Area. 

 
(a) Grantor will maintain the surface of the Easement Area (except for any of the 

District’s improvements permitted thereon) in a sanitary condition in 
compliance with any applicable weed, nuisance or other legal requirements. 

 
(b) Grantor will not deposit, or permit or allow to be deposited, earth, rubbish, 

debris, or any other substance or material, whether combustible or 
noncombustible, on the Easement Area, other than vegetation not prohibited 
under Section 7 above. 

 
 9. Representations of Grantor.  Grantor represents and warrants that it is the lawful 
owner in fee simple of the Easement Area; that it has good and lawful right and authority to grant, 
sell and convey the Easement Area or any part thereof; and that it will warrant and defend title to the 
Easement and Easement Area. 



 
 
 
 

5 

 
 10. Additional Terms and Conditions.   
 

(a) Construction.  Whenever used herein, the singular includes the plural, the 
plural the singular; and the use of any gender is applicable to all genders. 

 
(b) Validity.  If any term of this Agreement is determined by any court to be 

unenforceable, the other terms of this Agreement shall nonetheless remain in 
full force and effect; provided, however, that if the severance of any such 
provision materially alters the rights or obligations of the parties, the parties 
shall engage in good faith negotiations in order to adopt mutually agreeable 
amendments to this Agreement as may be necessary to restore the parties as 
closely as possible to the initially agreed upon relative rights and obligations. 

 
(c) Binding Effect.  All of the covenants herein contained are binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns.  

 
(d) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

 
(e) Recordation. This Agreement shall be recorded in the real property records of 

Weld County. 
 
(f) Runs with the Land.  The rights and responsibilities set forth in this 

Agreement are intended to be covenants on the Property and are to run with 
the land. 

 
(g) Benefits and Burdens.  Each and every one of the benefits and burdens of this 

Agreement shall inure to and be binding upon the respective legal 
representatives, administrators, successors and permitted assigns of the 
Grantor and the District. 

 
(h) Abandonment. The District agrees that at such time and in the event that the 

Improvements or Easement described herein are abandoned by the District 
and any successor or permitted assignee, the Easement will terminate 
automatically and the real property interest represented by the Easement will 
revert to the Grantor, its heirs, successors and/or assigns. 

 
(i) Assignability. It is expressly acknowledged and agreed that the District shall 

have the right and authority to assign the Easement to any appropriative local 
governmental entity or to any public utility provider, including but not 
limited to all rights to use, and all obligations associated with, the Easement 
as are granted to and assumed by the District herein, subject to such assignee 
assuming the obligations set forth herein, the District shall have the right and 



 
 
 
 

6 

authority to grant temporary construction easements to any appropriative 
local governmental entity or public utility provider for purposes of 
construction, reconstruction, operation, use, maintenance, repair, replacement 
and/or removal of the Improvements, subject to all the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement. 

 
  
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]





8 

THE DISTRICT: 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the 
State of Colorado 

By________________________________ 
       Tad Stout, President 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF WELD  ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ 
day of _____________________, 2023, by Tad Stout, as President, of NORTH WELD 
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal and political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires:  ____________________ 

_______________________________________ 
Notary Public 



EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description of Grantor’s Property 

PT E2SE4 32-7-66 AMEND SUB EXEMPT AMDSE-1030



EXHIBIT B 

Legal Description of Easement Area 







 

ACCESS LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 

 

 This Access License Agreement (this "License") is entered into to be effective as of 

______________ ____, 2023, between Bayswater Exploration & Production, LLC, a Colorado 

limited liability company ("Bayswater" or “Grantor”), and North Weld County Water District, a 

Colorado special district ("Grantee”).   

 

Recitals 

 

A. The City of Thornton is the owner of certain property (the “Property”) described in 

that certain Surface Use Agreement dated April 17, 2020 (the “SUA”), attached as Exhibit A, made 

by and between Bayswater and Thornton. 

B. In accordance with the SUA, Bayswater has built an access road (the “Access 

Road”) as described in the SUA. Bayswater’s responsibilities to Thornton regarding the maintenance 

and use of the Access Road are further described within the SUA.  

C. Pursuant to Section 8(B) of the SUA, Bayswater is required to reclaim the surface of 

the Property after Bayswater’s use of the Access Road is completed (the “Surface Restoration”).  

D. Grantee has constructed a Recharge Pond (the “Recharge Pond”) on property 

identified in a Recharge Pond Easement Agreement, dated October 24, 2022 and recorded on 

November 23, 2022 at Reception No. 4868649 in the Records of the Weld County Clerk and 

Recorder (the “Pond Easement”).  

E. Grantor now desire to grant to Grantee a nonexclusive access license to use the 

Access Road to access the Recharge Pond, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

AGREEMENT 

 

 In consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which the parties hereto hereby acknowledge, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Grant of License.   Subject to the terms and conditions of this License, Grantor 

hereby grant to Grantee a nonexclusive Access License (the "License") for pedestrian and vehicular 

access on, over and across the Access Road for the purpose of:   

(a) access to the Recharge Pond; and 

(b) the repair, operation and maintenance of the Recharge Pond. 

In connection with the exercise of its rights pursuant to the License, Grantee may permit its 

contractors, subcontractors, employees and agents to use the Access Road for the purposes set 

forth above. 

2. Reserved Rights.  The License is subject to the following rights reserved by Grantor: 



(a) Grantee shall have no right to limit Grantor’ use of the Access Road, as set 

forth in the SUA; 

(b) Grantee shall provide twenty-four hour (24) notice via email or text message 

to: _______________ (name) at ________________ (phone) or ________________ (email) a phone 

number or email address, or another individual with information to be provided by Grantor prior to 

any use of the Access Road, and, during such access, shall make reasonable efforts not to interfere 

with any traffic or operation of Grantor upon the Access Road. Grantee shall access the Access Road 

using safe driving behaviors and following applicable instructions on posted signage.  

(c) Bayswater operates an active oil and gas operation with Health, Safety, 

Environmental and Regulatory requirements to comply with. Grantee shall complete Bayswater site-

specific hazard prevention training (topics shall include vehicle collision prevention, emergency 

planning, etc.) and comply with safety procedures covered in training. 

3. Maintenance and Repair. Grantee shall have no affirmative obligation to repair, 

improve, or maintain the Access Road so long as Grantee’s use of the Access Road causes only 

normal wear and tear thereto. Nothing in this Section 3 shall limit Grantee’s indemnity obligations set 

forth in Section 5 of this License with respect to any damage caused by the negligence or intentional 

misconduct of Grantee.  

4. Insurance.  

(a) Grantee shall maintain, at its cost, commercial general liability insurance, with 

a primary limit of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence, and $2,000,000 in the aggregate per policy 

period.  This insurance must include premises operations, personal injury, contractual liability, and 

broad form property damage coverages.  In addition, Grantee shall cause all of its independent 

contractors and its subcontractors that it permits to use the Access Road pursuant to this License to 

carry similar insurance in amounts equal to or greater than those set forth above. 

(b) All insurance policies maintained or caused to be maintained by Grantee shall 

provide that (i) each such policy shall be primary without right of contribution from any other 

insurance that may be carried by Grantee or Grantor, and all of the provisions thereof, except the 

limits of liability, shall operate in the same manner as if there were a separate policy covering each 

insured, (ii) the insurance company will have no right of subrogation against Grantor or a Relevant 

Person (as defined below); (iii) all Grantor shall be listed as additional insureds thereunder. 

5. Release and Indemnification. 

(a) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantee hereby releases Grantor and 

all of their directors, officers, employees and agents (each, a "Relevant Person"), and no Relevant 

Person shall be liable in any manner to Grantee or any other person claiming through Grantee for 

any death, injury, loss, damage, cost or expense of any nature whatsoever resulting from any act or 

omission occurring on or about the Access Road relating to the use of the License, except to the 

extent that the same results from the negligence or willful misconduct of Grantor’ Relevant Person. 

(b) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantee shall indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless each of Grantor’ Relevant Persons from any claim, suit, proceeding, loss, damage, 

cost or expense, including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and consultants' fees, asserted against 

or incurred by such Relevant Person as a result of or in connection with:  



 (i) any act or omission occurring in, on or about Grantor’s Property 

related to the purposes for which the License is granted, except to the extent that the act or omission 

results from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Grantor's Relevant Person, and aside from 

any act or omission causing only normal wear and tear to the Access Road; or 

 

 (ii) Grantee's failure to perform or observe any obligation or condition to 

be performed or observed by Grantee under this License; or 

 

 (iii) any act or omission on the part of Grantee that would constitute a 

default or violation under the terms of the SUA. 

 

(c) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantor hereby release Grantee and all 

of its Relevant Persons, and no Relevant Person shall be liable in any manner to Grantor or any other 

person claiming through Grantor for any death, injury, loss, damage, cost or expense of any nature 

whatsoever resulting from any act or omission occurring on or about the Access Road or 

surrounding property relating to the use of the License, except to the extent that the same results 

from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Grantee's Relevant Person. 

(d) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Bayswater shall indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless each of Grantee's Relevant Persons from any claim, suit, proceeding, loss, damage, 

cost or expense, including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and consultants' fees, asserted against 

or incurred by such Relevant Person as a result of or in connection with:  

 (i) any act or omission occurring in, on or about the Access Road related 

to the purposes for which the License is granted, except to the extent that the act or omission results 

from the negligence or willful misconduct of Grantee's Relevant Person; or 

 

 (ii) Grantor’s failure to perform or observe any obligation or condition to 

be performed or observed by Grantor under this License. 

 

6. Amendment; Termination.   

(a) This License may be amended only by a written instrument duly executed, 

delivered by Grantee (or its successors or assigns, as appropriate) and Grantor.  

(b) This License shall terminate upon the termination or expiration of the SUA. 

7. License Appurtenant.  The burdens of the License and covenants herein with 

respect to Grantor shall run with and be appurtenant to the Access Road and the property that the 

Access Road sits upon, such that a transfer of legal title to all or a portion of Grantor’ Property shall 

automatically transfer an interest in such burdens. 

8. Compliance with Law.  Grantee shall, at its sole cost and expense, comply with all 

codes, laws, ordinances, orders, rules, regulations, statutes and other governmental requirements 

regarding the use and operation of the Access Road for purposes of the License. 

9. Governing Law.  This License shall be construed in accordance with and governed 

by the laws of the State of Colorado.   



10. Entire Agreement.  This License constitutes the entire agreement among Grantor 

and Grantee concerning the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous 

agreements among Grantor and Grantee concerning the subject matter hereof. 

11. Counterparts.  This License may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of 

which, when executed, shall be deemed an original and both of which together shall be deemed one 

and the same instrument.  

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



This Access License is executed as of the date first set forth above. 

 

 

 GRANTOR: 

 

Bayswater Exploration & Production, LLC, a 

Colorado limited liability company 

 

By:_______________________________ 

Name:________________________________ 

Title:________________________________ 

 

STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ____________ ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of      , 

20___ by ________________ as ________________ of Bayswater Exploration & Production, LLC, a 

Colorado limited liability company. 

 

 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

 

My commission expires __________.  __________________________________ 

      Notary Public 



 

 

 

 GRANTEE: 

 

North Weld County Water District, a Colorado 

special district 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Name: ________________________________ 

Title:  ________________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ____________ ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of      , 

20___ by ________________ as ________________ of North Weld County Water District, a Colorado 

special district. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires __________. __________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRAZING  LEASE 
(2023-2024) 

(Farm #1 and #2) 
 

       THIS GRAZING  LEASE   ("this Lease")    is  made    and   entered   into   effective   as   of  

      May 18th,  2023, by and between NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a 

  special   district   and   a  political   subdivision   of   the    State   of   Colorado   ("Landlord"),   and 

  Brandon Carlson ("Tenant"). 

 
RECITALS 

 
A.         Landlord is the owner of two (2) separate  farms described and depicted  on Exhibit  A 

attached  hereto  and  incorporated herein  by reference  and  identified as "Farm #1"  and  "Farm #2" 

(collectively, the "Leased Premises"). 

 

B.         Tenant  desires  to lease the Leased  Premises for the purpose  of grazing  cattle  upon 

the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 

NOW,  THEREFORE, in consideration  of the mutual  covenants,  promises,  and  agreements 

herein contained,  and other  good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy  of which  are 

hereby  acknowledged. the parties  hereto agree as follows: 

 
1.          Lease  of Leased Premises.   Landlord  hereby leases  the Leased Premises to Tenant 

for the grazing of cattle and related purposes and for no other purpose.  Landlord shall have the right 

to use the Leased Premises for any purposes  that do not materially interfere with the grazing  rights 
herein leased to Tenant  during  the Term (defined below)  of this Lease. 

 
2.          Term  of Lease.   The  "Term"  of this Lease  shall  be three (3) years  consisting of the 

grazing season in the years  2020, 2021 and 2022, subject to early termination as set forth below. 

 
3.          Withdrawal of Property.  Notwithstanding the terms  of this Lease, Landlord reserves 

the  right  to remove  from  the  Leased  Premises  that  portion of Farm #2 generally  consisting of a 

corridor  from the Good  Lateral  westerly  to the small pond  located  on Farm #2, the width  of which 

shall be determined  by Landlord in its sole discretion. 

 
4.          Early  Termination.   In the event of the  sale  of any part of the Leased  Premises by 

Landlord  to a third  party  and  following the completion of the  grazing season  during  the  year  in 
which  such part of the Leased Premises  is sold, Landlord shall have the right upon written  notice  to 

Tenant to terminate  this Lease  as to that part of the Leased  Premises sold by Landlord. 

 
5.          Grazing  Rent.   The rent to be paid by Tenant to Landlord for the grazing of Animal 

Units upon the Leased  Premises shall be the greater of the following sums:   (i) $   1000          per 
 

 
 

(HF&G  01/23/19)



(HF&G 01/23/19) 

2 
 

 

 
 

year or (ii) an  amount equal to Seventy-Five Cents ($. 75) per  Animal  Unit per day grazing on  any 

part of the Leased Premises payable on or before November 30 of each applicable year during the 

Term of this Lease.   For putposes ofthis Lease,  Landlord  and Tenant agree that the term "Animal 

Unit" shall consist of the following: 

 
Number of 

Animal                                        Animal Units 
 

Bull 1.25 

Cow 1.00 

Yearling Steer or Heifer .75 

Calf Six Months to One Year .50 

Calf Three Months to Six Months .30 

 

Within fifteen (15) days following the end of each calendar month during the Term of this 

Lease,  Tenant shall provide  written verification to Landlord  of the total number  of Animal Units 

that grazed on the Leased  Premises each day of the calendar month immediately  preceding  such 

verification. 

 
6.          Water  Provided  by  Landlord.    Landlord   shall  provide  water  without  additional 

charges or fees to each of the Farms constituting the Leased Premises as follows, which water may 

be used by Tenant solely and exclusively for the watering of Tenant's cattle on the Leased Premises: 

 
A.         Farm # 1:  A frost-free hydrant installed near the vicinity of the water depot. 

 
B.        Fann #2:   A  frost-free  hydrant   installed  along  the  southeast   border  of 

Fann#2. 

 
Landlord shall be under no obligation to provide any other services or facilities to or for the 

benefit of Tenant in connection with this Lease. 

 
7.           Grazing Practices.  In connection with his grazing activities on the Leased Premises, 

Tenant shall, at its sole expense, provide all water tanks, feed bunks, salt or mineral licks, fences (to 

supplement  the  pre-existing   fences)  and  other   supplies   and  equipment  customarily   used  in 

connection with the pasturing of cattle.   Tenant shall use prudence and care in transporting, storing, 

handling and applying  any fertilizers, herbicides and other chemicals and similar substances which 

are required for proper and appropriate use of the Leased Premises for grazing purposes, provided 

that no such materials  shall be applied to the Leased Premises without prior consultation and written 

consent of Landlord.  Upon approval by Landlord, Tenant shall read and follow instructions on the 

labels for the use of such materials in order to avoid injury or damages to persons or property on the 

Leased Premises and adjoining areas.  Any chemicals for weed control when used should be applied 

at levels not to exceed the manufacturer's recommendation.   Tenant shall be solely responsible for 

all employer obligations on hired labor with respect to any safety requirements. 

 
Grazing practices of Tenant shall be conducted in a good and workmanlike manner.   Tenant 

shall  not pasture  livestock  that continue to break  through  fences.    Should  any animals  be found



(HF&G 0\/23/!9) 

3 

 

 

 
outside  the pasture  on at  least  three  (3)  occasions,  Landlord may request  their  removal from the 

Leased  Premises.  The number of cattle and extent  of grazing shall be reasonably determined  based 

upon  the  amount   of rain  and  growing   conditions.    Under  no  circumstances  shall  the  Leased 

Premises  be overgrazed causing damage  to the pasture. 

 
In the  event  that Landlord  shall,  in  its  sole  but good  faith  discretion,   determine  that  the 

Leased  Premises are being overgrazed  or misused in any manner, Landlord shall  notify Tenant  in 

writing  and Tenant must take immediate  steps  to correct such condition.   In the event Landlord,  in 

its sole but  good  faith discretion, believes  that  remedial  action has not  been  promptly taken in a 

satisfactory  manner,  Landlord  may, upon  ten  (10)  days' prior written  notice,  terminate  this Lease 

and Tenant  shall thereafter promptly  cause the removal  of all cattle from the Leased  Premises or the 

Farm constituting a part thereof designated  by Landlord. 

 
8.            Additional  Covenants  of Tenant.  Tenant agrees as follows: 

 
A.         To  take  appropriate  action  to  maintain  the  health   and  safety  of all cattle 

located upon  the Leased Premises in a good  and husbandlike  manner. 

 
B.         To furnish, at Tenant's  sole cost and expense, all labor, tools, machinery, and 

supplies  required for grazing of cattle upon  the Leased  Premises during the Term  of this Lease. 

 
C.         To not install  any  improvements on the Leased  Premises without the prior 

written approval of Landlord. 

 
D.         To keep all fences and other  improvements  on the Leased  Premises  in good 

condition  and repair  and in a manner  sufficient to tum cattle so as to avoid cattle  escaping from the 

Leased  Premises.   All fence maintenance and  repairs  shall be made  promptly and in a good and 

workmanlike manner by Tenant at his expense. 

 
E.         To maintain  and repair   all  damages  caused  by  Tenant   and his  employees, 

agents  or  invitees   in  connection  with  the  grazing   of cattle  upon  the  Leased   Premises,  which 

damages  may  include,  but are not limited  to, damages to the roads, fences and frost-free hydrants on 

the Leased  Premises. 

 
F.          To   diligently   exclude   trespassers    from   the   Leased    Premises   and   to 

reasonably assist Landlord  in prosecuting any trespassers. 

 
G.         To  maintain   all   licenses    and  permits   required   for  the   conduct   of  its 

operations   on  the  Leased  Premises  by  any  governmental  or  quasi-governmental  authority  with 

jurisdiction over such operations. 
 

 

H.         To  comply  with  all  applicable  federal,  state,  and  local  laws,  rules,  and 

regulations regarding the Leased Premises.



(HF&G 01/23/19) 

4 

 

 

 
9.           Insurance. 

 
9.1        Tenant,  at its sole cost and expense, shall, during the Lease Term, procure, 

pay  for,  and keep  in full force and  effect a comprehensive policy  of general  liability insurance 

reasonably  approved by Landlord covering  the Leased Premises and insuring Tenant in an amount 

not  less  than  One  Million Dollars  ($1,000,000.00)  covering bodily  injury,  including  death  to 

persons,  personal  injury, and property  damage  liability arising out of a single occurrence.   Such 

coverage   shall  include,  without  limitation,  the  insureds'  liability  for  property  damage,  bodily 

injuries,  and death of persons in connection  with the operation, maintenance,  or use of the Leased 

Premises  (including  acts or omissions  of Tenant  or of his  employees  or  agents), and protection 

against liability for non-owned and hired automobiles. 

 
9.2       All policies of insurance carried by Tenant shall name Tenant as an insured 

and shall name Landlord as an additional insured on the policy.  The policy or policies shall contain 

a provision  that the policy or policies cannot be canceled or materially altered either by the insured 

or the insurance  company until fifteen (15)  days' prior written notice thereof is given to Landlord. 

Upon  issuance or renewal of any such insurance  policy, Tenant shall  furnish  a certified copy or 

duplicate original of such policy or renewal thereofwith proof ofpremium payment to Landlord. 

 
9.3        All insurance policies  may be reviewed at least annually by Landlord and 

Tenant  to  ascertain that the coverage  as provided  by such policies  adequately  cover those risks 

required by this Section 9 to be insured. 

 
10.        "AS-IS" Nature ofLeased Premises.  Tenant acknowledges and agrees that Landlord 

has not made, does not make, and specifically negates and disclaims any representations, warranties, 

promises,   covenants,  agreements,  or  guarantees  of any kind  or  character  whatsoever,  whether 

expressed or implied, oral or written, past, present, or future, of, as to, concerning or with respect to 

the  Leased  Premises and (a) the nature,  quality, or condition of the Leased  Premises, including, 

without  limitation,  the water,  soil,  and geology  of the Leased Premises;  (b)  the suitability of the 

Leased  Premises   for  any  and  all  activities   and  uses  which  Tenant  may  conduct  thereon  in 

connection  with the grazing of livestock; (c) the profitability or fitness for a particular purpose of the 

Leased Premises; or (d) any other matter with respect to the Leased Premises and, specifically, that 

Landlord  has not made,  does not make  and specifically disclaims  any representations regarding 

compliance   with  any environmental  protection,  pollution,  or  land  use  laws,  rules, regulations, 

orders, or requirements. 

 
11.        Hazardous Materials. 

 
11.1     As  used herein,  the  term  "Hazardous Materials"  means  any hazardous or 

toxic  substance,  material,  or  waste  which  is,  or becomes, regulated  by  any  local  government 

authority, the State of Colorado, or the United States Government. 

 
11.2     During  the  Tenn   of this  Lease,  Tenant  shall  not  cause  or permit  any 

Hazardous  Materials to be brought upon, kept,  or used in or about the Leased Premises by Tenant, 

his  agents,  employees,  contractors,  licensees,  or  invitees, without  the  prior  written consent  of 

Landlord   (which  Landlord shall  not  unreasonably  withhold  as long  as Tenant  demonstrates to



(HF&G 01/23/19) 

5 

 

 

 
 

Landlord's reasonable satisfaction that such Hazardous Material is  necessary or useful to  Tenant's 

operation and that it will be  used,  kept,  and stored in the  manner which  complies  with  all laws 

regulating any such Hazardous  Material). 

 
12.        Tenant  to Hold  Landlord Harmless.   Tenant  covenants that  it will  indemnify  and 

hold   Landlord,   and  its  officers,  directors   and  employees,   hamtless  from  all  claims,  demands, 

judgments,  costs, and expenses,  including attorneys'  fees,  arising  out of any accident  or occurrence 

causing  injury to any person or property whomsoever or whatsoever due directly or indirectly  to the 

use  or neglect  of the Leased  Premises or any part thereof by Tenant  and his agents or employees, 

including, but not limited to, damage caused by any cattle which  escape  from the Leased Premises, 

unless  such  accident or occurrence results  solely from the  tortious  misconduct or negligent  act or 

omission  on  the  part  of Landlord,  or  its  officers,  directors   and  employees;   and  Tenant  will 

indemnify and hold harmless Landlord,  and its officers, directors and employees,  from all damages 

and  all  penalties  arising  out  of any  failure of Tenant,  in  any  respect,  to comply  with  all of the 

requirements and provisions  of this  Lease;  and Tenant  covenants that  Tenant  shall keep  and hold 

harmless Landlord,  and its officers, directors  and employees,  and Landlord's interest in and to the 

Leased Premises  forever  from  any  penalty,  damage,  or  charge  imposed by  any violation  of any 

laws,  whether  occasioned by an act or omission  of Tenant.   In addition,  Landlord,  and its officers, 

directors and employees, shall not be liable to Tenant for any livestock injuries or deaths, regardless 

of cause,  incurred in connection with  such livestock grazing  upon  the Leased  Premises  under this 

Lease,  unless such injuries or deaths  result from a negligent  act or omission of Landlord. 

 
13.        Default. 

 
13.1      Tenant's Default. 

A.         Each of the following events shall be a "Default" by Tenant under this Lease: 

(i)         If Tenant shall fail to pay any installment of rent or any other sums 

due  hereunder and such  failure  continues for  ten  (10)  days  from  the  date upon  which  Landlord 

provides written notice to Tenant  advising of such failure. 

 
(ii)       If Tenant shall fail to observe  or perform any other covenants  and/or 

agreements for which it is responsible hereunder,  and such failure continues  for ten (10) days from 

the date  upon which Landlord  provides written notice to Tenant  advising  of such failure (provided 

that  if Tenant  commences  to cure  the  default within  the initial  ten  [10]  day period  and diligently 

prosecutes the same to completion, Tenant  shall be afforded such  additional  time as is reasonably 

necessary to effect  such cure if such  failure  cannot reasonably be cured  within the initial ten [10] 

day period),  provided,  however,  in no  event shall such cure period  extend  for more than thirty (30) 

days. 

 
(iii)       If any petition  is filed by or against  Tenant  (a) in any bankruptcy or 

other  insolvency proceeding,  or (b) seeking  any relief under  any state or federal debtor relieflaw, or



6 
 

 

 
 

(c)  for the  appointment of a  liquidator  or receiver for all  or substantially  all  of Tenant's property or 

for Tenant's  interest  in this Lease,  and any such action  is not dismissed within thirty (30) days  of 

said filing or appointment. 

 
B.        Upon  the occurrence  of any such Default,  Landlord  shall have the option  to 

pursue  either one (1)  or both  of the following remedies  in addition to all other rights and remedies 

available to Landlord  at law or in equity,  all of such rights and remedies being cumulative: 

 
(i)         Terminate this Lease  by giving  written  notice  thereof to Tenant,  in 

which  event Tenant  shall immediately surrender  the Leased  Premises to Landlord;  and if Tenant 

fails  to do so, Landlord  may,  without  prejudice  to any other  remedy which  Landlord  may  have, 

enter upon and take possession of the Leased  Premises  and expel  or remove  Tenant  and his cattle 

and any other person who may be occupying  the Leased Premises without being liable for any claim 

of damages. 

 
If Landlord   terminates  this  Lease  under  this  provision,  then  Tenant  shall  pay  to 

Landlord   (a) an  amount  equal  to  all  rent  accrued  through   the  date   of termination,  and  (b) all 

amounts  due under Section  13 .1. C below. 

 
(ii)         Perform  any  act Tenant  is obligated to  perform  under  the terms  of 

this Lease (and enter upon the Leased  Premises  in connection  therewith if necessary) without being 

liable  for damages  therefor,  and  Tenant  shall  reimburse  Landlord  on  demand  for  any  expenses 

which  Landlord  may incur  in performing Tenant's obligations  wider  this Lease (including,  but not 

limited  to, collection  costs  and  legal  expenses),  plus interest  thereon at the rate of twelve  percent 

(12%) per annum. 

 
C.         Upon  any event  of Default,  Tenant  shall pay  to Landlord,  as additional  rent, 

all reasonable  costs incurred  by Landlord (including  court costs  and reasonable  attorneys' fees and 

expenses)  in (a) obtaining  possession of the  Leased  Premises,  (b) removing  and storing  Tenant's 

cattle and property,  and (c) performing Tenant's obligations which  Tenant failed to perform. 

 
13 .2      Landlord's Default.  If Landlord  shall fail to perform any of the conditions  or 

covenants  hereof on its part  to be performed, Tenant  shall  give  written  notice of such  default to 

Landlord;  and if Landlord  shall not within ten (10) days thereafter cure such default (or if the default 

cannot be cured within ten [10])  days, if Landlord shall not within  such period commence  such cure 

and  thereafter  diligently  complete the  same),  then  Tenant  shall  have  the  right,  at its  option,  to 

terminate  this Lease  without  penalty or default on the part of Tenant  and cease paying  rent which 

accrues from and after termination of this Lease by Tenant. 

 
14.        Subletting  and Assignment.   Tenant may not assign  this Lease or sublet the Leased 

Premises  or any part thereof. 
 

 

15.        Notices.   Any  notice  required or desired  to be  given  by the parties hereto  shall  be 

in writing  and may be personally delivered; mailed,  certified  mail,  return  receipt  requested; sent 

by  a nationally recognized receipted  overnight  delivery  service,   including,  by example  and  not 

limitation, United Parcel Service,  Federal  Express, or Airborne  Express for earliest delivery the next 

 
(HF&G O 1/23119)



7 
 

 

 
 

business day;  or sent by electronic mail  with a  hard copy sent by regular mail.    Any such notice 

shall be deemed  given  when  personally delivered;  if mailed,  three (3) delivery  days after deposit  in 

the  United  States mail,  postage  prepaid;  if sent  by  electronic mail,  on the  day  sent  if sent  on  a 

business  day during  regular business  hours  (8:00  am.  to  5:00 p.m.)  of the recipient,  otherwise  on 

the next business  day, provided in each case, receipt of such  electronic mail is acknowledged by the 

intended recipient  thereof;  or if sent by overnight  delivery service,  one (1) business  day after deposit 

in  the custody  of the  delivery service.   The  addresses,  telephone   numbers,  and  electronic mail 

addresses for the mailing,  transmitting,  or delivering  of notices  shall be as follows: 

 
If to Landlord: 

 
North Weld County Water  District 

Attention:  District Manager 

32825  Weld CR 39 

P.O.  Box56 

Lucerne, CO 80646 

Telephone:  (970) 356-3020 

E-mail:  ericr@nwcwd.org 

 
If to Tenant: 

        
       Brandon Coalson  
       35735  CR 59 
       Gill, CO  80624 
       (970)539-0436 
       bcoalson@alliedfsllc.com   
 

16.        Attorneys' Fees.  Tenant shall pay and indemnify Landlord against all legal costs and 

charges,  including  attorneys' fees,  lawfully  and reasonably incurred  in obtaining  possession of the 

Leased  Premises  after  default of Tenant  or termination of this  Lease,  incurred  in  enforcing  any 

covenant of Tenant  herein contained  or any right granted  to Landlord, and incurred in collecting any 

grazing rent, monies,  or other  damages owed by Tenant to Landlord under this Lease. 

 
17.        Miscellaneous. 

 
17 .1      This  Lease shall be construed according to its fair meaning  and as if prepared 

by both parties hereto  and shall be deemed to be and contain the entire understanding and agreement 

between the parties hereto.  There shall be deemed  to be no other terms, conditions,  promises, 

understandings,  statements, or representations,  express or implied, concerning  this Lease  unless  set 

forth in writing and signed by both of the parties hereto. 

 
17.2      Subject to the provisions  hereof, the  benefits  of this Lease  and the  burdens 

hereunder   shall  inure   to   and  be  binding   upon   the  parties   hereto   and  their  respective  heirs, 

administrators,  successors, and permitted assigns. 
 

 
 
 

(HF&G O 1/23/19)



8 
 

 

 
I 7 .3       The  parties hereto agree that this  Lease shall  be  governed by and  its  terms 

construed under  the  laws  of the  State  of Colorado.    The  parties  further  agree  that  any judicial 

proceedings  commenced  by  either  of them  to  enforce  any  of the  obligations,   covenants,   and 

agreements contained herein, shall be commenced in the Weld County District or County Courts. 

 
17.4      Nothing  contained  herein  shall be deemed or construed  by the  parties hereto 

nor by any third  party  as creating the relationship of principal  and agent or a partnership or a joint 

venture  between  the parties hereto,  it being  agreed  that  none  of the provisions set forth herein nor 

any acts  of the  parties  herein  shall  be deemed  to  create  a relationship  between  the  parties  hereto 

other than the relationship of Landlord  and Tenant. 

 
17.5      Failure of Landlord  to exercise any right or rights accruing  to it by virtue of 

Tenant's  breach  of any covenant, condition,  or agreement herein shall not operate  as a waiver of the 

exercise  of such right  or rights in the event of any subsequent breach by Tenant, nor shall Tenant be 

relieved  thereby  from its obligations under the terms  of this Lease. 

 
17.6      The remedies  of Landlord under  this Lease shall be cumulative,  no one of 

them shall be construed as exclusive of any other or of any other remedy provided by law. 

 
1 7. 7     Landlord reserves  the right  to  grant  to any third party  such  easements  and 

rights-of-way  as it desires  over,  across,  and under  portions of the Leased Premises  so long as such 

easements   and  rights-of-way do  not unreasonably interfere with  Tenant's  continuing use  of the 

Leased Premises as provided in this Lease. 

 
17.8      Tenant,  upon  the  expiration or termination of this Lease,  either  by lapse of 

term or otherwise, agrees to peacefully  surrender to Landlord the Leased Premises. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the parties  hereto  have  caused this Lease  to be  executed  as 

of the day and year first above written. 

 
NORTH WELD  COUNTY WATER 

DISTRICT, a special district  and a political 

subdivision 

of the  State of Colorado 
 

 

 
 

"Landlord" 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
DESCRIPTION AND DEPICTION 

OF LEASED PREMISES 
 

Farm#l 

Lot B of Recorded  Exemption No. 0553-35-1 RECXl 1-0049 recorded January  11, 2012 as 

Reception No. 3817451, being part of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) of Section Thirty-five (35), 

Township Eight (8) North, Range Sixty-Six (66) West of the 6111  P .M, County of Weld, State of 

Colorado. 

 
Farm#2 

Lot B of Amended Recoded Exemption No. 0553-25-1-AMR.E-858, recorded October  11, 2000 as 

Reception No. 2799388, being part of the Southeast  Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 24, and a part of 

the Northeast  Quarter (NEl/4) of Section 25, all in Township 8 North, Range 66 West of the (51h 

P.M, County of Weld, State of Colorado. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NWCWD
water supply, operation plan and 

drought projections 

2023



2023 Supply & Demand

 Northern Water 70% C-BT quota 

 North Poudre 2.5 acre-feet per share

 2,463 acre-feet in carryover storage

 CSU trade of 600 acre-feet

 Cache la Poudre River at 104%

 Demand in water year 2023 Nov-May is 
2,669 acre-feet which is down from last 
year

 No projected demand increase for the 
rest of 2023

 Adequate water supply for 2023.

Total North Weld 

Demand only (AF)

Change from 

Previous Year

2020 7,050.1 5.0%

2021 7,290.8 3.4%

2022 7,223.9 -0.9%

2023

Projected

7,041.4 -2.5%*Details in Projections Packet



Supply and Drought Model

Assumes the 2000’s drought begins next year.

1. How resilient is the District’s water supply?

2. What if the C-BT quotas are reduced?

 Shows existing vulnerability during a multi-year drought

 Small percent reductions in quota significantly impact yield and 
drought deficit

System Deficits Historical 
Drought

Moderate 
Drought

Severe Drought

Total (acre-ft) 1,525 2,166 4,918

% increase 42% 222%

*Details in Projections Packet 

Appendix C



Change one Variable

What if Northern Water allocates 60% C-BT quota?

Decreases supply by 1,100-acre feet

North Weld goes from surplus in 2023 to slight deficit 

in 2024:

supply – demand = Will not meet demand

*Details in Projections Packet 

Appendix B



Water Supply 

Variability



projections

 2024 Dip into storage 
reserves

 2026 No additional C-BT 
from CSU but all 
acquired WSSC is 
changed and keeps us 
out of storage reserves. 



Water 

Acquisitions

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

A
q

u
ire

d
 A

c
re

-f
e

e
t

North Weld’s Water Right Ownership

1,500 AF or 21% increase in 

supplies since 2017 

Major increases in C-BT and 

WSSC 



Closing the Gap 

and Proposed resolutions

Resolutions to Adjust Demand – Demand 
Management

1. Smart growth policy – Restrict Annual usage 
projected reduction in demand by 10% or 150 
acre-feet

2. Restrict commercial usage of residential
meters saves 80 acre-feet

Saves 230 acre-feet and Creates a slight Surplus 
instead of Deficit 

*Details in Projections Packet 

Appendix B



Conclusions

 2023 Adequate supplies to meet demand.

 6.4% Demand decrease in 2023 YTD.

 North Weld has acquired 1,500 acre-feet since 2017.

 Future river supplies and C-BT quotas are variable which impact 
operations.

 CSU Lease Water could be replaced through WSSC adjudicated shares 
by 2025/26 

 However, Water System Still Vulnerable – Drought and Quota

 1,500 AF – Commercial Sector Usage Over Allocation and NW Drought 
Water at Risk with Historic Drought Levels – Significantly Higher at Severe 
Drought levels.

 Continue Smart Growth Demand Management Policies and Water 
Acquisition



 
 

To:    Eric Reckentine, North Weld County Water District Manager 

From:   Tri-Districts Water Resources and Paul Weiss 

Date: June 12, 2023 

 

Re:   2023 Water Supply Projection and Operation Plan  

 

Background Reference Information 

The projection for North Weld’s 2023 water supply is based on the following known data and 

assumptions. 

Supply 

• Northern Water allocated a 70% quota, which is near the long-term average.  

• North Poudre allocated 2.5 acre-feet per share, which is near the long-term average. 

• North Weld started the 2023 Water Year on November 1st with 2,463 acre-feet in 

Carryover Storage.  

• North Weld expects to receive 600 acre-feet of C-BT through its trade agreement with 

CSU. 

• The May 1st Northern Water streamflow forecast for the Poudre Basin is 104%.  

Demand  

• North Weld’s total demand is shown for the last three water years in the table below. 

• In Water Year 2023, North Weld’s demand from November through April has been 2,690 

acre-feet which is a decrease of 6.4% from the same six-month period last year. 

• North Weld’s demand is projected to not increase over 2022 levels for the remainder of 

the water year.  

 

 Total North Weld Demand only (af) Change from Previous Year 

2020 7,050.1 5.0% 

2021 7,290.8 3.4% 

2022 7,223.9 -0.9% 

2023 Projected 7,041.4 -2.5% 

 

PVP Diversion Limitation 

• During the WY 2021 and 2022 seasons, the Pleasant Valley Pipeline (PVP) was unavailable 

due to infrastructure reasons for and for diminished water quality from turbidity in the 

Poudre River. 

• Losses of 15% of the reusable supplies are projected from infrastructure and water quality 

issues at the PVP in 2023.  



Eric Reckentine 
2023 Supply and Operation Plan 
June 12, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

 2022 2021 

Infrastructure Issues 19 25 

Water Quality 23 19 

Total Days Off 38 44 

 

Projection 

• North Weld is estimated to have approximately 1,009 acre-feet of supplies remaining at 

the end of Water Year 2023.  

  2023 North Weld Projection    

     

1 Carryover Storage 2,463 

     

2 Single Use Supplies 5,672 

     

3 CSU C-BT Trade 600 

     

4 Reusable Supplies 1,615 

     

5 Total Projected Supplies 10,350 

     

6 Projected total 2023 Demand at SCFP -7,041 

     

7      (Commercial Usage Over Allocation 1500)  
     

8 Projected Diversions to Carryover Storage -2,299 

    

9 Estimated Supplies Remaining 1,009 

Table 1: North Weld Projected 2023 Water Supplies (values in acre-feet) 

The attached Appendix A provides the details for each of the categories of water supplies and 

the demands during 2023. Appendix B gives a planning scenario for next year if Northern Water 

sets a C-BT quota of 0.6 in 2024. Appendix C provides details on North Weld’s water supplies 

modeled for a multi-year drought.  

 

 



Eric Reckentine 
2023 Supply and Operation Plan 
June 12, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Summary 

• North Weld will carefully manage its supplies in 2023 to reach the end of the water year 

and store a sufficient volume in Carryover Storage to prepare for 2024.  
 

 

Water Supply-Drought Formula  

Ratio = (Carryover Supply + Projected WY Supply * 0.95) / (Normalized ATP Demand * 1.10 + 

RFO) 

 

Where: 

Carryover Supply = stored water from previous water year 

Projected WY Supply = expected yield on CBT plus native rights for current water year 

0.95 = safety factor on supply 

Normalized ATP Demand = expected at-the-plant demand under normal conditions 

1.10 = dry year demand multiplier 

RFO = return flow obligations associated with converted native supplies 

 

1. North Weld’s Water Supply Ratio for 2023 is 1.19. 

 

Resolution No. 20220314-02: Residential Drought Policy  

• North Weld approved a Residential Drought Policy which allows residential outdoor 

watering restrictions to be applied its customers depending on the stage of drought. 

• Based on the Water Supply Formula, North Weld’s 2022 water supply is considered 

Adequate with a Ratio of 1.19.  

• There is no staff recommendation for residential outdoor watering restrictions. 

 



Appendix A - 2023 North Weld Water Supply Projection

Beginning of Year Storage Accounts  Shares/Units Allocation AF Comments

1 Carryover CBT 1,297.0

2 Gravel Pit Storage 531

3 Horsetooth Account 400

4 Chambers Lake Reservoir 235.2

5 Subtotal 2,463 Start of Water Year Goal is 2,400 acre-feet

Single Use Supplies

6 Quota CBT 5,130 70% 3,499 Includes new purchases

7 North Poudre MU 835.5 2.50 2,089

8 CSU Trade 600 Projected transfer of excess C-BT at end of water year

9 Divide A 47 1.8 85 2020-2022 average

10 North Weld Rental Pool for Commercial Accounts

11 Subtotal 6,272

Reusable Supplies All values based on 2020-2022 average

11 Arthur 243

12 JR Brown 70

13 Jackson 107

14 Sand Creek 92

15 Tunnel 437 This is the amount of WSSC when fully converted

16 WSSC 950 1,338

17 Subtotal 1,900

18 Loss from PVP Infrastructure & WQ Shutdowns -285 Assume a loss of 15%

19 Updated Reusable Subtotal 1,615

20 Total Projected Supplies 10,350 Line 4 + Line 10 + Line 19

Demand at SCFP

21 Actual 2023 Demand Nov to April -2,690 Currently down -6.4% from 2022
22 Projected 2023 Demand May to Oct -4,351 Actual values from 2022

23 Projected total 2023 Demand at SCFP -7,041 2022 demand was 7,223.9 af

Diversions to Storage

24 C-BT Carryover for 2024 -1,477 NW Carryover plus rental  from CSU 

25 Gravel Pit Storage for RFs, Exchange, and Evap -410 Includes refill of Pond 3

26 Horsetooth Account -412 Replace releases and evap

27 Projected Diversions to Storage -2,299

28 Estimated Supplies Remaining 1,009 Line 18 - Line 22 - Line 26

End of Year Storage Goals

29 C-BT Carryover for 2024 1,343

30 Gravel Pit Storage 674

31 Horsetooth Account 400

32 Chambers Lake Reservoir Request approval at May 2023 WSSC Board meeting

Subtotal 2,417 Need to meet target of 2,400 acre-feet



1 
 

To:    Eric Reckentine, North Weld County Water District Manager 

From:   Tri-Districts Water Resources  

Date: June 12, 2023 

 

Re:   Appendix B to 2023 Water Supply Projection and Operation Plan  

 

Appendix B: What If the Next C-BT Quota in 2024 is 0.6? 

 

Based on the 2023 North Weld water supply projections and operations plan, an additional year 

was added so this appendix can be used as a scenario planning tool for the next year. All North 

Weld’s water supplies are subject to variability each year. Figure 1 below shows the yearly 

variation of the Poudre River streamflow from the long-term average during the study period.  

Amounts below average are defined as a deficit. This figure also illustrates the degree of 

variability over the study period and shows the sustained, multi-year periods of deficit 

conditions. Table 1 compares the Poudre River streamflow to allocated C-BT quotas. Scenario 

planning is vital for preparing for the variability in North Weld’s water sources. 

 

 
Figure 1. Poudre River Streamflow Deviations from Average. 

 



2 
 

Table 1. Poudre River deviations from average and corresponding C-BT Quotas.  
Water 
Year 

Drought Deficit Quota 

2022 -11,000 0.8 

2021 19,790 0.7 

2020 -53,275 0.8 

2019 24,000 0.7 

2018 -27,000 0.8 

2017 61,000 0.8 

2016 82,083 0.7 

2015 111,832 0.7 

2014 219,984 0.6 

2013 43,765 0.6 

2012 -147,187 1 

2011 170,429 0.8 

2010 51,196 0.8 

2009 -35,594 0.8 

2008 -38,117 0.8 

2007 -61,840 0.8 

2006 -128,268 0.8 

2005 -26,381 0.7 

2004 -114,009 0.6 

2003 -1,825 0.5 

2002 -200,333 0.7 

 

By changing one variable, the C-BT quota, North Weld’s projection for 2024 could change 

significantly. The assumption is all operations went as planned for WY 2023, leaving 2,417 acre-

feet in storage and no more water rights were acquired or converted. Appendix C goes into 

detail about a modeled multi-year drought starting in 2024 and the effect on North Weld’s 

water supply system.  

 

Supply 

• Northern Water allocated a 60% quota.  

• North Poudre allocated 2.0 acre-feet per share. 

• North Weld enters the 2024 Water Year with 2,417 acre-feet in Carryover Storage.  

• North Weld to receive 400 acre-feet of C-BT through its trade agreement with CSU. This 

is lower than WY 2023 due to the decreased C-BT quota.  

Demand  

• Demand would stay the same as 2023 at 7,041 AF.  

• Of this demand is 1,500 AF of commercial usage over allocation.  

 



3 
 

Limitations 

• Losses of 15% of the reusable supplies are projected from infrastructure and water quality 

issues at the PVP.  

 

Projection 

• North Weld would be approximately 89 acre-feet short of meeting demands. See Table 

1.  

• Storage for the next year would decrease and the Water Supply-Drought Ratio would 

decrease.  

 

  2024 North Weld Projection if 0.6 quota 

     

1 Carryover Storage 2,417 

     

2 Single Use Supplies 4,820 

     

3 CSU C-BT Trade 400 

     

4 Updated Reusable Supplies 1,615 

     

5 Total Projected Supplies 9,251 

     

6 Projected total 2024 Demand at SCFP -7,041 

     

7      (Commercial Usage Over Allocation 1,500)  
     

8 Projected Diversions to Carryover Storage -2,299 

    
9 Estimated Supplies Remaining -89 

 

 



4 
 

 
• Figure 2 shows demand exceeding total supplies in a year with a C-BT quota of 0.7 

followed by a 0.6 quota or one change in North Weld’s water supplies. This change in 

quota results in a decrease in supply by 1,100 acre-feet.  

 

Resolution No. 20230410-01 

• The Smart Growth Policy (Resolution No. 20230410-01) puts a $22.00 per thousand-

gallon surcharge on meters that exceed their water usage allotment. This may reduce 

usage by 10%.  

• The result could be a 150-acre-feet reduction in demand from the commercial sector. 

• A new policy specific to commercial usage of residential meters will start in Water Year 

2024. This policy intends to restrict commercial accounts from using residential meters.   

• Starting November 1st, this would save approximately 80 acre-feet.   

• By adding the two recommended resolutions, this would leave North Weld with 141 acre-

feet of supplies remaining or a slight surplus.  

  

  

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

Year 1, 0.7 Year 2, 0.6

A
cr

e
-f

e
e

t

Quota

Demand Usage over Allocation Storage Remaining Supplies Total Supplies



5 
 

 

  2024 North Weld Projection if 0.6 quota 

     

1 Carryover Storage 2,417 

     

2 Single Use Supplies 4,820 

     

3 CSU C-BT Trade 400 

     

4 Updated Reusable Supplies 1,615 

     

5 Total Projected Supplies 9,251 

     

6 Projected total 2024 Demand at SCFP -6,891 

     

7      (Commercial Usage Over Allocation 1,350)  
     

8 Projected Diversions to Carryover Storage -2,299 

    
9 Restrict residential meters from Commercial accounts 79.8 

    

10 Estimated Supplies Remaining 141 

 

 

Summary 

• North Weld will not be able to meet demand for all its customers in 2024 if the C-BT quota 

is 0.6 without using water supplies from storage.  

• Staff recommends North Weld to continue Resolution No. 20230410-01 and implement 

the policy specific to commercial usage of residential meters.  

• With reduction policies in place, North Weld will have adequate supplies to meet all 

demands in 2024 if the C-BT quota is 0.6.  

 

 

 



 

1  WWC    Water Resources Engineering 

 

  Williams & Weiss 
Consulting, LLC 

Tech Memo:  

To: Eric Reckentine, NWCWD General Manager 

From: Paul Weiss, WWC 

Date: May 22, 2023 

Re: Updates to the Water Supply Planning Model 

Introduction 

WWC has developed a computer simulation model to evaluate the North Weld District water supply 
system. The model simulates the performance of the water supply system over a 50-year period of 
record, using historical water supply and river flow data derived from 1970 to 2019. This 50-year 
period contains a wide range of hydrological conditions, most notably the 2000’s drought.  

In the fall of 2021 the simulation model was used to evaluate the District’s water supply and the 
system’s ability to meet customer demands during a critical drought sequence. For the 2000’s drought, 
the model projected water supply shortages for the District based upon the water rights portfolio and 
demand levels which existed at that time. 

This May 2023 model update incorporates the current demand levels and water rights portfolio. 
Relative to 2022, the District’s demands have shown a slight decrease. This update also evaluates the 
District’s system response to reductions in C-BT quotas during a drought sequence such as the 
2000’s drought. 

Model Updates 

District staff have identified a reduction in demands for the winter of 2023, and using this information 
the forecasted demand for 2023 is expected to drop by 2.5% compared to 2022. 

 Total North Weld 
Demand only (AF) 

Change from 
Previous Year 

2020 7,050.1 5.0% 

2021 7,290.8 3.4% 

2022 7,223.9 -0.9% 

2023 
Projected 

7,041.4 -2.5% 

 



 

 2  WWC    Water Resources Engineering 

 

On the water supply side, the District has acquired additional units of C-BT for a total of 5130 units. 

 

Model Simulation Results 

The following graph identifies the projected system deficits which are expected to occur should this 
region experience a drought identical to the historical 2000’s drought. The 2000’s drought was a multi-
year drought with a recurrence interval of approximately 100 years. Other local water providers (cities 
of Fort Collins and Greeley) use a drought of this intensity and duration for appraising their water 
supply systems and evaluate its resilience to drought. 
 

 
 
As shown in the graph, the combination of additional supplies and reduced demand has resulted in 
decreased deficit projections. 
 

Impact of Reduced C-BT System Yields 

The drought sequence simulated in the planning model uses historical C-BT quota levels for 
computing the District’s annual C-BT allotments. The actual quota setting by Northern is a function of 
the projected streamflows for the upcoming year as well as the C-BT reservoir system’s carryover 
conditions from the previous year. It should be noted that prior to the 2000’s drought, both the State’s 
river basins and the regional Colorado River Basin had experienced a cycle of good water years in the 



 

 3  WWC    Water Resources Engineering 

 

late 1990’s and reservoir levels were at or above normal operating levels. Today, the C-BT west slope 
storage facilities (primarily Granby and Green Mountain reservoirs) are only slightly below 1999 
storage levels. But the Colorado River Basin reservoir system is at historic low levels. The largest 
storage facilities (Lake Mead and Lake Powell) are critically low. The two large upper Colorado River 
Basin storage reservoirs, (Blue Mesa and Flaming Gorge) are nearly 1.5 million acre-feet below their 
1999 storage levels. This is important as these facilities are used to make obligated deliveries to lower 
basin States during drought years. Without these supplemental reservoir releases there is the 
possibility for water right curtailment within individual states. The C-BT west slope water rights are 
junior in the Colorado River basin and could potentially be called out. 
 
From a planning perspective, the antecedent conditions which could affect C-BT quotas during a 
drought sequence should be evaluated to better understand the potential impacts to local water 
systems. Considering the historic low levels in the Colorado River Basin, it can be assumed that 
should another severe drought affect Colorado, the C-BT system storage rights may have reduced 
yields on the west slope and this would lead to reduced C-BT quotas for the east slope participants. 
To test the impacts to the District, two additional modeling scenarios were considered. One scenario 
has a moderate reduction (8%) in C-BT quotas, while the other has a more severe reduction (18%). 
The following table identifies the annual quotas used in the model under the baseline planning 
scenario, the moderate reduction scenario, and the severe reduction scenario: 
 

CBT QUOTA

Year Historical Moderate Severe

2000 1 0.8 0.8

2001 0.9 0.7 0.7

2002 0.7 0.6 0.5

2003 0.5 0.5 0.4

2004 0.6 0.6 0.5

2005 0.7 0.7 0.6

2006 0.8 0.8 0.7

2007 0.8 0.8 0.7

total 6 5.5 4.9

% red. 8% 18%   
 
The next table identifies the annual demand deficits under for the three corresponding scenarios. An 
additional scenario was developed, considering reduced CSU lease deliveries (from 500 AFY to 400 
AFY) for years 2002 to 2007. 



 

 4  WWC    Water Resources Engineering 

 

 
 
When simulated through the planning model it is shown that these relatively small reductions in C-BT 
quotas translate to significant increases in the District’s drought deficits. This highlights the exposure 
that the District has to C-BT quota cuts and is a result of having a water rights portfolio heavily 
weighted to the C-BT system. 
 

Conclusion 

While the District’s water supply system is trending in a good direction with reduced demands and 
increasing supplies, the drought analysis does raise some concerns on the high dependency of the C-
BT system. It is recommended that the District continue to diversify its portfolio, acquiring native water 
rights (WSSC) and local storage. 



EMAIL  
 
From: Rick Podtburg <Rick@LPDairy.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 11:14 AM 
To: Eric Reckentine <ericr@nwcwd.org> 
Cc: Wade Podtburg <wadepodtburg@gmail.com> 
Subject: RE: Tucker Dairy - Meter verification 
 
Longs Peak Dairy is requesting to transfer 6 AF of water and 8 PI’s from tap #1331001 to tap #34004. We 
have 15 taps in the water district with 318 AF of water. Two are at our dairies and 5 others are at 
locations where we have some young stock. All locations are partially serviced with wells. Tap #1331001 
is at the former Wacker dairy which we have a large number of heifers at and has 19AF of water and 30 
PI’s. Tap #34004 is the former Tucker Dairy which has some bred heifers and calves  and has 3AF of 
water and 1 PI. With a well upgrade we have reduced our tap water needs a large amount from 
#1331001. The location with tap 34004 needs about 9AF of water annually to supplement the 
wells.  Transfering 6AF of water and 8 PI’s will prevent us from paying unnecessary surcharges and still 
leave a lot of unused at tap 1331001. This would have no impact on other tap holders as these taps are 
only 2 miles apart and tap 34004, even though it is a ¾ inch tap is providing the water needed as you can 
see by the attached water bills.   
Your approval of this would be greatly appreciated. I would hope that it is not the policy of this board to 
collect surcharges from a tap holder with a large amount of water in the system simply because the tap 
is just around the corner from a tap that has a large amount of excess. 
Longs Peak Dairy 
Rick Podtburg  
 
From: Eric Reckentine <ericr@nwcwd.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 10:10 AM 
To: Rick Podtburg <Rick@LPDairy.com> 
Cc: Jared Rauch <jaredr@nwcwd.org>; Garret Mick <garretm@nwcwd.org>; Zachary P. White 
<zwhite@wbapc.com>; Tad Stout <tads@nwcwd.org> 
Subject: Tucker Dairy - Meter verification 
 
Rick 
  
I will put you on the board agenda for June 12th  
  
Please provide a letter to myself or the BOD directly  
  
Eric 
 



607 636

1864

1432

1605
1645

1689

208

617

1437

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Kgal

Year

Account #34004

Yearly Usage

Water Allocation = 3 = 684 Kgal

P.I. Allocation = 1 = 228 Kgal





 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 20230612-01 

RESOLUTION OF NECESSITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 WHEREAS, the North Weld County Water District (“District”) has determined that it is 

necessary to construct the Newt III Water Line Project (“Project”) for the health, safety and welfare 

of the persons for whom the District provides services; and  

 WHEREAS, the construction of the Project will require the acquisition of the permanent 

and/or temporary construction easements (“Easements”) over, under, on and across the properties 

described and depicted in Attachment A-1 through A-25 (collectively, the “Properties,") attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference); and 

 WHEREAS, the District has previously contacted the owners of the Properties to negotiate 

in good faith for the acquisition of the Easements from the interested property owners; and 

 WHEREAS, time is of the essence and the acquisition of the Easements is desirable and 

necessary for the construction of the Project, and is necessary to protect and promote public health, 

safety and welfare; and 

 WHEREAS, the District has the power, right and authority to acquire the Easements by 

the power of eminent domain granted to it, including the rights granted to it by C.R.S. § 32-1-

1006(1)(f). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Board of Directors of the District (“Board”) hereby finds, determines and 

declares that it is necessary in the public interest and for public health, safety and welfare to 

acquire the Easements for the public use and purpose of constructing the Project.   

 

2. The Board hereby authorizes Spencer Fane LLP to negotiate and commence 

condemnation proceedings as authorized by the Colorado Constitution and statutes for the 

purpose of exercising eminent domain over the Properties. 

 

3. The legal descriptions of the Properties and the property interests necessary to 

complete the Project are subject to review by the District’s legal and engineering consultants and 

are subject to change. 

 

4. The Board hereby authorizes the District’s consultants and legal counsel to proceed 

in accordance with this Resolution. 

 

5. The Board expressly reserves the right to amend, revise, redact, and/or repeal this 

Resolution in whole or in part, from time to time. 

 

6. This Resolution shall be effective immediately and shall remain in full force and 

effect until such time as such processes is repealed by the Board. 

 

7. If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution is 

held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such decision shall not affect the validity or 



 

Page 2 of 2 

constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Resolution.  The Board hereby declares that it 

would have passed this Resolution and each part or parts thereof irrespective of the fact that any 

one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 

INTRODUCED, READ, AND ADOPTED this 12th day of June, 2023. 

 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-

municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State 

of Colorado. 

  

 

          

President 

 

ATTEST 

 

 _________________________  

 Secretary 



10.  Executive Session: The Board reserves the right to      
       enter into Executive Session for the following  
       purposes: Receiving legal advice and discussing     
       matters subject to negotiation and strategy pursuant  
       to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & (e), C.R.S. related to  

 



  

 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

32825 CR 39  •  LUCERNE, CO 80646 

P.O. BOX 56  •  BUS: 970-356-3020  •  FAX: 970-395-0997 

WWW.NWCWD.ORG  •  EMAIL: WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

 

April 18, 2023 
 

VIA EMAIL 
Town Board of Trustees 
201 1st Street 
Ault, Colorado 80610 
butchw@townofault.org 

 
RE: North Weld County Water Dedication Agreement – Hunteman Share 

 
Dear Board of Trustees: 
 
 North Weld County Water District (the “District”) was made aware of the Board of 
Trustees decision on April 12, 2023 not to proceed with the proposed water dedication agreement 
between the Town of Ault (the “Town”) and the District regarding one share of Capital Stock of 
the Water Supply and Storage Company (“WSSC”) commonly referred to between the Town and 
the District as the “Hunteman Share”. 
 
 By this letter, please be advised that by not approving the proposed water dedication 
agreement and dedicating the Hunteman Share to the District, the Town has lost the opportunity 
to enter into the District’s pending WSSC change application (Case No. 21CW3199). The District 
will not amend its application past the time we have previously stated to the Town.   
 

If in the future the Town decides to dedicate the Hunteman Share to the District, such 
dedication will be subject to approval by the Board of Directors of a new water dedication 
agreement including the District’s then current terms and conditions regarding water dedications.  
The terms and conditions of the proposed water service agreement may no longer apply.  If such 
future dedication occurs, the Hunteman Share may be included into a future change case.  The 
District does not know the timing of its next WSSC change application. 
 
 If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 

Sincerely,  
 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
      Eric Reckentine, District Manager 
 
Cc: Board of Directors, North Weld County Water District 

Eric Reckentine



 
April 27, 2023 

 

Wildwing Metropolitan District 

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W Eisenhower Boulevard 

Loveland, CO 80537 

Attn: Doug Campbell 

Mobile # 719-439-8692 

Email: dougc@pcgi.com 

 

Town of Timnath 

4750 Signal Tree Drive 

Timnath, CO 80547 

Attn: Steve Humann 

Mobile # 970-226-0557 

Email: shumann@tstinc.com 

Attn: Nick Scharffbillig 

Mobile #970-297-8782 

Email: nscharffbillig@timnathgov.com 

 

Hartford Homes 

4801 Goodman Street 

Timnath, CO 80547 

Attn: Patrick McMeekin 

Mobile # 970-301-0076 

Email: patrick@hartfordco.com 

 

Re: 2023 Operations Plan for Wildwing Non-potable System 

 

Dear Doug, Steve, Nick, and Patrick, 

 

North Weld County Water District (North Weld) is providing an Operations Plan for 2023 for the non-

potable irrigation system and water supply for the irrigation of the greenspace areas within the Wildwing 

Development, LLC (Wildwing) and the Town of Timnath’s Wildwing fields/park (“Non-Potable System”). 

The purpose of this Operations Plan is to improve coordination between North Weld, Wildwing, and the 



Town of Timnath (Town), and ensure that the water supplies available for use in the Non-Potable System 

are efficiently used.    

 

Water Supplies 

The primary sources to be delivered to the Non-Potable System intake in 2023 are identified below.  

 

1. Larimer and Weld Irrigation Company (LWIC) – 7 Shares  

a. Deliveries begin when the ditch company starts operations, normally in May.  In 2022, the 

Larimer and Weld Companies delivery season was from May 25 to September 16. 

 

2. Larimer and Weld Reservoir Company (LWRC) - 4 Shares 

a. Deliveries normally begin in July and last to early September.  

 

3. Becker Pumping Plant – Case No. W-7925-75 

a. North Weld will track the calculated inflows (groundwater and seepage) into the pond 

and may pump that amount of water into the Non-Potable System under the Becker 

Pumping Plant water right. 

 

4. Clyde Smith Reservoir -  

a. 35 acre-feet owned by the Town of Timnath for the non-potable water supply through its 

Weld facilities to the Timnath Wildwing Park (Park).  

b. 25 acre-feet owned by Wildwing. 

 

North Weld will have the sole responsibility for the day-to-day operations of the Non-Potable System, 

including regulating any deliveries into the pond and selecting the source of water used within the Non-

Potable System.  North Weld retains sole discretion to use additional or alternative supplies, and is not 

obligated to deliver Clyde Smith Reservoir water to the Town or Wildwing . 

 

Operations 

This Operations Plan does not commit North Weld to begin or end water deliveries through the Non-

Potable System on any particular date or timeline. However, subject to water availability, North Weld 

currently intends to operate the Non-Potable System during the 2023 irrigation season generally as 

follows: 

 

1. System Start: North Weld plans to begin Non-Potable System deliveries under the following 

conditions: 

a. North Weld will begin delivering water to the Town at the Town’s meter within seven 

days of receiving notice from the Town that it is prepared to deliver Clyde-Smith Reservoir 

supplies to the pond.  

b. North Weld will begin delivering water to Wildwing at Wildwing’s meter on the date on 

which the Larimer and Weld Ditch commences deliveries to LWIC shareholders.  

 



2. During System Operation: Once North Weld begins taking delivery of its LWIC share water, North 

Weld will prioritize use of the LWIC share water, LWRC share water, and the Becker Pumping Plant 

water right. To avoid overtopping and to ensure accurate water rights accounting, the Town and 

Wildwing1 should not deliver their Clyde-Smith Reservoir water into the pond without prior 

authorization from North Weld.  

 

3. End of Season:  

a. North Weld will cease delivering water to Wildwing when at least one of the following 

conditions is met:  

i. The Larimer and Weld Ditch ceases deliveries for the season, and Wildwing 

cannot deliver its Clyde-Smith Reservoir water to the pond in an amount and rate 

that, in North Weld’s sole discretion, is sufficient to reliably and safely operate 

the Non-Potable System; or 

ii. When deliveries to Wildwing at Wildwing’s meter have reached 180 acre-feet.  

 

b. North Weld will cease delivering water to the Town when at least one of the following 

conditions is met: 

i. When deliveries to the Town at the Town’s meter have reached 35 acre-feet;  

ii. When deliveries to the Town at the Town’s meter equal the amount of Clyde-

Smith Reservoir water that was measured into the pond, less evaporative and 

other carriage losses, not to exceed 35 acre-feet; or 

iii. When there is not available carriage in the system and/or if, at North Weld’s sole 

discretion, other operational factors prevent further delivery.  

 

Operation of Clyde-Smith Reservoir Supplies 

The Town, in coordination with Wildwing, will be responsible for delivery of the Town’s and Wildwing’s 

Clyde-Smith Reservoir water into the pond. All deliveries of the Clyde-Smith Reservoir water must comply 

with the following conditions: 

1. The Town must notify North Weld (Garret Mick at 970-301-0979) at least 24 hours before 

delivering water into the pond. 

2. North Weld may limit deliveries of water into the pond to the amount/rate necessary to supply 

the Town’s water demands at the Town’s master meter and/or to avoid overtopping.  

3. During deliveries, the Town will provide to North Weld any measurement or other data tracking 

the inflow of Clyde-Smith Reservoir water into the pond and any meter data for outflows at the 

Town’s meter.  

4. The Town and Wildwing will be assessed their pro-rata share of evaporation and other losses 

accruing to any Clyde-Smith Reservoir water stored in the pond.  

  

 
1 At this time, North Weld does not intend to authorize any deliveries of Wildwing’s Clyde-Smith Reservoir water to 
the pond until late in the 2023 irrigation season. 



North Weld reserves the right to revise this plan without further notice to the Town and Wildwing.  This 

plan assumes that the 2023 irrigation season is a hydrologically average or wet year.  If 2023 is a dry year, 

North Weld will limit deliveries through the Non-Potable System based on the reduction in available water 

supplies. North Weld will coordinate with Wildwing and the Town if it anticipates that a reduction in 

deliveries may be necessary.  

 

North Weld requests that the Town and Wildwing each identify a person who will be the primary 

contact on behalf of your entity regarding day-to-day operations of the Non-Potable System. North 

Weld’s primary contact for day-to-day operations is: Garret Mick (Phone # 970-301-0979; 

garretm@nwcwd.org). All other communications should be sent via email to me (ericr@nwcwd.org), 

Garret, and the individuals listed on the first page of this letter.  

 

Let me know if you need any additional information.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Eric Reckentine 

District Manager 

North Weld County Water District 

Eric Reckentine


